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Financial Summary

MBEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mAERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_—& —E-TF —E-NF —E-N\F ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTR ARETRT ARETT
Revenue WA 6,147,262 5455246 6,030,167 4,734,080 3,663,993
(Loss) profit before tax al (E5E) A8 (213,653) 67,177 503,193 609,440 542,787
(Loss) profit for the year PAN/NECIEZ PN
attributable to owners FERER (1)
of the Company A (293,212) 1,837 288,100 462,547 421,333
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=ZA=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E_—f% —IT-%F ZT-hF ZT-NFE ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT ARBTIT AREBETFIT ARE®TR
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,954,916 3,562,387 3,619,250 1,214,492 865,096
Current assets B EE 1,996,385 2,217,569 2,006,636 2,038,824 1,980,496
Total assets BEE 4,951,301 5,779,956 5,625,886 3,253,316 2,845,592
Equity and liabilities EnkEfE
Total equity ko 2,011,302 2,340,168 2,386,840 2,247,467 1,985,531
Non-current liabilities EnHasE 1,172,113 1,460,983 1,525,293 11,692 13,287
Current liabilities nBEE 1,767,886 1,978,805 1,713,753 994,157 846,774
Total liabilities BEE 2,939,999 3,439,788 3,239,046 1,005,849 860,061
Total equity and liabilities EakBELRHE 4,951,301 5,779,956 5,625,886 3,253,316 2,845,592
Net current assets REEEZEAE 228,499 238,764 292,883 1,044,667 1,133,722
Total assets less current BEERRD
liabilities 8E& 3,183,415 3,801,151 3,912,133 2,259,159 1,998,818
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Financial Summary
MBEE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Dear Shareholders,

2021 was a challenging year as the world is still overshadowed by
Covid-19 pandemic (“Pandemic”), affecting the recovery pace of the
economy. The mutation of Pandemic to Omicron continued to linger
onto 2022 bring in more disruption to the recovery of the global
economy. But there are other issues arising at the same time, there are
still disruptions to the logistic and workforce as a result many countries
choose to “coexist with the virus” in the hope to speed up economic
recovery resulting in inflation as a result. The inflation had affected
people” s will to spend and will further slow down the pace of recovery.

China had been able to recover as the Central Government had
implemented the "dynamic zero” approach to contain the Pandemic as
a result China was able to conclude 2021 with 8.5% in GDP growth and
the fastest economy to fully recuperate from the Pandemic. Although
the fight with Pandemic is still not yet finished but we do believe that
with the medical improvements Pandemic will be resolved fairly soon.
Going into 2022, the fight with Omicron along with the ongoing trade
tension with the western world and the war at Ukraine will add further
instability to the economy.

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi

BB RE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

China had just concluded the First Congressional meeting in the
beginning of March and have setup several goals to achieve for 2022,
GDP target at 5.5%, creating more jobs as urbanization continues,
lower tax for businesses, stabilize the supply of food are all working
alongside to boost the local economy. It is important that the dual
circulation will have to be enforced to revive the economic engine.

For Xiabuxiabu 2021 had been equally challenging, there was a change
in the management level where the previous Chief Executive Officer had
to be replaced as there were too many non-profitable stores that were
opened in wrong locations that did not fit the “value for money” model
of the brand. The Company is definitely in need of someone who truly
cared about the future and capable of setting the Company back onto
the right direction. As the largest shareholder of the Company there is
no better time than now to step up to take up this role, | have resumed
the role of Chief Executive Officer and keen to lead the Company
out. Several measures had been taken since | took up the role, |
have appointed two Chief Operating Officers to help with managing
the day-to-day operations of the two brands. Secondly, identified
the loss-making operations and to take the appropriate actions to
impaired them, towards the end of 2021, we have impaired 229 loss
making restaurants. We believed after getting rid of these operations
the Company will be able to deliver a better operating profit to our
shareholders. In 2021, despite the challenging environment, we have
opened 95 new restaurants, of which 52 were Xiabuxiabu restaurants
and 43 Coucou restaurants. The sales contribution from Xiabuxiabu
division increased by 0.7% in 2021 compared to 2020. For Coucou
there was a huge uplift of 39% for 2021 compared to 2020.

Going into 2022, we will continue to execute our expansion plans
cautiously, the Group plans to open around 156 new restaurants.
For Xiabuxiabu we are going to fine tune the model and to launch
a new brand Xiabu X later in 2022. As for Coucou, we will continue
to expand into the East and Southern part of China and also expand
internationally. We have opened our first Coucou international
restaurant in Singapore and will continue to extend our footprint
internationally towards the second half of this year.

In March 2022, we have opened the second headquarter in Shanghai,
which will greatly help the Group to achieve this strategy. In the later
part of this year, we will also launch a new membership program where
one membership is able to allow customers to utilize their membership
in both Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants where customers will be
able to enjoy their membership privilege without having to carry two
membership cards with them, giving them a better experience and
enhance their loyalty to the brand.

ZA¥ FEMEHEE-—ARKREZE
SRR BMY_T-__FLZEEE B
BERBEANEEREERS 5%  BEHE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

As the Pandemic continues, there is a change in consumer behavior
where customers will tend to eat more at home. The Group will
continue to take advantage of this new spending behavior and promote
more delivery business and condiment business. Therefore, we have to
do more product development and explore a wider range of condiment
related products, microwaveable products, half-finished products and
frozen products that can help customers to prepare a meal much more
conveniently at home. During 2021, the sales contribution from this
division is 2.1% slightly lower than 2.7% in 2020.

The Group had undergone some dramatic changes in 2021, some of
these changes have set forth a better foundation for 2022. This year will
continue to have a great deal of instability and challenges, as the CEO
I will continue to do my best to lead the Company into the right track
and to bring back profitability into the Company. | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the management
and staff for their hard work and dedication. My heartfelt appreciation
to the Board and shareholders for their continued support to the Group
and | am proud and honor to work with you all to overcome all the
challenges ahead.

Ho Kuang-Chi
Chairman

BERRBERHE HEORERGEE H
EEFHARERRE AKESHUE
MALMBEEETR - AN EHEEIN
EEBRFAKRBER - Bt - RAAE
TEZERME  RREEBRZHFK
miBRER  MKEERER  FKm
REARER BEPBETEMLEHE
KBR-N_T_—F  KOMHOHEE
BHERR21% BER_T_FFH
2.7% °

ZE-—F AEEEKETEZ  H
FHRIBHRETE__FEREFTER
BERERY - 5 FE 7 m T E T 1Ak
B ERITHRAE  AABEBEERZMN
Bt WEARERLEY  FRHES
B -RELZERSHEREEMEIMN
FHNEERBBRRERERAZOHE
thHEROBHESSNREHAEED
T  RBEFMERSAL RS
EERRARENSEDE -

XX
oy

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —Z——FF 9




Business Review and Outlook
EKOEREE

OVERVIEW

In 2021, the Group opened 52 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 43 Coucou
restaurants. The Group also closed down 229 Xiabuxiabu restaurants.
These restaurants were closed down as they were primarily loss making,
many operated in locations that were mismatch to the “value for
money” model which Xiabuxiabu stood for and models that were not
able to portrait the brand correctly. The Group believes that with this
change, the Company will be able to move back to the right track going
forward.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group owned and operated 841
Xiabuxiabu restaurants in 132 cities over 21 provinces and autonomous
regions and in three centrally administered municipalities in China,
namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai.

The Group also owned and operated 183 Coucou restaurants in 42 cities
over 19 provinces, in three centrally administered municipalities, namely
Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai and in Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue increased by 12.7% from RMB5,455.2 million
in 2020 to RMB6,147.3 million in 2021. Following the development
of the Pandemic, the central government and local governments in
China implemented control measures and restrictions on consumer
establishments during different times throughout 2021, which greatly
affected the Group’s business. In order to comply with the governmental
measures and to ensure the safety of its staff and customers, the Group
gradually suspended a number of its restaurant operations.
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Business Review and Outlook
X¥KOERESE

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2021, China was able to better control the Pandemic through
dynamic zero measures and the growth of China’s domestic economy
was able to recover gradually and achieved GDP of 8.1%, better than
the 6% target which China set in the beginning of 2021. At the same
time, in 2021, the actual per capita disposable income of urban and
rural areas grew by 9.1% from 2020. In 2021, the national revenue
from catering industry was RMB4,689.5 billion, a turnaround from
negative to positive 18.6% compared with 2020, but still had not
recovered to the level of 2019 prior to the Pandemic. After the outbreak
of Pandemic, the consumers started to change their spending behaviors
to utilize online portal when ordering. It is believed that digitalization
will continue to play an important part in shaping the future of catering
industry. To make use of the big data where the Group is able to
capture the trends and what the new generations want will continue
to help the Company to develop the appropriate products to match
the likes and needs of its customers. Customers are also paying more
attention to the physical design and cleanliness of dining environment,
food safety and whether sufficient pandemic control measures have
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RMB AR

62.5-

Xiabuxiabu R g 1 IE

140.6.

Coucou &&=

T¥ O R

—E-—F hEBABYHEFTTRED
SERE ST AT MR B I - P B AR R G R
BUBESME BREEREBEIKIEE
8.1% ' HMBATEHR _ZT-_—FUXEN
BiZE6% A —E-—FHHBER
MNEBRALGAIRKRAR - - ZFif
Fo1% RZE-_—F  ZEREREWK
ABAREL6,895(B T BT - TF
=i mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁmﬁ%
BHARERZREBZH T — NLFHK
$°E%§%%\ﬁ§%ﬁﬁ&%@ﬁ

IU]H
| ‘H

HH B R B E@t@ﬁTE E2d
YK %%ME BERERLER

EE%%%%EEEW% o MAAEE
AEBA AEEERBS K —HKFK
WMHBEDNARBFESBENER
NZEBENEFRFR - EETEM
FIRERENERRANBERE

Number of restaurants
BEYSED

1,024.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT ZZ=—FF 3} 11




Business Review and Outlook
EX¥K¥OEREE

been implemented at the restaurants. In the meantime, complying with
the regulatory measures is also very important and the Group will ensure
that it follows the policies such as the “clean plate” campaign which
will also likely change consumption behavior in the future. The Group
will continue to focus on these areas to integrate the online and offline
opportunity as it continues to upgrade its restaurants, and continue to
ensure the Group provides a safe and hygienic, value for money dining
experience for its customers. Last but not least with regards to the
hotpot industry, there were 50,762 new hotpot companies registered in
2021 but the turnover from the hotpot industry had not yet recovered
to 2019 level. The Group eagerly look forward to the easing of the
Pandemic where business and lifestyles can resume as normal.

OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group’s restaurant network

In 2021, the Group opened a total of 95 new restaurants, including
52 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 43 Coucou restaurants. In addition, the
Group closed a total of 229 Xiabuxiabu restaurants in 2021 as many
of the restaurants that were opened by the previous management
were in locations that were not able to present the Xiabuxiabu
“value for money” branding image and some were closed due to
various commercial reasons, including the impact of the Pandemic. In
aggregate, the Group’s total number of restaurants in operation was
1,024 in 2021.

The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Xiabuxiabu
restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated:

mMEEAREBRHREBES TR - &
R STEERESTOEE A
SEMHEARET [ CRITHIFHE &
EFHRNEBRBRLKABEERE - A&
BEREESHATIEL T EAARSRE

R THE WS RERRERR
BERHZE2HFENSEELNAER
BoRE RAMBITEME  —F_——
F o i B9 NS R B 50,7625 0 HEX
MITENEXBNAREE_T—NF
BIKF - REBAY R ERBEDNEMR
BEAS R EETAMAAKENE

BEXBRMBERE

REBENERES

MR- =——F  AEEFFAKS £95M
B B FES2ME N5 I 0 R A BE R 4308 E
EERE I ARAIEEABRRERN
ZYEBEBEEME EARBERBHFEE
MEL] RS AR Sl
ER(BERBZE) NERLLERH
Bl —E - —FAXEEA X EA229M
HHPHERE RN - —F - KEF

TREDIR PR B A S B3% % 5 8 0
B IR R IR BE R E ([#]) -

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—8
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF

# % # %
Tier 1 cities®” 1485 mY 324 38.5 376 354
Tier 2 cities® 248 T 302 35.9 431 40.6
Tier 3 cities® g 215 25.6 254 24.0
Total 485t 841 100.0 1,061 100.0

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Baoding, Changzhou,
Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Suzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou and
Yantai.

(3)  All cities except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in (1) and (2) above.

(1) dER -~ EE - BINFURI -

2 BLdgEmIN EEED 2
BEWMT - SMIRE BN KE BB
homBE - ER-FE BN EH-
M RER -

(3) B EXX(MFQ)FTRAR R 247 5 T S 8
PREWT -
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Business Review and Outlook
X¥KOERESE

Since the launching of Coucou in 2016, this brand had been very
successful and well perceived by customers and the Group had been
riding on this opportunity to expand the footprint of the Coucou
rapidly. In 2021, the Group had opened 43 new restaurants.

The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Coucou
restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated:

BEE T - RE-KHELEREXD
EXEEGTF ASERBEE AR
BRZZRVEE R_FT_—F K
SEHMFARBREE -

TREIRFAREAAEE RS D
MERZERHE ([#])

As at 31 December

W+=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-FF

# % # %
Tier 1 cities!” 148380 " 72 39.3 60 42.9
Tier 2 cities® 243 99 54.1 75 53.6
Tier 3 cities® g Y 4 2.2 1 0.7
Outside mainland China” rh B K B A SN 8 4.4 4 2.8
Total Mt 183 100.0 140 100.0

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Hefei, Xiamen, Fuzhou,
Foshan, Dongguan, Shijiazhuang, Zhengzhou, Harbin, Wuhan, Changsha,
Suzhou, Nanjing, Wuxi, Shenyang, Dalian, Jinan, Taiyuan, Xian, Kunming,
Hangzhou, Wenzhou, lJiaxing, Changzhou, Zhuhai, Nanning, Nantong,
Ningbo, Chengdu, Guiyang, Lanzhou, Quanzhou and Xuzhou.

(3)  Yangzhou, Putian, Shantou and Taizhou.

(4) Hong Kong SAR.

(1) dER -~ B BINFURI -

2 BLdgETIN EEET 2
HEMT - SMNER - EPT RN
R AKE BN BRE R
ZRY M -BR EH ES-
RE-EEH KR B -EBH M
MR FEEM RE BE-
R ER - KE - B BN R
AR -

() BN -EAE-LEREM -

4) BEBIITHRE -
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Key operational information for the Group’s

Xiabuxiabu restaurants

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's
Xiabuxiabu restaurants for the years indicated:

ERASEERHEHEBNER
EEER

TR BT PT R G 7 5% (B I I 99 O

BOE

S FEBRIRIBE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-TH
Net revenue (in RMB thousands) BURA(ANREFT)
Tier 1 cities™ 1485 m" 1,649,622 1,523,957
Tier 2 cities®” 248 Y 1,183,808 1,222,284
Tier 3 cities and below® 4R T K A TR 669,177 713,717
Total et 3,502,607 3,459,958
Average spending per customer (RMB)Y BERE A EE (AR®T)
Tier 1 cities"” 148 m" 65.6 65.2
Tier 2 cities” 288 60.0 60.3
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T M AT 60.1 60.1
62.5 62.3
Seat turnover rate (x)® BER(E)"
Tier 1 cities"” 1489w 2.7 2.7
Tier 2 cities” 288 2.2 2.1
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T R AT 1.9 2.0
2.3 2.3

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Baoding, Changzhou,
Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Suzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou and

Yantai.

(3)  All cities except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in (1) and (2) above.

ER - B BINFURI -

() Braigwmmi rEEED 2
BEWT MNRE - FM - KE - B
oEEoER 55BN &G
BNRES -

(3) Bk SX()RQ)FT i1 4R R 248 3 T I B
FrAHT™ °

14

Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Xiabuxiabu
restaurants for the year by total customer traffic of Xiabuxiabu restaurants
for the year.

Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant
operation days and average seat count of Xiabuxiabu restaurants during
the year, for the counter part; calculated by dividing total customer traffic
by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant operation days and average table count of
Xiabuxiabu restaurants during the year, for the table part.

(4)  LASF A N E ORI 42 BB 8 4 TS U ABR
LENRBEBEEESAREE -

(5) MHEy  AFRRETHEREER
,u}/mE[ﬁ%LA%%%%%@%ﬁﬁii@@
fLEGHE - BURER D - LASE P I IR A O
2B R R A B B DA N9 IR O IR R R
ESSPN OSESSENE G i
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X¥KOERESE

In 2021, revenue contribution from Xiabuxiabu restaurants continued to
be the main source of revenue of the Group, and contributed 57.3% as
a percentage of the Group's total revenue. Xiabuxiabu’s business had
been severely affected by the Pandemic, as Xiabuxiabu had restaurants
operations in areas which was significantly affected by the Pandemic.
Seat turnover was similar when compared to 2020 primarily as a result
of better government implemented social distancing and restaurant
suspension measures to contain the Pandemic. Therefore, customers
were able to gradually dine out at restaurants. In the meantime, the
Group fully utilized delivery channel to deliver fresh ingredients and
hotpot to generate sales and utilize social media and e-commerce
platforms to create an online platform to recover some of the business
to minimize the loss from the disruption of operations in some of its
operations. On the other hand, the average spending per customer was
RMB62.5 in 2021 when compared to RMB62.3 in 2020, primarily due
to the Group's continuous effort to improve product mix, the regular
launch of new products such as sets and increase in the sales of delivery
and new products.

ZEC-—F RIFREEEKANAR
SERAFERE  HASEEBUWAD
B A57.3% ° IR EBTEIE
BREFXE FARBHBEBESDHR
TRBFEBRENE - AN RS
BNERE A TENERERMERY
EEEEBAGEZRE  ERAEHE
BERE RAUBEEE_T-TFH
HoBBREK  AKEFEDFIHIINKE
EOETEEBEM BRFINEXEE
WA REETERERTAELER
FFEURERDES KM=
FEEBNEEREERK - S —FH @
TECEFERAY BB RARG23
LM —FRAARK62.5T
DEBHRAAEERESBCEREAS -
TFHHEETERMNNESE  RIEFAIIE
REFTEMIEE -
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EBOERREE

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’'s N & & 5l 1A B 7 £ & 7K £ [F] 1 g N9 IR 225
Xiabuxiabu restaurants for the years indicated: ErREHEEREEERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—F=-—F —E-FF
Number of same-store* G e
Tier 1 cities 142 T 304
Tier 2 cities 24R T 296
Tier 3 cities and below WM RIAT 178
Total 5t 778
Same-store sales (in RMB million) REHER(ARE¥EER)
Tier 1 cities 4R ¥k T 1,210.5 1,213.6
Tier 2 cities 248 T 741.7 853.5
Tier 3 cities and below 3T EAT 417.7 518.3
Total @t 2,369.9 2,585.4
Same-store sales growth (%) 5 /5 88 & 18 R £(%)
Tier 1 cities 14T (0.3)
Tier 2 cities 2R (13.1)
Tier 3 cities and below 3T KA (19.4)
(8.3)
* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of * BRLEBRFERAGAMREEERRNZ

the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in

both 2020 and 2021.

E_EER_E - —FEREFERNH
PIE ASMERMERE -
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Key operational information for the Group’s Coucou

restaurants

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's

Coucou restaurants for the years indicated:

Ejﬁﬁlxiliﬂrﬂ’]i E&EE

TREINFARFERAKERZZEEN
E:FEK%EE?E%' 4

‘mm

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t=-A=+—BLEE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-TH

Net Revenue (in RMB thousands) FURA(ANRET )

Tier 1 cities!” TR M 1,077,901 818,494

Tier 2 cities? 248 1,136,541 795,940

Tier 3 cities® e 20,992 7,027

Outside mainland China® e B R LA AN 123,885 66,342

Total st 2,359,319 1,687,803

Average spending per customer (RMB)” BEE A EE (AR®T)®

Tier 1 cities"” 148 m" 145.6 139.1

Tier 2 cities? 26 m? 129.7 129.9

Tier 3 cities® EFCS 129.6 112.7

Outside mainland China® e [ A B A SN 276.7 2741

140.6 137.0

Table turnover rate (x)® BH=(E)"°

Tier 1 cities'” 18w 2.8 2.6

Tier 2 cities® 26 2.4 2.5

Tier 3 cities® g m” 2.4 1.6

Outside mainland China® A B R A SN 2.8 2.3

2.5 2.5

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. ()  dEx= - BF - BINARI -

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered ) BREMREmIN MAEEED F2
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Hefei, Xiamen, Fuzhou, BEWm o ANMER - BT @M
Foshan, Dongguan, Shijiazhuang, Zhengzhou, Harbin, Wuhan, Changsha, W B ARE %ﬁd‘l‘l CIBEE R
Suzhou, Nanjing, Wuxi, Shenyang, Dalian, Jinan, Taiyuan, Xian, Kunming, ECRDCEMN - mR-EHRG-
Hangzhou, Wenzhou, Jiaxing, Changzhou, Zhuhai, Nanning, Nantong, KE -FEE KR -ABL BB M
Ningbo, Chengdu, Guiyang, Lanzhou, Quanzhou and Xuzhou. ORI - B BN RF - EmE -

Fﬁi%)“ﬁ?&‘ﬁké‘ﬁ =5 BN =M
KAz o

(3)  Yanzhou, Putian, Shantou and Taizhou.

(4)  Hong Kong SAR.

(5)  Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Coucou restaurants
for the year by total customer traffic of Coucou restaurants for the year.

(6)  For the dine-in part, this is calculated by dividing total sales number by
total Coucou restaurant operation days and average table count of Coucou
restaurants during the year. For the delivery part, the delivery sales that
equals to the average dine-in customer spending is regarded as one dine-in

customer.

(3) BM - EBHE - WBEERAEM-
FRITTHUE -

%%%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ WA B IA 5
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In 2021, the Group continued with its expansion with Coucou brand Z—ZT=—%F AEEHEEREFREERE
and opened 43 new restaurants, the sales contributed increased by R HHRAIEEE  EEZ5 NN ESE
39.3% from RMB1,689.1 million in 2020 to RMB2,353.7 million in #-TE-EEMW ARK1,689.18 & T i
2021. The table turnover rate of Coucou restaurants stabilized at 2.5x  $139.3% &2 —E = —E M A R#2,353.7
in 2021 compared to 2020, primarily due to better implementation of BH&EJL  FEZEER_ZT - —FHEH
Pandemic measures by the government. On the other hand, average R _T _TFMEEBEE2E B
spending per customer of Coucou restaurants increased slightly from A BT ERERE I e &= B B IZ FE e P B o
RMB137.0 in 2020 to RMB140.6 in 2021. Such increase was primarily S—FE EEEENEEZALEER
driven by the launching of new products and drinks to uplift the sales. —_EEFHARE137.00EHE M
E-T_—FWARK140.67T - HRAIE
MEZHRARBHEEMBELETER K
ERom TR -

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’s THREHIAFATREEAEE ZZEEN
Coucou restaurants for the years indicated: FIEHEERIEERERR .

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—BA=+—-BLtEE

2021 2020
—E-— —E-EEF
Number of same-store* BEgE*
Tier 1 cities 142 T 57
Tier 2 cities 28T 65
Tier 3 cities gk 1
Outside mainland China B R B DA AN 4
Total et 127
Same-store sales (in RMB million) FEEHEER(AREEHEER)
Tier 1 cities 1ERIR T 784.9 751.9
Tier 2 cities 24T 684.6 746.3
Tier 3 cities 3fEk T 5.5 5.1
Outside mainland China R ER] K e A S0 77.6 63.9
Total et 1,552.6 1,567.2
Same-store sales growth (%) EEHEEIE R R(%)
Tier 1 cities 14339 T 4.4
Tier 2 cities 28T (8.3)
Tier 3 cities BT 7.8
Outside mainland China Fr B A B LA A1 21.4
(0.9)
* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of ~ * PRIBRFERBAMAREELNZ
the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in TR FERIZE - —FMEFEARNR
both 2020 and 2021. PP EHERRERE o
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022
Business Outlook

In 2021, the outbreak of Omicron still affected the world, affecting the
lifestyles of many citizens and the global economy. China continued
to enforced strict Pandemic control adopting “dynamic zero Pandemic
control” policies and these strict measures allowed China to be one
of the first countries to recover from the haze of the Pandemic. The
Group believes the Pandemic policies implemented by the Central
Government will reduce the impact of the Pandemic and help business
to regain momentum in 2022 as compared to 2021. In the 14th
Five-Year Plan, the Central Government proposed a domestic and
international dual-circulation strategy, to control housing prices to
reduce the household debt, using domestic demand as the core driving
force for driving consumption. In the latest National People’s Congress,
the government has announced the following economic targets for
2022: 1) GDP of 5.5%; 2) consumer price to increase by around 3.0%;
3) food crop production to be above 1.3 trillion kg; and 4) tax refund/
reduction of RMB2.5 trillion. The Group firmly believes that some of
these targets will be followed by policies implementation and will
benefit various industries. The Group’s main strategy will be to continue
to emphasize the quality and safety of food ingredients, improvise the
dining experience, promote the branding to synchronize with customers.
The future trend of catering industry will be dominated by a few big
chains of the industry and industry consolidation. These big chains will
continue to innovate and will shape the development of the catering
industry. The Group believes that the diversified platforms of the
Company with Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants, together with online
delivery service and condiment company will form a strong synergy
effect and help the Group’s overall business to bloom vigorously.

Going into 2022, the Group will continue to implement the following
strategies:

In order to maintain market share in this competitive market, the
Group will continue to maintain its pace of expansion, at the same time
overcome the problem of simply focusing on the number of restaurants
in the past and focus on ensuring that it opens quality restaurants. The
Group started to adjust its expansion plans since 2021, by setting forth
a higher standard when choosing new opening locations, using big data
and optimising the incentive system to motivate its development team.
In 2022, the Group will continue to implement the same strategy and
focus more on rental negotiations and use big data to help evaluate
the new locations to enhance the efficiencies of these new openings.
At the same time, the Group plans to continue to increase the sales per
unit area to shorten the investment payback period of these restaurants.
After such adjustments, Xiabuxiabu would re-establish the core
competitiveness of its brand. Historically, Xiabuxiabu restaurants are
primarily located in the North, resulting in an unbalanced operational
layout. In 2022, the Group will focus openings in Eastern and Southern
part of China to fully deploy the commercial real estate development
plan. In 2022, Xiabuxiabu will adapt the dual central office model
whereby the Group will not only have one main office in Beijing as in
the past but will have a new second commanding office to facilitate its
expansion strategy towards the East and Southern part of China.
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In 2022, the Company will implement “expansion into the East and
entering the South” strategy. In the next three years, Eastern and
Southern China will be the core expansion areas for the Group’s future
expansion, including the output of the operating personnel to support
the aggressive development in these regions. Coucou which has built a
brand on the foundations from the tier 1 cities, will continue to ride on
this strategy to enhance its branding power to penetrate into not only
tier 1 but tier 2 and gradually tier 3 cities as well.

The Group has redesigned its branding strategy to focus on certain
target customer group, focusing on the Generation Z who are the
major group of consumers nowadays. The Group strives to understand
their preferences and spending habits in order to deploy appropriate
and effective branding, marketing and promotional strategies to
attractive these target customers. The rebranding Xiabuxiabu's logo
represents a more vibrant, upscale, fashionable and comfortable image
to connect the brand with the younger customers so that the customers
would associate dining at restaurants as a place where they can enjoy
a "value for money” experience at a comfortable and fashionable
environment. As time changes, consumers started to value brand image
and marketing of restaurants, and the Group sees the need to put
more efforts into promotion of the Xiabuxiabu brand. The Group plans
to utilize both online and offline channels to enhance Xiabuxiabu’s
exposures through marketing on WeChat, TikTok and collaboration with
key opinion leaders (“KOLs"). The Group will continue to reinvigorate
the Xiabuxiabu brand to increase customer loyalty and to live up to
the motto of “value for money”. The Group is confident that this will
be a successful campaign to get the new brand image through to its
customers.

In 2022, Coucou will continue to strengthen its branding power and
target the “new middle class”, to design menu items and create pricing
and promotional strategies targetting the consumption habits and
dietary preferences of consumers in different cities to create successful
marketing and promotional campaign, in turn building a stronger brand
image and reputation to build a stronger bond with its customers. The
alignment of the new membership program later this year will help to
increase the customer flow between the Group and will be able to drive
through traffic and to increase the restaurant’s operating profit.

RIZB-—F ARABRTIRER
IR - RR=F R FEFHKEAR
SEBRRNEH LR BREELAER
MEH EREAREFRENAKNER -
BEEIRBTE R MR
4R IRFE X AR R SR N IB R Mg
BEITURTIE2  3RBHAH T

AEEEH R EmEREATIRHE
BREFPE  EMBRERSZIERREN
TEHERR AKEBHTEMMN
R RHBEE  BiEE AN mE
SRR - BURSIZFERARER
NEF Mg OEF U o R 28 S IR BT - BT IR S8 7%

—EEER - BE - B REENEE
EmEEFEEEET RO EAEREN
eGP AR AT 4 S B R VRSB R
RBANEXSEELNER - BEER
RER HEERBEBEIZEERETR
K5 &8 o AR5 B B R B h0 oK IR IR
N MRS 3 R IR O IR AN B - NEEE A E
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The Group will continue to take advantage of its strong supply chain
network in different regions, add products of different price range,
to offer products that can satisfy the various needs of its consumers,
especially the younger generation. With a total of over 1,000 Xiabuxiabu
and Coucou restaurants, the Group is expected to continue to benefit
from the economies of scale and take advantage of its nationwide
restaurant network. In 2022, the Group plans to launch more new
set meals to target these consumers. The Group will continue to offer
“niched products” and “core products”, to offer more diversified
products for beef and lamb. The Group will continue to strengthen the
upstream supply chain and its ability to offer premium products, such
as the Ximeng lamb, which has become the unique signature product
of Xiabuxiabu but at the same time will also introduce other lamb
varieties that are sourced from other countries such as New Zealand
into the menu. Another example is to continue to upgrade the existing
product range, such as increasing the number of items in veggie platter
from 15 to 20, allowing customers to eat a healthy and satisfying
meal. In addition, the Group will continue to launch “KOL products”
to expand its product offerings to appeal to consumers of young
generation such as “Mao Xue Wang” set and “cheese shrimp ball”
set in conjunction with products that attracts children such as “hippo
cake”, “chewy beef tendon balls”, “cute fish cakes” that allow children
to be able to eat and appreciate the look of the Group’s products at the
Group's restaurants. Xiabuxiabu restaurants will also roll out “seasonal
products”, such as promoting different products in different seasons
to satisfy the different needs of its customers. As the operational scale
expands, the Group plans to develop and offers products of different
price range in different regions. Through continuous improvement of its
product mix, the Group expects to increase its gross profit. The Group
will continue to offer diversified menu and focus on maintaining the
vitality of the brand as well as to ensure the quality of food and cost
efficiency. To achieve this, the Group will 1) regularly launch new menu
items to provide customers with a refreshing taste of the brand, such
as fried food and braised dishes, 2) develop marketing campaign when
new shop opens, 3) launch new cross over IP products with external
partners, 4) collaborate with entertainment industry and sport events
and 5) develop new seasonal products according to various Chinese
festivals such as Chinese New Year, Dragon Boat festival and mid-
Autumn festival to gain more exposure for the Group and to develop
different sources of revenue stream.
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For the Group's premium brand Coucou, new popular soup base with
meat launched by Coucou, such as “sour vegetable with pork”, “crab
roe with yellow fish”, “fish maw chicken”, “Taiwanese spicy” and
“pork belly chicken” have been introduced into the menu and become
signature products of Coucou and were very well received by customers.
New tea products such as “white pearl Pu‘er milk tea”, “yellow Ceylon
black tea” and “Ceylon black tea with chocolate” have all become
very popular products and more popular products will be launched
throughout 2022. Going forward, the Group’s development team will
continue to combine different dietary preferences of different regions
and local dining culture to develop nutritious signature products that
are healthy, aesthetically pleasing and delicious to the customers.

The Group will also take steps to further develop delivery products to
ensure better synergy with dine-in business. In the last two years when
Pandemic was affecting the restaurants operations, online delivery
business has been helping to recover some of the sales loss. In 2021,
the sales contribution from delivery business gradually increased to
10.1% of Xiabuxiabu total revenue. In 2022, the Group will continue to
roll out new product range such as “curry seafood” soup base, “ma-la
spicy luncheon meat and fresh shrimp” soup base, and also launch
seasonal soup base such as “lamb spine favored” soup base throughout
different seasons of the year.

In 2022, the Group is keen to provide a fair and reasonable menu back
to the market by focusing on attracting the younger generation, it will
go further to explore the core competitiveness and value of promoting
individual pots by bringing back the “value for money” set back to
the customers. After the Pandemic, many started to be more aware
of eating healthy and hygienically, the Group believes individual pot is
more than dining alone, it is a form of self-expression and a statement
self-identity. Customers can enjoy their favorite soup base while sharing
the ingredients with others in a safe and hygienic manner, which is
highly in line with the current popular culture of respecting people’s
individuality.

In order to convey such message, the Group has re-launched the
“value for money” model in its restaurants in the second half of 2021.
This model features an affordable, simple, individualistic model with
price range around RMB50-60 which is affordable amongst the young
generation, combining with the new restaurant design, new set menu,
utensils and table settings, the Group believes that customers will enjoy
and appreciate a more well-rounded dining experience.
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The Group understands that good ambience is critical to creating a
pleasant dining experience and is in the process of testing different
design models. That is the very reason why Coucou is designed to
have a more up-scale, elegance style and incorporated with a unique
teahouse model differentiating Coucou from other operations. Since the
launching of Coucou in 2016, it has been very successful and popular,
the Group continued to ride on the opportunity to expand its footprint
into 42 cities over 19 provinces, the revenue contributed by this brand
amounted to 39.3% of the Group’s total revenue. Tea sold by this
brand is also becoming a major source of revenue for the Group and
going forward Coucou will continue to take the opportunity to ride
on the expansion plan into Tier 3 cities and more importantly into the
international frontier. Aside from expansion into Hong Kong in 2019,
Coucou has showcased its international expansion footprint by opening
its first store in Singapore in the beginning of 2022, This is just the
beginning and there will be more new international stores opening to
come.

In addition to upgrading the hardware of the restaurants, the Group
has also started to utilize its upstream supply chain to better control the
quality of its ingredients and also to better mitigate its food cost. Over
the past few years, the Group has been able to efficiently control its
cost by cooperating with its upstream suppliers. The Group realizes that
quality is the first and foremost frontier that it must protect thereby
cautiously ensures that the suppliers that are chosen are all carefully
audited and selected. The Group also acquired an upstream processing
plant, Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd. processing plant in
Inner-Mongolia Ximeng where the Group can better control the quality
and cost of the lamb, especially when Inner-Mongolia had adapted a
policy to raise more beef than lamb in the past few years leading to less
lamb supplies available as a result increasing the cost of lamb products.
By investing into such upstream operations, the Group is in a better
position to leverage its cost and delivers a better gross profit margin.
Going forward, this processing plant will not only help the Company
to process the products it needs but can also help to process meat for
external parties whereby creating additional revenue for the Group.
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Stable supply of talented restaurant staff is key to support the Group's
restaurants operations and continuous expansion. The Group has
reviewed its talent strategy and taken an initiation to undertake some
changes. In the second half of 2021, the Group launched the new
incentive mechanism where the Group will be undertaking a profit
sharing policy with the operations team. Different from the past
where the teams were primarily evaluated based on the turnover they
achieved, now the key performance indicator (KPI) also includes the
operational profit that the team delivers as the Group wants the team
to take up more leadership into their operations and not just simply
chasing turnover. The Group will continue to evaluate the results of
this mechanism and continue to look for ways to better improvise its
incentive mechanism to reward its team better so they can continue
to level up their performance and deliver better operational efficiency.
The Group also changes some of the organizational structure by
consolidating some of the functional teams at the Group level from
15 teams down to 10 teams to simplify the organizational structure
and increase operational efficiency. At the operational level, in order
to increase the operational and management efficiency, the Group has
flatten the organization structure, for instance, Xiabuxiabu originally
had 6 districts which is now extended to 22 small districts and Coucou
from 6 districts to 12 small districts and flattening the reporting level
from 5 levels to 3 levels to allow management to react to restaurant
needs much more effectively.

In the “new catering” era, the integration of online and offline
operations has become a new trend. With the outbreak of the
Pandemic, the need to provide contactless service is becoming more
important. Therefore, the Group has started to introduce bar code
scanning system to minimize the number of contacts to avoid the
spreading of Pandemic by and to its staff. This system allows customer
to place order via their own mobile device to avoid the possibility of
wrong orders and customer can also make payment via the application
("App"”) therefore creating a safer environment and higher efficiency
at the operational level. Robotics are introduced to help serve the
dishes to customers to minimize human contacts and enhance serving
accuracy. Going forward, the Group will also work with different online
portals to seek and maximize the use of big data to further understand
its customer’s spending behavior and to seek ways to improvise its
operations and enhance efficiency. The Group will also work with
marketing team to simplify the company’s App whereby one App is
able to allow customers to order online, gain spending points, utilize
points to convert prizes, this integration will provide a better experience
and convenience for its loyal customers. Aside from enhancing the
user experience, the Group is also upgrading the internal system by
launching WMS supply chain system whereby the system is capable of
better tracking the flow of ingredients, cost tracking, to increase stock
turnover rate, minimize data input error, and lower management cost.
The Group believes that investing into IT is beneficial to the Group's
long term well-being and it is a worthwhile investment.
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The Group will continue to enhance its brand image by launching a
series of online and offline marketing campaigns to enhance its brand
awareness, collaborating with “KOL" to utilize their individual character
to attract its customers. The Group’s customer relationship management
will continue to focuses on delivering marketing activities to further
enhance brand stickiness and customer loyalty. The Group also plans
to work with IT team to mobilize its huge customer traffic, and to
take advantage of its large customer base and work with well-known
brands to launch joint promotion programs to gain more traction from
customers. In 2022, the Group will merge the two brands membership
card into one whereby previously the membership was solely for each
brand individually. After the change, a customer will only need to have
a membership card but allow them to enjoy different privilege at both
Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants at the same time without having to
carry two different brands membership cards with them, creating more
flexibility and convenience for our loyal members.

Since the outbreak of Pandemic, people have to remain at home and
“stay at home” economy has become a new living style nowadays and
the need to have semi-finished products to help people staying at home
to prepare a meal more conveniently is getting popular. In order to
ride on this opportunity, the Group has launched condiment products
such as hotpot soup base, dipping sauce and cooking sauce in the past
few years which are gradually getting market recognition and brand
awareness. In 2022, condiment company will further introduce frozen
food products and convenience food products into this category. The
Group believes this segment has a strong potential market opportunity
through the establishment of its non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (MRIEMRIE (A ) & BB LD A).
The Group is venturing into the condiment product business, which
supplements and complements the Group’s principal catering service
business and will further strengthen the brand of the Group. Sales of
condiments business contributed RMB126.2 million in 2021, around
2.1% of total sales. Going forward, the Group will continue to expand
this segment to increase the number of sales channels and develop new
products to expand the market share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The following table is a summary of the Group’s consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income with line items in
absolute amounts and as percentages of the Group's total revenue for
the years indicated, together with the change (expressed in percentages)

from 2020 to 2021:

TR AEENGEBRREMEE
WARBE  EPEVMRFEM@AIE
BENERSERGAESELKANE D
b ER T _EFE_T—FMNE
B(ABDIIR)

Year ended 31 December Year-
BE+T-A=+—-HLEE on-year
2021 2020 change
—E-—-F —ETF [F] bt &
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
AR TR ARBFIT
Consolidated Statement of SREBHER
Profit or Loss and Other ~ HftZEBA R
Comprehensive Income
Revenue WA 6,147,262 100.0 5,455,246 100.0 12.7
Other income H A 103,767 1.7 170,732 3.1 (39.2)
Raw materials and B B R MR R
consumables used REM (2,341,334) (38.1)  (2,130,169) (39.0) 9.9
Staff costs 8 TR (1,829,717) (29.8) (1,478,146) (27.1) 23.8
Property rentals and related XM & K&
expenses R (298,069) (4.8)  (219,593) (4.0) 35.7
Utilities expenses AREXER (201,567) (3.3) (190,277) (3.5) 5.9
Depreciation and amortization 77 & % # 3 (1,052,911) (17.1)  (1,006,161) (18.4) 4.6
Other expenses HAt (441,814) (7.2) (382,490) (7.0) 15.5
Other gains and losses H e kBB (206,708) (3.4) (53,655) (1.0) 2853
Finance costs BT FS B AR (92,562) (1.5) (98,310) (1.8) (5.8)
(Loss) profit before tax AT (& 18) FIH (213,653) (3.5) 67,177 1.2 (418.0)
Income tax expense Fris it (69,480) (1.1) (55,692) (1.0) 24.8
(Loss) profit for the year F A (E18) FIH (283,133) (4.6) 11,485 0.2 (2,565.2)
Total comprehensive FAZHEFAX)
(expense) income for LONE -
the year (283,133) (4.6) 11,485 0.2 (2,565.2)
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Year ended 31 December Year-
BE+-A=+t—-HLEE on-year
2021 2020 change
—B--F —T_%HF R £,
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
ARBT R ARETT
(Loss) profit for the year AT ALEMEFR
attributable to: (B5#8) FA :
Owners of the Company RRATER A (293,212) (4.8) 1,837 0.0 (16,061.5)
Non-controlling interest FEIE AR 2= 10,079 0.2 9,648 0.2 4.5
(283,133) (4.6) 11,485 0.2 (2,565.2)
Total comprehensive RTATEGEZE
(expense) income (BIXX) R A48
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARER A (293,212) (4.8) 1,837 0.0 (16,061.5)
Non-controlling interest FE 1 AR A 2 10,079 0.2 9,648 0.2 4.5
(283,133) (4.6) 11,485 0.2 (2,565.2)
(Loss) earnings per share &K (H#) &7
— basic — &K
(RMB cents per share) (BIRARESD) (27.28) 0.17
— diluted — e
(RMB cents per share) (BIRARES) (27.28) 0.17
Revenue KA

The Group’s revenue increased by 12.7% from RMB5,455.2 million
in 2020 to RMB6,147.3 million in 2021, of which revenue generated
by Coucou increased by 39.3% from RMB1,689.1 million in 2020 to
RMB2,353.7 million in 2021. Restaurant sales had improved as Coucou
sales had increased significantly.
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Other income

The Group’s other income decreased by 39.2% from RMB170.7 million
in 2020 to RMB103.8 million in 2021, primarily due to less value-added
tax exemption related to the Pandemic in 2021.

Raw materials and consumables used

The Group’s raw materials and consumables increased by 9.9% from
RMB2,130.2 million in 2020 to RMB2,341.3 million in 2021 primarily as
a result of business expansion which led to the opening of more new
restaurants in 2021 and also a result of inflation in raw materials. As
a percentage of the Group’s revenue, the Group’s raw materials and
consumables decreased from 39.0% in 2020 to 38.1% in 2021 as the
Pandemic was much worse in 2020 which led to more food waste that
increased the food cost.

Staff costs

The Group's staff costs increased by 23.8% from RMB1,478.1 million in
2020 to RMB1,829.7 million in 2021, while the number of the Group's
employees decreased from 31,371 as at 31 December 2020 to 28,536
in 2021. As a percentage of the Group's revenue, the Group's staff
costs increased from 27.1% in 2020 to 29.8% in 2021, primarily due
to no further reduction in 2021 on national social insurance benefit as
in 2020 and Coucou continued to expand and more restaurant teams
needed to be hired.

Property rentals and related expenses

The Group's property rentals and related expenses increased by 35.7%
from RMB219.6 million in 2020 to RMB298.1 million in 2021, mainly
attributable to (i) landlords being less willing to provide rent-free
periods; and (ii) the Group continued to open new restaurants,
especially Coucou restaurants. As a percentage of the Group’s revenue,
the Group’s property rentals and related expenses increased from 4.0%
in 2020 to 4.8% in 2021.
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Utilities expenses

The Group’s utilities expenses increased by 5.9% from RMB190.3 million
in 2020 to RMB201.6 million in 2021 as more new Coucou restaurants
were opened. As a percentage of the Group’s revenue, utilities expenses
remained stable at 3.3% in 2021 as compared with 3.5% in 2020.

Depreciation and amortization

The Group’s depreciation and amortization increased by 4.6% from
RMB1,006.2 million in 2020 to RMB1,052.9 million in 2021, primarily
as a result of business expansion which led to the opening of more
new restaurants in 2021. As the Group closed 229 poorly performed
Xiabuxiabu restaurants, depreciation and amortization as percentage of
revenue decreased from 18.4% in 2020 to 17.1% in 2021.

Other expenses

The Group's other expenses increased by 15.5% from RMB382.5 million
in 2020 to RMB441.8 million in 2021. As a percentage of the Group’'s
revenue, the Group’s other expenses increased from 7.0% in 2020 to
7.2% in 2021, such increase was primarily due to (i) increase in travel
expenses due to ease of Pandemic relative to that in 2020; (ii) increase
in professional service fees; and (iii) stock liquidation and loss from
failure of restaurant opening.

Other gains and losses

The Group recorded other net losses of RMB206.7 million in 2021, as
compared to other net losses of RMB53.7 million in 2020. Such increase
was primarily due to increase in loss on closure of 229 restaurants and
also impairment was recognized for some of the existing operations that
were poorly performed operations.

Finance costs

The Group recorded finance costs of RMB92.6 million in 2021, mainly

derived from interest on lease liabilities of RMB89.2 million.
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(Loss) profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before tax decreased
from RMB67.2 million in 2020 to a loss of RMB213.7 million in 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by 24.8% from RMB55.7
million in 2020 to RMB69.5 million in 2021, primarily as a result of
no deferred tax asset recognising in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences and the reversal of deferred tax asset
for loss making subsidiaries of the Group.

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the Group's
profit for the year attribute to owners of the Company decreased from
RMB1.8 million in 2020 to a loss of RMB293.2 million in 2021.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In 2021, the Group financed its operations primarily through cash from
the Group’s operations and bank borrowings. The Group intends to
finance its expansion and business operations by internal resources and
through organic and sustainable growth.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB920.5 million as compared with RMB1,097.3 million as at
31 December 2020, which primarily consisted of cash on hand and
demand deposits and which were mainly denominated in Renminbi (as
to 87.9%), U.S. dollars (as to 10.7%), Hong Kong dollars (as to 1.2%),
and Singapore dollars (as to 0.2%).

In view of the Group’s currency mix, the Group currently does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency risk. The Group’s management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and
considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should such
need arise.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

In 2019, the Group’s subsidiary, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management

0., Ltd. (MR HEMEIEGR A A]) (“Xiabu Beijing”) acquired
certain property, machines and fixtures at a consideration of RMB96.1
million from two non-related individual third parties (the “Sellers”)
through obtaining ownership of Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat
Co., Ltd. (EMABHBEFIREEAEEREME LT ("Yishun”) of
which Yishun has become a subsidiary of the Group. One of the sellers
of Yishun, Xiabu Beijing and a third-party trust company entered into
several trust agreements under which, the seller entrust the third-party
trust company to set up a trust plan (“the Trust”) and transferred
RMB60.0 million to the Trust on 10 September 2019. According to
the Trust agreements, the Trust should complete the purchase of the
Company’s shares of RMB60.0 million from the market within the
portfolio construction period which has been eventually completed on
11 November 2019 (the “end of portfolio construction period”). The
Trust would be terminated within three years since the end of portfolio
construction period. According to the Trust agreements, the investment
principal of RMB60.0 million and a fixed return of RMB2.4 million per
annum was guaranteed by Xiabu Beijing and the seller is entitled to
additional returns under specific condition based on the price of the
stock shares, while Xiabu Beijing will take the residual return/loss from
the Trust accordingly, on the net settlement in cash, if any.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s right and obligation in
the Trust constitute a derivative which is based on the stock price of the
Company. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the derivative was
RMB15.8 million (As at 31 December 2020: RMB36.3 million), which
was recorded as a financial asset measured at FVTPL, which represented
the fair value changes of the derivative. The fair value change is
recognised in the line items of other gains and losses.

The Group believes such strategic acquisition enables the Group to
further its farm-to-table initiatives and tighten its control on the quality
of lamb, which is a major ingredient for the Group and better control in
its cost.

The Group purchased additional short-term investment products with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB665.0 million from 1 January 2022
up to the date of this report which remained outstanding as at the date
of this report. None of these subscriptions, individually or collectively
when aggregation is required constitute a disclosable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had short term bank borrowings of
RMB75.8 million that were made in Renminbi at a fixed interest rate of
3.85% and are expected to mature within 1 year.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 3.8%. Gearing
ratio was calculated by dividing bank and other borrowings by total
equity as at the same date and multiply by 100%.

Capital expenditures

The Group made payment for the capital expenditures of RMB439.0
million in 2021 for new restaurant opening, refurbishment of existing
restaurants and purchase of new equipment. In 2020, the Group's
capital expenditures was RMB404.6 million. The Group’s capital
expenditure in 2021 was funded primarily by cash generated from its
operations. In 2021, the Group opened a total of 95 new restaurants.
As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any charge over its
assets.
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Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
unrecorded contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did
not conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. The
Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major
capital assets or other businesses in accordance with the Listing Rules.
However, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities for
business development.

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 28,536 employees.
In particular, 400 employees worked at the Group’s food processing
facilities, 3,146 were responsible for restaurant management, 23,891
were restaurant staff and 1,099 were administrative staff.

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to the Group's
restaurant employees to manage employee attrition. The Group also
offers profit sharing in the form of discretionary performance bonus as
further incentive to the Group's restaurant staff if a specific restaurant
target is achieved. The Group’s staff costs include all salaries and
benefits payable to all the Group’s employees and staff, including the
Group’s executive Directors, headquarters staff and food processing
facilities staff.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total staff costs of the
Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances, provident funds
and share incentive schemes) amounted to RMB1,829.7 million,
representing approximately 29.8% of the total revenue of the Group.
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Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan, options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 715,970 shares (representing approximately 0.07%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report) granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2021.

The Company has also adopted the restricted share unit scheme (the
“RSU Scheme”) which became effective upon the date of listing of the
Company (the “Listing Date”). Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited has been appointed as the trustee for the administration
of the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme (the
“RSU Trustee”). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the RSU
Trustee purchased an aggregate of 1,300,000 shares at a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$13.0 million from the market.
The shares are held on trust for the benefit of the participants of the
RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participants”) pursuant to the rules of the
RSU Scheme and the trust deed entered into between the Company
and the RSU Trustee. Such shares will be used as awards for relevant
RSU Participants upon the grant and vesting of restricted share units
("RSUs"”). As at 31 December 2021, RSUs in respect of an aggregate of
3,743,029 shares (representing approximately 0.34% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report)
granted by the Company under the RSU Scheme remained outstanding.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the RSU Scheme,
together with, among others, the details of the options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the RSUs granted under the RSU
Scheme, will be set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.028
per share, amounting to approximately a total of RMB30 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend”). The
2021 Final Dividend is intended to be paid out of the Company’s share
premium account and is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM").
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DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (& 3 #), aged 58, is the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer. He was appointed
as chairman and executive Director on 14 May 2008 and appointed
as chief executive officer on 20 May 2021. He is primarily responsible
for formulating overall development strategies and business plans, and
managing overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ho is also a director
of each of the subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of
experiences in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Ho founded our
business in 1998 and continues to oversee the management of our
operations and business. He established our first restaurant in Beijing
in 1999 and has guided our operations and business in adhering to
quality and innovation in our operations since our establishment.
Mr. Ho was awarded the “Most Influential Entrepreneur of Food and
Beverage Industry in China in 2015 2015 EHhHERFATE N1
#R)" and the "Most Influential Entrepreneur of Hotpot Industry in
China in 2015 (2015 FEHBEANMITEZAFE NP EK)" by China
Cuisine Association (Bl Z£F1<). Mr. Ho also serves as a director
of the Eighth Session of the Board of Directors of Beijing Overseas
Friendship Association and has been the Vice Chairman of the Beijing
Association of Taiwanese-Invested Enterprises. Mr. Ho is the husband
of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, our non-executive Director. Mr. Ho is also a
substantial shareholder (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chen Su-Yin (BR&E %), aged 58, is a non-executive Director. She
was appointed to our Board on 12 December 2012 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advices and guidance on the business
development of our Group. Ms. Chen is also a director of each of the
subsidiaries of our Group. Ms. Chen has continued to provide guidance
on the range and variety of foods offered and the enhancement of the
tastes and flavors of our foods and the development of our dipping
sauces and our hot and spicy soup base since our establishment. Our
hot and spicy soup base was awarded “Beijing Specialty Cuisine” by
Beijing Cuisine Association. Ms. Chen graduated from Taipei Ching-
Chwan Commercial High School in June 1981. Ms. Chen is the spouse
of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi.
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Mr. Zhang Chi (& 3th) , aged 46, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed to our Board with effect from 23 August 2017 and is
primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the
business development of our Group. Mr. Zhang is a Managing Director
at General Atlantic and currently serves on the firm’s Management
Committee. Mr. Zhang joined General Atlantic in May 2016 and heads
the firm’s business in China. Mr. Zhang has served on the board
of directors of various portfolio companies of General Atlantic. He
currently serves on the boards of Dingdong (Cayman) Limited, Quantum
Bloom Company Ltd. and Quantum Bloom Group Ltd., and Ocean Link.
Mr. Zhang also serves on the Investment Committee of Ocean Voyage.
He previously served on the boards of Futu, NetEase Cloud Music, China
Reading Limited, SouFun Holdings Limited, Yashili International Holdings
Ltd., Plateno Group, Crystal Orange Hotel Group, Asia Medical, Today
Inc., Little Golden Star Education Group Holdings Limited, Kaiyuan New
Century Hotel Group and AnNeng Logistics Group. He also served as
a board member for both the general partner and the management
company of Carlyle Beijing Partner — RMB Fund. Prior to joining General
Atlantic, Mr. Zhang was a Global Partner and Managing Director at The
Carlyle Group, where he focused on investment opportunities in Asia
from 2006 to 2016. Before joining Carlyle in 2006, Mr. Zhang was a
Vice President of M&A at Credit Suisse, based in the firm’s Hong Kong
office. Prior to that, he was a Vice President in the Investment Banking
Division at China International Capital Corporation Limited in Beijing.
Mr. Zhang received an M.A. in economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics.
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Ms. Li Jie (Z£3£), aged 41, was appointed as an alternate Director to
Mr. Zhang Chi with effect from 30 June 2018. Ms. Li is currently an
Operating Principal at General Atlantic as part of the firm’s Resources
Group and focuses on providing financial and analytical expertise to
the portfolio companies in China. Prior to joining General Atlantic in
2018, Ms. Li was the chief financial officer at Global Logistic Properties
(GLP) in the Financial Services segment. Prior to that, she was the
chief financial officer of Yunmanman (YMM), a logistic platform
start-up company. Ms. Li also has over 10 years financial due diligence
experience with PricewaterhouseCoopers Transaction Services in
China and Australia merger and acquisition markets. Ms. Li earned
her bachelor degree in international journalism from the Shanghai
International Studies University as well as a second degree in civil law
from Fudan University in July 2002.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (B Z Z), aged 67, was an independent
non-executive Director. She was appointed to our Board on 28
November 2014 and has retired on 1 April 2022. Ms. Hsieh has over 30
years of experience in the auditing and accounting in various industries,
including food retailing, manufacturing and processing, public utilities
and airlines. Ms. Hsieh joined YUM! China in 1996 and was the chief
financial officer of YUM! China from 2000 to 2012. Before joining
YUM! China, she worked with Kraft Foods (Asia Pacific) Ltd., Pillsbury
Canada and China Airlines. Ms. Hsieh served as an independent
non-executive director of Dongpeng Holdings Company Limited (former
stock code: 3386) from November 2013 until it was delisted from the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in June 2016 and as a non-executive
director of Little Sheep Group Limited (former stock code: 968) from
November 2009 until it was delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in February 2012. Ms. Hsieh received a Master’'s degree in
Business Administration from University of Toronto in June 1980 and
the title of Certified Management Accountant (CMA) in July 1985.
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Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (§/%#8), aged 62, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed to our Board on 28 November
2014. Mr. Hon has over 35 years of experience in accounting,
treasury and financial management. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of 361 Degrees International Limited (stock code:
1361), Daphne International Holdings Limited (stock code: 210) and
SinoMab Bioscience Limited (stock code: 3681), which are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He was an independent non-executive
director of Jimu Group Limited (stock code: 8187) from December
2017 to May 2021. He also served as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 620) from December 2016 to September 2018.
Prior to that, Mr. Hon was appointed to various senior financial
positions in a number of companies, including as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Auto Italia Holdings Limited
(stock code: 720) from June 2013 to March 2016, as the chief financial
officer of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from
December 2010 to September 2012, as the chief financial officer of K.
Wah Construction Materials Limited from September 2008 to December
2010 and as the group finance director (latest position) of TOM Group
Limited (stock code: 2383) from June 2001 to February 2008. Before
moving to commercial sector, Mr. Hon worked with an international
accounting firm for more than seven years. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Hon
obtained his Master's degree in Business Administration (Financial
Services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in August 2004.
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Ms. Cheung Sze Man (R &), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director. She was appointed to our Board on 28
November 2014. Ms. Cheung has accumulated audit experience in
an international accounting firm and has substantial experiences in
corporate finance, accounting and human resource management by
holding senior positions in private and public listed companies. She has
also served as directors of listed companies in Hong Kong. She was an
executive director of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 651 and formerly known as Wonson International Holdings
Ltd), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
November 2006 to November 2007. She was an executive director of
ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 199 and formerly known
as Cheung Tai Hong), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from May 2004 to May 2005. She also served as the
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (stock code:
1003 and currently known as Huanxi Media Group Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from November
2011 to April 2014. Ms. Cheung is a member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Ms. Cheung
graduated from the University of Auckland in New Zealand with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in May
1995. She also obtained a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Bradford in the United Kingdom in July 2012.

Mr. Kot Man Tat (& 323£), aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed to our Board on 1 April 2022. Mr. Kot has
over 20 years' experience in accounting and financial management.
He has been the chief financial officer of Joy Spreader Interactive
Technology Limited (stock code: 6988, currently known as Joy Spreader
Group Inc.) from 24 May 2021. He was the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu
(China) Food Co., Limited (M IF (AE) B ZAER A, a
60%-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 27 May 2017 to 9 March
2022, the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin)
Co., Limited (M MR IHE KRB 1B (R&) BR A 7A), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, from 29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022,
the supervisor of Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Limited
(BE(R2E)EREEAFMR AR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from 10 May 2018 to 9 March 2022, the supervisor of
Guang Qi (Tianjin) Commercial Management Limited (3¢ = (X E) /g
XEEAR AR, a company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi,
the substantial shareholder and an executive director of the Company,
from 29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022, and the supervisor of Tea
Mi Tea Catering Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, from 20 July 2018 to 9 March 2022. He was the
chief financial officer of China Zhongwang Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1333) from 28 June 2016 to 1 May 2021. He served as the vice
president from June 2008 to June 2011 and the senior vice president
from March 2013 to April 2016 of General Altantic (Beijing) Investments
Consultancy Limited. He was the head of Capital Market of Zhongsheng

Group Holdings Co. Limited from 1 July 2011 to 28 February 2013.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBE

Prior to this, Mr. Kot worked in Ernst & Young from 4 April 2001 to
30 November 2004 and KPMG from 12 August 1999 to 1 April 2001.
Mr. Kot graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1996
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.

Senior Management

Mr. Feng Hui-Huang (&), aged 57, is the vice president of the
finance department of the Group. He joined the Group in November
2021. Mr. Feng possesses years of experience in financial management
and corporate management. Before joining the Group, he served in
several enterprises, including as deputy general manager of the general
manager office of Shanghai Yashi Catering Management Co. Ltd. ( /&
HEZLREER AR AA), a subsidiary of Bon Matin Paris Group, and
as financial controller of Shanghai Cimic Tile Co., Ltd. (_E 8 Hy K 55 i 5
be) Z NS 17 B PR A B]) (stock code: 002162, currently known as Shanghai
Everjoy Health Group Co., Ltd., listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
etc. He currently serves as supervisors in Shanghai Yashi Catering
Management Co. Ltd. (E/BHEEEREEFR A a]), Shanghai Maiya
Food Co. Ltd. (F/ B EBH R MHAR A A), Xinyi Food (Chengdu) Co.
Ltd. (IRIBER & (&) BBR A 7)) and Chengda Catering Management
(Sichuan) Co. Ltd. (BxZEZSEE (M)I|) AR A 7]). Mr. Feng obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from University of Memphis
in December 1993.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the operation of casual restaurants and providing
catering services in China. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended are set out on pages 99 to 105.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Performance of the Group’s Restaurants

In 2021, the Group opened 52 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 43 Coucou
restaurants. As at 31 December 2021, the Group owned and operated
841 Xiabuxiabu restaurants in 132 cities over 21 provinces and
autonomous regions and in three centrally administered municipalities,
namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai, in China. The Group also owned
and operated 183 Coucou restaurants in 42 cities over 19 provinces, in
three centrally administered municipalities, namely Beijing, Tianjin and
Shanghai and in Hong Kong.

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year is set out
in the section head “Business Review and Outlook — Overall Business
and Financial Performance” from pages 12 to 18 of this annual report
which constitute part of this directors’ report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company complies with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations, and is committed to promoting environmentally-friendly
operation. The Company attaches great emphasis to resource
conservation, and incorporates the concept of green operation into
every aspect including production, office and restaurant operation. With
emphasis on waste management and in response to the government'’s
policy, the Company proactively implements waste sort-out practice and
restriction on the use of plastic products, and takes measures to reduce
waste generated from its operation, with an aim to promote harmonious
development of the Company and the environment. Discussions on the
Group's environmental policies and performance during the financial
year are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report 2021 of the Company.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company maintains its communication with stakeholders,
establishes diverse communication channels, continuously listens
to the expectations and demands of stakeholders, and responds to
their opinions in a timely manner. Details of the relationship with
stakeholders are set out in the ESG Report 2021 of the Company

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects and have obtained all material licenses, approvals
and permits from relevant regulatory authorities for all of its restaurants
opened in 2021. During the financial year, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations by the
Group.

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 76 to 92 of this
annual report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

FERREAEEM

The Company has following principal risks and uncertainties with their AXAFR-_ZT-—BHEEANEE T 7
respective key controls and mitigation measures in the financial year FEREBETEEM SRS EHZSE

2021:

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERBRTEEME

R BRI B R AR MR AT

Controls and Mitigation

B RERBER

Uncertainty as to the expansion into new
geographical markets

B BT R SRR B0 T RETE £

The continued recurrence of the Pandemic has directly
affected the stability of our operations in the new
locations, at the same time affected the stability of supply
and price of products (including imported products) and
affected the customer traffic of these new restaurants. We
will continue to closely monitor the development of the
Pandemic and to cooperate with the local government’s
policy to control Pandemic, at the same time negotiate rent
free arrangements with landlords during the operational
disruption period.
RERBEEXZENEABTHORKENRENL  BRAKF
ZIME(BRENER) MERNEE R E8FER
ERBEROBEE RMMSEETVRIRBEER
VRAKEAEMBEANNERR  RKRETBEBFRX
TEMENReEL -

Uncertainty as to the opening and profitability
of the new operations

BRARRLEEMEREN T HEE T

We closely monitor the profitability of the newly opened
restaurants, through marketing campaign, membership
campaign to attract customers to the restaurants. At the
same time launching sets so customers can experience the
value for money that the brand provides to enhance the
continue visit of the customers to drive through profits at
our restaurants.

BB IFAEBRNRNERL BETSHERE &8
EoBEARSIEELREERE RN HLEEER
BERESSMELNER ENETHEEETDHERK
ORIV

Uncertainty as to the performance of the
Group's current restaurants

BRASER R ERRROTHEE ML

Due to the unstable condition of the Pandemic, the local
governments take on a strict approach to suspend half
of the dine in or does not allow dine in entirely, in some
districts where Pandemic is severe even take out was fully
suspended too. If Pandemic continues linger on, we will
consider closing down those restaurants with consecutive
negative cash flows for 3 months.

HEERE BHMBABRBEZEZMITIRNER  HEE
BREFHGRERRYATREILER  ME LM REBR
FBRE EEERIXEB2ENRR EREBEHERE
MATRRT  THREZEMMAEE=-HARERASENERE -
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Controls and Mitigation

BHRERBER

TERBRTREME

Risks related to site selection for new restaurants

BREERELOER

Using information system to intellectually integrate with the
big data that composes of data that includes successful and
failure when opening restaurants to increase the brand’s
chances of choosing successful location.

MAEMRS  BEEARMAEKRNEIHBIENER
BV REUR - ST m B AL BT K o

Expand the nationwide collaboration by working with the
top 15 developers, to reduce the cost of rental by effectively
exposing the location and to choose the location and set
the terms during the very initial stage of negotiation.
BARE2EMNEBEEIE RANSRAEMAE  ERTEAMK
I AT AHR & 1 BR 6 JE DA PR (B AE & A AR DA R 8 S i 1k (2
BERBEEBRR -

Take advantage of the brand’s strength, to increase the
rent free period and acquire renovation subsidy when
negotiating rental terms with landlords in tier 3 and 4 cities
FE3-AEWTRAAEER - ARANBEERS @mE - BINK
LB MG RERmBIR

Risks related to quality control and food safety

BEREEEH &

The company has always adhered to food safety and
quality assurance, by establishing and improved food safety
risk assessment and control mechanisms, strictly select
suppliers and choose only high-quality suppliers in the
industry. We continue to implement quality management,
directly source from upstream, establish a production base,
enforce checking strict control when receiving goods,
ensure on time delivery, strengthen restaurant quality
control, implement central kitchen factory management
and conduct management review to strengthen all aspects
of the supply chain, build an all comprehensive system and
other fundamental groundwork in order to deliver safe,
healthy and quality assured products to our customers.
RRAFREBTRAREMEERE BUTERMETE
R arfh R EEHG BRHEREAYRERITREE
HER FETHEEERERE £EEMER  BIE
BUmR - EREX EREREERE PABFIKRERE
EHEENDEESERDETREETENRL 27U
BREEFEARTE REUMEFP2BER: #F HE
ZEHEmM e
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation
TERBRTREM 12 5 I 4% R 4R B

Risks related to increasing food price, labor costs e
and commercial real estate rent

EHERMER AIKARBEMEES LR
2 Bz

Pandemic has been having a global effect, it has seriously
affected the global productivity level, resulting in price
inflation on commodity prices especially in agricultural by
products such as corn, soy beans and beef. In order to cope
with this cost price pressure, procurement team have to
work professionally to demonstrate their sourcing capability
and negotiating skills.

EREBEHBCA EREFERRNEEZTHKYF
HAFREAmERTHELER HREX - 7(4&44’?@}—
BlEm RTEHRBRALRE) RBABREHEZR
SR I MABREN ©

1. Sourcing from upstream: To source directly from
upstream directly in order to minimize the middle
agency fee during the production season.

RERE  EEFTHORE  JRBHEERE BT
MIRERX o

2. Signing annual contract: During production season,
when the pricing is right, sign annual procurement
contract with supplier as soon as possible to develop
long term strategic relationship.

B 2FERBER: E4ERE - BRAEBENRRE -
BREBMREZTFERBAR  ERRABBAE
RAA o

3. Introduce competition: Explore the top suppliers in
the industry, expand the suppliers pool, establish
competition on product price.

SIABE  HETXRBAXCRARER BEAHERD
Mo TEKEmERBRSE

4. Develop alternatives: To source from different
locations to find alternatives with the similar quality as
a backup plan.
FMEEAR : EnEHERNAIRE SRIAREMNE
miEBRER -

5.  Strategically reserve scarce ingredients: Following the
deterioration of the international situation, the Group
will take action to reserve ingredients by adding on
purchasing volume and increase the reserve for its
core ingredients in order to hedge against the risks on
out of stock and price inflation.
BERFEAERRIERME : BEBRTVZE-—L B
EIES l’f?/uﬁﬁﬂf%xﬂimj(ﬁ“ EXMAARE -
S MR (B E R
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation

TRABRTREM BERIRERER

Uncertainty as to how Covid-19 pandemic o In addition to strictly comply with the national and
will impact the restaurant operations provincial policies and requirements on normalizing the
8 R BE B E BT AL TR IR R B i AR R Pandemic by setting up a leadership group to prevent
B B ERLE and control Pandemic, to setup a manual for “Preventive
measure on managing cold chain food products”, strictly
check all imported cold chain food produce, strengthen
the management of disinfecting process on supply chain,
storage and delivery, regularly conduct nucleic aid test for
the staff, environment and products, restaurants operations
team to ensure that all Pandemic measures are taken place
in order to protect the safety on the tip of customer’s
tongue.
BREBEREZMEAMREEREHEBRER - KL
BB ZEEE/NE  THECRRRMAEHEEREFM)
BEERMAENLEAREL  MARAYE BRKEH
SHEFEEXRGER THHLAERMIRAE RE-
M ETZERR ERKERHZERENEREE T
BT ERENT D -

Risk related to labor cost inflation o Faced with all the uncertainty as a result of the severe

EBAANKAE LR R R Pandemic, the Company has reshuffled the different roles
in the office and the human resources allocation at the
restaurant level, through a strictly controlled scheduling
of the team to integrate the workload in order to lower
the number of staff needed to improve efficiency, and to
reasonably allocate the proportion between part timers
and service team. Going forward, we shall also adjust the
employment strategy at any time depending on business
needs and the Pandemic situation.
HHREZENTEENE  AATSENMERD ZH S
REBBASENANEE  BBEBREEANBERES
HEEGHNIEREEAUREBEABEELRSHE - I
CERELBELRRBAEGEL KRR bEREERE
PRI A SRR PN
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Impact of the Pandemic

Following the development of the Pandemic, central and local
governments implemented control measures and restrictions on
consumption areas which affected the Group’s business greatly. In
order to comply with the government measures and to ensure the
safety of its staff and customers, the Group gradually suspended some
of its restaurant operations. As the Central Government had taken an
effective approach to contain the outbreak in China and situation had
eased up, the Group started to gradually reopen some of these closed
restaurants, the Group’s business has been recovering gradually.

. As the Pandemic continues in the form of Omicron, there are still
uncertainties towards the future outlook, the Group is learning
from the past two years and will adopt a cautious and modest
restaurant opening strategy, choosing locations only where the
Group sees there is sufficient customer traffic to ensure the
restaurants are able to generate normal profitability level and can
generate stable source of cash flow. In 2021, there was a huge
change to business environment, the Group altered its strategy,
for reasons such as: closing down non profitable restaurants that
are located at old commercial locations where sales dropped as
a result of lower customer traffic and in locations which do not
match the brand’s image;

o Took on a proactive approach to negotiate rental free concessions
with owners and landlords in order to reduce the operating
overheads of the Company;

. During the period where dine-in business was affected, the Group
puts in additional efforts to promote online delivery business,
rolling out fresh ingredients and hotpot deliveries. In 2021,
revenue generated from delivery business contributed RMB355.0
million;

o The Group started to relaunch the “value for money” set menu as
it is the core strength and roll out bar seating whereby customers
can dine safely and economically. The Group believes alongside
with its branding and marketing initiatives, the Group will be able
to strive through this Pandemic and be able to stand out in this
highly competitive environment;

o The Company understands that at this challenging times, it is
imperative to remain financially healthy, therefore maintaining
a healthy cash flow position even during the Pandemic, as at 31
December 2021, the Company had bank balances and cash of
RMB920.5 million.
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Outlook for 2022

In 2022, the Group will continue its efforts to achieve its goal of
becoming the leading operator of Chinese catering industry and
maintaining its leading position as a hotpot restaurant chain operator
in China. Discussions on the outlook for 2022 are set out in the section
head “Business Review and Outlook — Outlook for 2022" in this annual
report.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the 2021 Final Dividend
of RMBO0.028 per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: RMB0.028 per share) to be paid out of the Company’s
share premium account. Such payment of dividend will be subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) at the
AGM to be held on 1 June 2022 and is payable to those Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 13
June 2022. Together with the interim dividend of RMB0.028 per share
paid in October 2021, the total distribution of dividend by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 will be RMB0.056 per share (31
December 2020: RMB0.056 per share). The 2021 Final Dividend will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars, the exchange rate
of which will be calculated based on the rate of exchange as quoted
to the Company by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited at its middle rate of exchange prevailing on 13 June 2022. The
2021 Final Dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, is
expected to be paid on or about 21 June 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, distributions
of dividends are determined at the discretion of the Board. In
determining whether any distribution shall be made and the amount
of dividends, the Board shall take into account the Company’s results
of operations, cash flows, financial condition, capital requirements,
business plans and prospects and any other conditions which the
Board deems relevant. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of dividends will be subject to compliance with the Company's
constitutional documents and companies law of the Cayman Islands.

The Company will evaluate its dividend policy and distributions made
in any particular year in light of its financial position, the prevailing
economic climate and expectations about the future macroeconomic
environment and business performance.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands comprise
the share premium and retained earnings totaling approximately
RMB272.1 million (2020: RMB336.8 million).

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Particulars of the bank and other loans of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, there was no charge on the Group’s assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

For details of the shares purchased by the RSU Trustee for the purpose
of the RSU Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021, please
refer to the section headed “Restricted Share Unit Scheme"” below and
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-IPO SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

On 28 August 2009, a pre-IPO share incentive plan (the “Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan”) of the Company was approved and adopted
by the then Shareholders. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan is to promote the success of our Company and the interests of our
shareholders by providing a means through which our Company may
grant equity-based incentives to attract, motivate, retain and reward
certain officers, employees, directors, consultant or advisor who renders
or has rendered bona fide services to the Company, and other eligible
persons (the “Eligible Person”) and to further link the interests of
the grantees or recipients of the options (“Options”) or share awards
(“Share Awards”, together with the Options, collectively referred to as
the “Awards").

Each Award is evidenced by an award agreement, which shall contain
the terms for such Award, as well as any other terms, provisions, or
restrictions that may be imposed on the Award, and in the case of
Options, any shares subject to the Option, and in each case subject
to the applicable provisions and limitations of the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan. The maximum number of shares which may be issued
and/or delivered pursuant to all Awards granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan must not exceed 40,000,000 shares (representing
approximately 3.70% of the total issued shares of the Company
(“Shares”) as at the date of this annual report).

As at 31 December 2021, Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
715,970 Shares (representing approximately 0.07% of the total issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report) have been granted by the
Company and are outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.
No Share Award has been granted or agreed to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan since the adoption of the plan.

BRXARBERRGRBE S

R-ZBEEARENA-+NB KA TE
RRRRIEST AR RAR B RARME
BRI EREFE ((BEXABEBEEAR
ERBE]) BAARBEERRMDLE
BFrEEERBRE—EIX  SFQ
AR AR E A ERE A RE AR S|
HE - mERERETEARBE - EE -
EF MARARHKABRERHEFRY
MEMXBAAREMEEERAL(E
B ALT])) Wi —PEEARALBR
1 ([BRE]) IR m R ([ROEE] -
HERERERBEAIRB) EXENT
5 T HEB) AR R EVS ACTD KRR
RAE o

BIHEEHURBREELSRSE - ZFWH
EEHNEZERH TGN RE
fa] E At G 5K ~ 63T 3k AT B 5% 22 B e
RS- R (EREMS) BERED
EoEMky  EEEBATHEXS
RAFBEER RGN EE B ME B K
X RBHIRER - REEXNAFEENRK
MEBAEBETAREMBERDT T
Bk ARATHNBRHDEE ERTE
{8 #840,000,0000% % 7 (fh 7 AN F 3% A
HARARZEHEEHTHRD ((RE] Y
3.70%) °

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H '  KAQ7F
EREBEE XA FAEE ARG ZEN R R
A R EEA H715,9700 B (FE A
FHRAP2IHBEEITRMDL0.07% ) 1
R ZEERBESNRTE-BEX
NP B E AR (D SR B AT B & B AN LA K
BEBREZATEE kR 2R B A%
1 82E -

50 EEEEREE (PE) ERER AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.




Directors’ Report
ExEWRE

An Eligible Person whom an Option is granted in accordance with
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the relevant award
agreement (the “Grantee”) is not required to pay for the grant of any
Option under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.

No Grantee shall be entitled to any rights, interest or benefits attached
to the underlying Shares of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan unless and until the Option in respect of such Shares has
been vested on him/her and exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan. There is no maximum entitlement
for each Eligible Person under the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan although no Eligible Person under the rules of the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan has been granted Options exceeding 1.3% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

An Option shall not be exercisable on any date unless such terms and
conditions (including, without limitation, any performance criteria,
passage of time or other factors or any combination thereof which the
exercise of the Option shall be conditional) as set out in the relevant
award agreement, if any, are satisfied and to the extent that the Option
has vested.

The exercise price in respect of any Option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan is set forth in the relevant award agreement, and
the exercise price of an Option shall be no less than the greatest of:

(i)  the par value of the Shares of the Company; and
(i)  the value as reasonably determined by the administrator,

provided that no Shares newly-issued by the Company may be issued
for less than the minimum lawful consideration for such Shares or for
consideration other than that permitted by applicable law.

An Option, once exercisable and unless the administrator otherwise
expressly provides, shall remain exercisable until the expiration or earlier
termination of the Option. Each Option shall expire not more than
ten years after its date of grant. No fewer than 1,000 Shares may be
purchased on exercise of any Option at one time unless the number of
Shares purchased is the total number of Shares at the time available for
purchase under the Option.
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All of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan were 8 #8 & X A B 2% & B f% () 22 B) =t 21 1%
granted in four different tranches on 31 August 2009, 17 May 2011, 24 HW2ERES> OHF L - FH B H
December 2012 and 21 March 2014. As at 31 December 2021, there S RlA-ZZEZTAENA=+—H =F

are altogether 6 Option holders of the Group. Details of the Options e ST e fal A e Do e b
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and outstanding as at 31 = ar N E = e R e R o e
December 2021 and details of the vesting period, exercise period and RZ-ZZE-—F+-_A=+—H K&£H
the exercise price are set out below: BEREEE AL R = —

T-A=+t—H REEXRAZBEH
P fn B2 Bt &I 4R H e i) R 1T (68 /O B8 A 4
HEREEH TEHARTEEFREH

MTR :
Weighted average
closing price
Number of the Shares Number
of Shares immediately of Shares
represented before the dates represented by
by the Options Exercise on which the Cancelled Lapsed  the Options at
at 1 January price Exercised Options were during during 31 December
Name of Option holder 2021  Date of grant (RMB)  during the year  exercised (HKD)" the year the year 2021
ZRBRE
RZB=-% TEERA RZB=-%
-A-8 B3 & TZA=t-H
BRESRN TE T mE BRESR
BRESAALS RHEHE REEH (AE%T) FRTE (8m)" FREH FRENR HRGEE
Director
EZ
Zhao ‘Yi o 1,627,890 21 March 2014 2.78 1,429,971 18.98 197,919 - -
e —Z-PmF=A=1-H
1,627,890 1,429,971 197,919 - -
Senior management members
of the Group
FEESHREEEAS
6 other employees of the Group 7,200 17 May 2011 1.79 7,200 20.75 - - -
REEMNEMES “Z——FRAt+tA
33,020 24 December 2012 1.84 18,620 15.12 - - 14,400
“B-"E+-AZtHA
1,392,954 21 March 2014 2.78 651,799 10.01 39,585 - 701,570
—Z-RE=R=+-R
1,433,174 677,619 39,585 - 715,970
Total 7,200 17 May 2011 1.79 7,200 20.75 - - -
@zt “T-—£RFt+tA
33,020 24 December 2012 1.84 18,620 15.12 - - 14,400
“B-"Et-AZtHA
3,020,844 21 March 2014 2.78 2,081,770 16.17 237,504 - 701,570
ZE-MEZAZf-H
3,061,064 2,107,590 237,504 - 715,970
Note: Bt 5
(1) As aresult of the exercise of the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive (1) HBERERAMRBERRMEE:EE
Plan during the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 2,107,590 Shares THERERSEZE_ZE=-_—F+=A4
had been issued in 2021 and the total funds received by the Company =+—BItFEETEFE 532,107,590
with respect to the exercise of such Options amounted to RMB5,834,469. RN B —FE%T BAR
B BL 1T (8 5% 5 B8 BORE P IR S /O 48 5K0R
" ARMES,834,4697T ©
(2) Ms. Zhao Yi was removed as the chief executive officer and an executive ) WMBELTeEesIR_—_Z=-_—%571A
Director on 20 May 2021 and 28 July 2021, respectively. As a result, —+tENEZZE-_—F+A-+N\B#®
pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan, her Options BRTHBHREANITESES - Bt -
were cancelled. B E XA E SR D ZE S 1§
MR EIRED R -
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Details of movements in the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan are also set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The holders of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan as referred to in the table above are not required to pay for the
grant of any Option under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the
relevant award agreement.

Subject to the satisfactory performance of the Option holders, the
Options granted to each of the Option holders shall be vested in
accordance with vesting schedule as follows:

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 12 months after the Listing Date;

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 24 months after the Listing Date;

(iii) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 36 months after the Listing Date; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the aggregate number of Shares
underlying the Option on the date ending 48 months after the
Listing Date.

Each Option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan has a
ten-year exercise period.

No further Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan after the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year
ended 31 December 2021, no Options have been exercised by the
holders, nor have any of the Options lapsed or been cancelled.

The Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan has expired on the Listing Date but the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Options granted prior thereto. No further Awards will be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date.
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RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME

On 28 November 2014, a restricted share unit scheme (the “RSU
Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted by the then
shareholders of the Company. Such plan became effective on the Listing
Date.

The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to incentivize Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors), senior management, officers and
other selected personnel of the Group (“RSU Eligible Persons”) for
their contribution to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled
and experienced personnel to strive for the future development and
expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to own
equity interests in the Company. The Board selects the RSU Eligible
Persons to receive RSUs under the RSU Scheme at its discretion. There is
no maximum entitlement for each RSU Eligible Person under the rules of
the RSU Scheme.

The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years,
commencing from the Listing Date, being 17 December 2014 (unless it
is terminated earlier in accordance with its terms) (the “RSU Scheme
Period”). As at 31 December 2021, the remaining life of the RSU
Scheme is approximately three years.

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under the RSU
Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have lapsed or been cancelled
in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme) must not exceed
42,174,566 Shares, being 4% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (the “RSU Scheme Limit”) and approximately
3.9% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. The RSU Scheme Limit may be refreshed from time
to time subject to prior approval from the Shareholders in general
meeting, provided that the total number of Shares underlying the RSUs
granted following the date of approval of the refreshed limit (the “New
Approval Date”) under the limit as refreshed from time to time must
not exceed 4% of the number of Shares in issue as at the relevant New
Approval Date. Shares underlying the RSUs previously granted under
the RSU Scheme (including RSUs that have lapsed or been canceled
in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme) prior to such New
Approval Date will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
limit as refreshed.
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The Board may not grant any RSUs to any RSU Eligible Person in any of
the following circumstances:

a)  the securities laws or regulations require that a prospectus or other
offering documents be issued in respect of the grant of the RSUs
or in respect of the RSU Scheme, unless the Board determines
otherwise; or

b) where granting the RSUs would result in a breach by the
Company, its subsidiaries or any of their directors of any applicable
securities laws, rules or regulations; or

Q) after inside information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until such inside information has been announced as
required under the Listing Rules. In particular, during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

1) the date of the meeting of the Board (as such date is first
notified to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing
Rules) for the approval of the Company’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether or
not required under the Listing Rules); and

2)  the deadline for the Company to publish an announcement
of its results for any year or half-year under the Listing Rules,
or quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules), and ending on the date of
the results announcement; or

d)  where such grant of RSUs would result in breach of the limits
set out in the rules of the RSU Scheme. Under such rules, the
maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under the RSU
Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have lapsed or been
cancelled in accordance with the rules) must not exceed 4% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date.

EUTEMERT EERFBET
R A5 19 B2 A 0 4 A o 17T 52 R 1 A
AL :

a) BHFEARIERREAMRTER
11 BSX {7 B8 iz 3k A 52 PR ) B £ B 2 &t
BT BB ERSHAMBEM
BRIFBEFERHRE K

by BHXBHROHELEEHRAR
A HMBARRKESSNER
ERERTMMAREZEZAM - R
AR+ 3K

0 ARAFTAREER BEEZNA
BHEREMRARE TARMHR
Ik BERBEEATMERRESE
Al — 18 A e 0 HA ]

) WEXARREMEFE  F5F
B FESEMEMPRHE
B(TwmLETRAINEEHE)
MEEEERRAHMUREL
MARMNEXANSH XA
) R

2) ARBRBEBETHRANERE
MEEHFFEE RFEX
EREMTREELE (TR
EHRABLTRE)RE
EXEERNSHHLESE: %

d BTFXRSIROHEBELSEBERT
BRIl A £ B8 iz 71 B AR A P8 AR -
REARARR  REZRHIBNE
L5+ E AT F 5% A0 S2 IR I B £ B A
(TEEREABHRAIE KU
HHZR SR B &S8R
TEHEB EmRREHTROAR
#94% ©

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-—&%3 55




Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board can determine the vesting criteria and conditions, the
vesting schedule, the exercise price of the RSUs (where applicable) and
such other details as the Board considers necessary, and such criteria,
conditions and details shall be stated in the letter granting such RSUs
("RSU Grant Letter”). Within a reasonable time after the vesting
criteria, conditions and time schedule have been reached, fulfilled,
satisfied or waived, the Board will send a vesting notice (“Vesting
Notice”) to each of the RSU Participants. The Vesting Notice will
confirm the extent to which the vesting criteria, conditions and time
schedule have been reached, fulfilled, satisfied or waived, and the
number of Shares (and, if applicable, the cash or non-cash income,
dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds of non-cash and
non-scrip distributions in respect of those Shares) involved.

The Board has the power to administer the RSU Scheme, including
the power to construe and interpret the rules of the RSU Scheme and
the terms of the RSUs granted under it. The Board may delegate the
authority to administer the RSU Scheme to a committee of the Board.
The Board may also appoint one or more independent third party
contractors (including the RSU Trustee) to assist with the administration
and vesting of RSUs granted pursuant to the RSU Scheme. The Company
may (i) allot and issue Shares to the RSU Trustee to be held by the RSU
Trustee and which will be used to satisfy the RSUs upon exercise and/
or (ii) direct and procure the RSU Trustee to receive existing Shares
from any Shareholder or purchase existing Shares (either on-market or
off-market) to satisfy the RSUs upon exercise.

The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited as the RSU Trustee for the administration of the RSU Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the RSU Trustee purchased an aggregate of 1,300,000
Shares at a total cash consideration of approximately HK$13.0 million
from the market. Since the end of the reporting period up to the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
RSU Trustee purchased an aggregate of 7,050,000 Shares from the
market to hold on trust for the benefit of the RSU Participants at a
total consideration of HK$26.7 million. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 8 April 2022, 13 April 2022 and 22
April 2022, respectively. The Shares are held on trust for the benefit
of the RSU Participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme and the RSU Trust
Deed. As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the 16,145,895 Shares, representing approximately 1.49% of
the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, remained to be held by the RSU Trustee. Pursuant to the RSU
Trust Deed, notwithstanding that the RSU Trustee is the legal registered
holder of the Shares held upon trust pursuant to the RSU Scheme, the
RSU Trustee shall refrain from exercising any voting rights attached to
such Shares held by it under the trust.
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RSUs held by a RSU Participant that are vested as evidenced by the
Vesting Notice may be exercised (in whole or in part) by the RSU
Participant serving an exercise notice in writing on the RSU Trustee and
copied to the Company. Any exercise of RSUs must be in respect of a
board lot of 500 Shares each or an integral multiple thereof (except
where the number of RSUs which remains unexercised is less than one
board lot). Upon receipt of an exercise notice, the Board may decide at
its absolute discretion to:

(@) direct and procure the RSU Trustee to, within a reasonable
time, transfer the Shares underlying the RSUs exercised (and, if
applicable, the cash or non-cash income, dividends or distributions
and/ or the sale proceeds of non-cash and non-scrip distributions
in respect of those Shares) to the RSU Participant which the
Company has allotted and issued to the RSU Trustee as fully
paid up Shares or which the RSU Trustee has either acquired by
purchasing existing Shares or by receiving existing Shares from any
Shareholder, subject to the RSU Participant paying the exercise
price (where applicable) and all tax, stamp duty, levies and charges
applicable to such transfer to the RSU Trustee or as the RSU
Trustee directs; or

(b) pay, or direct and procure the RSU Trustee to, within a reasonable
time, pay, to the RSU Participant in cash an amount which
represents the value of the Shares underlying the RSUs exercised
on or about the date of exercise (and, if applicable, the cash
or non-cash income, dividends or distributions and/or the sale
proceeds of noncash and non-scrip distributions in respect of
those Shares) less any exercise price (where applicable) and
after deduction of any tax, levies, stamp duty and other charges
applicable to the sale of any Shares to fund such payment and in
relation thereto.

A RSU Participant does not have any contingent interest in any Shares or
rights to any income, dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds
of non-cash and non-scrip distributions from any Shares underlying the
RSUs unless and until such Shares are actually transferred to the RSU
Participant. Any Shares transferred to a RSU Participant in respect of any
RSUs will be subject to all the provisions of the articles of association of
the Company and will rank pari passu with the fully paid Shares then in
issue.
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As at 31 December 2021, RSUs in respect of an aggregate of 3,743,029 e e e Elles Sl Bl S
Shares, representing approximately 0.34% of the total issued Shares & #£3,743,029/ % {n ({5 &N A & & & &
of the Company as at the date of this annual report, remained FHHAHDBITRMHBEEL034% ) 1
outstanding. Details of the RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme and ZREEOEMTNERTE R _-_Z

%

(N

outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and details of the vesting periord ——%+=-HA=+—HA%R4IIRMHEA
and the movements in RSUs during the year ended 31 December 2021 HEETEEERRTESR IR D EE
are set out below: UWFE UWREESEBHARIRGIR

HEBEMNRBE T _—F+_A=+—
BIEFEMESHOFBEINAT :

Number Number
of Shares of Shares
represented Granted Exercised Cancelled represented
First vesting by RSUs at 1 during during during by RSUs at 31
Name of grantees of RSU Date of grant date January 2021 the year the year the year  December 2021
R=B=-F R=B=-%
-B-H TZAZ+-H
ERHBRH ERHRS
B R BUBR
ERVRDENEARALE  REBH HESEAH WRHHA ERRM ERfTE FREH HRHHA
Directors
EZ
Ho Kuang-Chi 8 May 2017 1 April 2019 492,985 - 246,491 - 246,494
BrE ZZ-tFRANR ZZ-N\FENMA-H
14 December 2018 1 April 2020 395,767 - 131,922 - 263,845
ZE-\§tZAtmAR ZT-25MA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 628,004 - 157,001 - 471,003
ZZCEENAZTA ZR--4NA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 1,610,700 - - - 1,610,700
ZECTEARZTH ZECZFMA-H
Zhao Yi " 17 November 2016 1 April 2018 185,291 - 185,291 - -
@i ZFAET-ATER ZE-\ERA-A
8 May 2017 1 April 2019 327,039 - 163,518 163,521 -
“E-+4nANH “E-NfmA-A
14 December 2018 1 April 2020 226,845 - 75,614 151,231 -
ZE-\$TZATEE ZZ-ZEMA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 386,291 - 96,572 289,719 -
“Z-ZERA=TA ZZ--5NA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 1,295,484 - - 1,295,484 -
ZE-EEARZTHE ZBZZfMA-H
Sub-total 5,548,406 - 1,056,409 1,899,955 2,592,042
Nt
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Number Number
of Shares of Shares
represented Granted Exercised Cancelled represented
First vesting by RSUs at 1 during during during by RSUs at 31
Name of grantees of RSU Date of grant date January 2021 the year the year the year  December 2021
R=B=-% R=B=-%
= Hi= B = HI=tH
FRHBRH ERHRG
E¥R BAYR
SRERGENARALE  REBH EREELEE WRGEE ERRH ERfTR FREHE HRGEE
Employees of the Group
ZrEFES
21 other employees 17 November 2016 1 April 2018 435,991 - 435,991 - -
of the Group ZE-AFt-ATtRE ZE-/\fEA-A
REEMNEMES 8 May 2017 1 April 2019 764,685 - 382,333 97,495 284,857
“E-+4nANE “E-N\§mA-A
31 January 2018 1 April 2019 16,690 - 8,345 8,345 -
Z2-\$-A=t-H ZZ-NEEA-A
14 December 2018 1 April 2020 120,302 - 40,09 35,374 44,832
ZE-\ETZATRE —E-REMA-A
22 January 2019 1 April 2019 22,164 - 11,082 11,082 -
ZE-NE-RZtZB ZE-NFHEA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 332,412 - 83,096 163,376 85,940
ZZCZRENAZTA “E--¥mA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 1,500,894 - - 765,536 735,358
ZEZZFEARZTH ZBZZFMA-H
Sub-total 3,193,138 - 960,943 1,081,208 1,150,987
Dt
Total 8,741,544 - 2,017,352 2,981,163 3,743,029
@t

(1) Ms. Zhao Yi was removed as the chief executive officer and an executive (1) HBEZITESHIR-_ZE-_—FHAHA
Director on 20 May 2021 and 28 July 2021, respectively. As a result, —t+HEZE-—FtA-+NH#H
pursuant to the terms of the RSU Scheme, her RSUs were cancelled. BRTHERRANTESES - At

R R I AR 19 B8 A 5T SR AR - IR 2
PRI AR 0 B B R 8 e

Details of movements in the RSUs under the RSU Scheme are also set /A B85 [R | I% 17 B i 5 8178 T X PR Hl ix
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. MEBEMNNEZBFBE NN GRE P HHRE
M7E33 ©

The grantees of the RSUs under the RSU Scheme as referred to in the L 3R42 89 R #% 5 R Hi B 09 Bz 5t 8l P

table above are not required to pay for the grant of any RSUs under the & Hi 5 R il B {7 B i 19 A 3% A B ZE LR

RSU Scheme and the relevant RSU Grant Letter. B X PR B A% 19 B AL 5T I K2 A8 BE X IR I AR
MEMR T HERNER IR RGN E
EREA -
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Subject to the satisfactory performance of the grantees, the RSUs
granted to each of the grantees shall be vested in accordance with the
vesting schedule as follows:

(i) asto 25% of the RSUs on the first vesting date;

(i) as to 25% of the RSUs on the first anniversary of the first vesting
date;

(iii) as to 25% of the RSUs on the second anniversary of the first
vesting date; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the RSUs on the third anniversary of
the first vesting date.

Each RSU granted under the RSU Scheme has a ten-year exercise period
commencing from the date of grant.

THE SUBSIDIARY SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 25 May 2018, three subsidiary share option schemes (the
“Subsidiary Share Option Schemes”), namely the share option
scheme for each of the three wholly-owned PRC operating subsidiaries
of the Company, namely Coucou Catering Management Co., Ltd. (/&%
ZEEE AR A A ("Coucou”), Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. ( N MR NER I 45 6K T2 B PR A 7)) (“ Xiabu Beijing”) and Xiabuxiabu
Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (M FIFEREIE (L
&) AR A7) (“Xiabu Shanghai”, together with Coucou and Xiabu
Beijing, the “Operating Subsidiaries”), were approved and adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting.
The Subsidiary Share Option Schemes are on substantially similar terms
and are designed to provide respective employees of each of the three
Operating Subsidiaries with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the relevant Operating Subsidiary, which will retain the
grantees of such options and encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Operating Subsidiaries, and for the benefit
of the Company as a whole. As at the date of this annual report, none
of the Operating Subsidiaries has adopted any other share option
scheme.

HARANRRESARE  BUARA
R IR B A0 BB AL FEAR IR T 2 55 B
RXRFE

i) REERBEHRBXRHIRNE
fZ#925% :

iy REAERERHNEBFRBX
PR il B 0 AL AV25%

(i) REESBAYNNE _AFRER
PR il A 0 BE AL E925% & K

(ivy REERBRENE-RTFREES
[R I i% 19 BE L 82 N H925%

RIEZREERDEMTER LN EGEZ
BR&IE D EMITFERASRT B R
AHI104E o

B 8 X ) i AR A AT &

RZEBE-NERA-+HB  =@ANB
AEBERERS ((MEQRABRES
g AXRAEFEHEEN=-MHE2E
WMEAG Z2ERERERAA ([E
E]) - WEREEREEGR AR (W
W) RAHPHERER(LE)E
RAFE ([HELEE] - &EREE R
RSB EENBEAR] S8 NER
EFEIERRREIAEERARIRE
HoE R aN - B A R BT 8l 2 1%
RARBMER - HETEA-MBEERB A
RSB EEREKReESHEESEN
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The equity interest to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Subsidiary Share Option Schemes will be equity interest in
the relevant Operating Subsidiary but not the shares of the Company.
Under the terms of the Subsidiary Share Option Schemes, the exercise
price of each option is to be determined by the respective board of the
Operating Subsidiary based on its net asset value and registered capital,
but shall not be less than the nominal value of a unit of equity interest
in the respective Operating Subsidiary. Factors of consideration may
include years of service, position, level of responsibilities, etc.

Under the Subsidiary Share Option Schemes, the Operating Subsidiaries
shall, subject to the grantee having fulfilled the terms and conditions of
the options (if any), redeem and cancel a particular option by paying the
grantee in cash such amount as determined based on the formula stated
in the relevant Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, or in the same number
of shares of the Company which the grantee is entitled to purchase
from secondary market utilizing the cash from the redemption and
cancellation of option. The option to be granted under the Subsidiary
Share Option Schemes shall have an exercise period of 10 years from
the date of grant of the option, or on the date falling one month prior
to the lodgement of an application with the relevant stock exchange for
listing of the shares of the relevant Operating Subsidiary, whichever is
earlier.

The total amount of equity interest which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under each Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the relevant Operating
Subsidiary shall not exceed 4% of the equity interest in issue as at
the approval date of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, subject to
a refresher of such scheme mandate limit. The total options granted
under a Subsidiary Share Option Scheme to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of any of the Operating Subsidiaries or of
the Company or any of their respective associates (as such terms are
defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the relevant class of securities of the relevant Operating Subsidiary in
issue unless prior approval of the independent non-executive Directors
is obtained. In addition, the total options granted under a Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates (as such
term is defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 0.1% of the relevant class of securities of the relevant Operating
Subsidiary in issue nor have an aggregate net asset value, assuming
such options were exercised, based on the latest audited accounts
of the Operating Subsidiary, in excess of HK$5 million (or such other
amount as may from time to time be specified by the Stock Exchange).
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The Subsidiary Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective for  WB A T ERES 21 G M B A 7 ER
a period of five years from the date of adoption of the Subsidiary BT EIEL AN B BB st s RN AR B T B
Share Option Schemes or upon listing of the relevant Operating A& FMEAFHE AR ER - WE
Subsidiary. The remaining life of the Subsidiary Share Option Schemes is A RIEREFZINORGFHOAE—FZ

approximately one years and two months.

mAEA e

As at 31 December 2021, no option has been granted pursuant to any A—_E_—F+-_A=+—8 #BER

of the Subsidiary Share Option Schemes.

IR A B R T 3R L B A -

Further details of the principal terms of the Subsidiary Share Option BB A R BERETE E BT HE
Schemes are set out in the circular of the Company dated 7 May 2018. —FSHBENRN AR BRA T —N\F

DIRECTORS

TAEHMBEA -

S

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of FRNKEHZEZAREHE  XARESW

this report were:

Name

iR

-

Position

B

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
BhRERE

Ms. Zhao Yi
fizR=R

Ms. Chen Su-Yin
PREZRL L+

Mr. Zhang Chi

SR 5t 55 A4

Ms. Li Jie

FRL L

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun
WHEE L

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence
RN KL

Ms. Cheung Sze Man
RETB L+

Mr. Kot Man Tat
BXGERE

Executive Director

WITES

Chairman of the Board

EXxgER

Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 20 May 2021)
THEH (R_ZE_—FRAZ-ZTHEZE)
Executive Director (removed on 28 July 2021)
WITEE(R_T_—FLtA-T\BHEER)
Chief Executive Officer (removed on 20 May 2021)
THEH (R_ZE_—FRA-THEER)
Non-executive Director

FMITES

Non-executive Director

FMITES

Alternate Director to Mr. Zhang Chi

Rt ERBEEES

Independent Non-executive Director (retired on 1 April 2022)
BYFATERE (RS __FWMA—HEME)
Independent Non-executive Director
BYIFERITES

Independent Non-executive Director
BYIFERITES

Independent Non-executive Director (appointed on 1 April 2022)
BYFATESE (RS __FMOR —BEZE)
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In accordance with the article 84(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man shall
retire by rotation at the AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Kot Man Tat, who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director by the Board with effect from 1 April 2022 to
fill a casual vacancy, shall hold office until the AGM and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 83(5) of the articles of association of the Company,
the members of the Company may, at any general meeting convened
and held in accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
by ordinary resolution remove a Director at any time before the
expiration of his or her period of office notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in the articles of association of the Company or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director. A resolution was
passed in the extraordinary general meeting held on 28 July 2021 to
removed Ms. Zhao Yi as an executive Director of the Company. For
details of Ms. Zhao Yi’'s removal, please refer to the announcements
dated 20 May 2021, 14 June 2021, 26 July 2021 and 28 July 2021 and
the circular dated 8 July 2021 issued by the Company. The Company
has engaged legal adviser to handle the arbitration matter initiated by
Ms. Zhao Yi in relation to her claim that her employment contract with
Xiabu Beijing, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
vice president should remain effective, and for her request against Xiabu
Beijing for compensation of not more than RMB1.0 million in relation to
the termination of her employment contract with Xiabu Beijing.

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions as
disclosed in the section headed ”Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director and/or any of its connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of
their subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(a) Interests of Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Number of Approximate

Name of Director/ Capacity/ underlying percentage of
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares" shareholding"”
BEs 54/ HE IRENBQ
BETHRABHSE EEME B E" g
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi® Founder of a discretionary trust 450,000,000 41.44%
BhEEED RHREEFERIZE

Beneficial owner 1,160,318 0.11%

EnfEAA

Beneficiary of a trust 2,592,042 0.24%

BEREXHmEA
Ms. Chen Su-Yin®® Interest of spouse 453,752,360 41.79%
REEL LYY Fic 18 A 2
Notes: Pt =E -

(1

2)

All interests stated are long positions.

The Ying Qi Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi (as the settlor) for the benefit of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and with
Ying Qi PTC Limited acting as the trustee, holds the entire issued
share capital of Ying Qi Investments Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi is deemed to be interested in the 450,000,000 Shares
held by Ying Qi Investments Limited. Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi is also
interested in 1,160,318 Shares and RSUs representing 2,592,042
Shares held on trust on his behalf by the RSU Trustee which can be
exercised for nil consideration and are subject to vesting.

Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 1,085,897,509 issued
Shares.

(1) FAERZHRIER -

(2)  Ying Qi Trust(B & FZFE4E (1
RBULE)RABAEREN R
Mz 2SR WHAYing Qi
PTC LimitedfEAX s A) A
Ying Qi Investments Limitedf) &
B EBEITIRA - ALl - BREE
£ 18 BRYing Qi Investments
LimitedFT #§ & #9450,000,000/%
RO HER#EZ - BRAESTAEDN
1,160,318/ Ik 15 K B X BR
BHEMZTEAREETARE
B 5 %2,592,002R 1A Z
RARDBECPHEEER  ZF
ZREIBDEMTATREITE
WEFRE -

B) MERXTREARELEZE
8 AR & E 5 R E 5 D%
BRARBEAERELERAEANR
A o

4 WHZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8"

RN EIEA1,085,897,5090% & %
1TRED o

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=-—&£% 65




Directors’ Report
EEERE

(b) Interests in other members of the Group

66

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2021, the
following person is directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group:

(b) RAEEEHMRE R FH

e

MEEMA R-TE-_—F+=A4
=+—HB UTATEEXHESE
BN AR AR ERIBER TEERSE
EEMEMKEQAINBRREAS £
FREREA R AEE10%3K A
LR RE

Total
share capital Approximate
Name of held by the percentage
Name of subsidiary shareholder shareholder of interest
)
Mt~ B BB RERE A PR 3R T 5 4B AR A BHABEDL
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Limited” Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi? US$400,000 40%
MR PR (R D) R RIERAR AR =l 400,000% 7T
Notes: Pt EE -

(1) Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Limited is a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co.,
Limited wholly owns Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Limited,
which in turn wholly owns Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited
(N IR DR IR (AR ) B 3 A PR 2 A1), Accordingly, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi is
deemed to be interested in each of Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings
Co., Limited and Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (RH i A& g (A
Bl) & m AR A A).

(2)  Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and is deemed
to be interested in the 40% interest in Xiabuxiabu (China) Food
Holdings Co., Limited, and in turn Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings
Co., Limited and Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (R§ igj & 0g (b
)& mAR RG], which are interested by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any of the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(1) MR (hE) RRERERL
Al AR B B 60 %1 25 1 B B8
AT o M 0TI (B R AR
BRAT 2 E R WHEE (&
B)RBERARRF  MFH
MR (F8) RmERAR AR 2
BHAWHERE(TPE) RAER
AF - H - BRAEREERRS
BRI R (B8 RMERE
PR 2% B K% MR e R R (P B R
RABIHEA#E

2 MERLTAERBTLEEZR
B HIREES KBS RS
BB N A RS A I
RIS (P RMIERE R DA%
BA0%HE 2 (G T A PRI R g (&
) BRmIER A R A F) & g

B(hE)RMBEBR AR EE#

) o

BREXPIREEN R_T——F
TZA=1—8 #EBEFIAR
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FERHEAETARARBRIEESF K
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

TERRREMALIRROR
HERODHEZERXR

N s e e S SRR S NN
T (EEXARRESTTERASRIN R
% 15 3% A8 B8 % 10 AP B R AR R RIAR IR &5
s R EIE IR0 33616 B1F & My & 5L it
NETLHEZIAE

Number of Approximate

Shares or percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” interest®

Fris R4 = EEH

BREREE EEME BZxya" BMHuED

Ying Qi PTC Limited?” Trustee of a trust 450,000,000 41.44%

FREXFEA
Ying Qi Investments Limited® Beneficial owner 450,000,000 41.44%
EnlEA A

Gap (Bermuda) Limited® Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.54%
corporation
S A E R

General Atlantic Genpar Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.54%
(Bermuda), L.P.®) corporation
LB ER

General Atlantic Partners Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.54%
(Bermuda) IV, L.P.® corporation
A EER

General Atlantic Singapore Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.54%
Fund Interholdco Ltd.® corporation
ZEEBEER

General Atlantic Singapore Beneficial owner 147,000,000 13.54%

Fund Pte. Ltd.®

BEDBEBA
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Notes:

All interests stated are long positions.

Ying Qi PTC Limited, the trustee of the Ying Qi Trust, in its capacity as
trustee holds the entire issued share capital of Ying Qi Investments Limited.
The Ying Qi Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
(as the settlor) and the beneficiary of which includes Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi.
Accordingly, each of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and Ying Qi PTC Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 450,000,000 Shares held by Ying Qi Investments
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

The sole shareholder of General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte. Ltd. ("GASF")
is General Atlantic Singapore Fund Interholdco Ltd. (“GA Interholdco”)
and the controlling shareholder of GA Interholdco is General Atlantic
Partners (Bermuda) IV, L.P. (“GAP LP"). The general partner of GAP LP is
General Atlantic Genpar (Bermuda), L.P. ("GA Genpar”) and the general
partner of GA Genpar is Gap (Bermuda) Limited. Accordingly, each of GA
Interholdco, GAP LP, GA Genpar and Gap (Bermuda) Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 147,000,000 Shares held by GASF by virtue of the
SFO.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 1,085,897,509 issued Shares.

Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the Shareholders are required to file
a disclosure of interests form when certain criteria are fulfilled. When
a shareholding in the Company changes, it is not necessary for the
Shareholder to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless several
criteria have been fulfilled, therefore a Shareholder’s latest shareholding
in the Company may be different from the shareholding filed with the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors or chief

execu
being

tive of the Company were not aware of any other person, not
a Director or chief executive of the Company, who has an interest

or short position in the Shares or the underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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FRIALPIEEESN  R=F

FIREFT BRI RITFRE -

Ying Qi Trustf) 3 & AYing Qi PTC
Limited AR FEAF D FAYing Qi
Investments Limited2 & 2 377 B AR o
Ying Qi Trust/hEE XA (ERK
VEI)KINEZEET  EXEARE
BHELE - At - RBEFHMPER
B B YRS £ K Ying Qi PTC Limited
£ B8 A RYing Qi Investments
LimitedFfT #% 4 £9450,000,000% A% {5 =
BARERS ©

General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte.
Ltd. ([ GASF ) # " — & 3R A General
Atlantic Singapore Fund Interholdco Ltd.
([GA Interholdco]) ' GA Interholdco
K5 % B B8 A General Atlantic Partners
(Bermuda) IV, L.P.([GAP LP J) © GAP LP
K &R A £ A AGeneral Atlantic Genpar
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GA Interholdco ~ GAP LP ~ GA Genpar
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RZBE-—FE+-A=+—8 &2
AIHEA1,085,897,50908 2 B ITALD ©

RIEEZ A RAIE3361% - — B
AETRE BRRAETFTUARIEER
BB WMRARBNREELEESY
M SRR | AN B KB 2 A (BR IR 7T
BEZERENSENR) - B BERR
A B RO B T BCRE AT B B K A B B B
X PrACERH) AR A PR R o

——F+=

A=+—RB BFLARARSITHEA
BYTHEREEHARAZRHITEA

g5

BEMEMALTRARR ARG K

AR (5 R A AR 2 A AR 8 35 2 B
E OISR AEEN B RHAER
R AR -

TR RS (P AR B RAF] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.




Directors’ Report
ExEWRE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant chain, we have a large and diverse customer base. Our
revenue derived from our five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases of food
ingredients and other supplies from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 12.9% of the Group’s total purchases from all suppliers
for the same period. The purchases from the Group’s single largest
supplier for the year ended 31 December 2021 accounted for 3.6%
of the Group's total purchases from all suppliers for the same period.
All of our five largest suppliers are independent third parties. None of
our Directors, any of their close associates or any Shareholders that,
to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company had any interest in any of the five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DONATION

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB1.0 million (2020: RMB1.6 million).

EEEN
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Restaurant operations are highly service-oriented, therefore the
Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees, including restaurant managers
and operational personnel, is critical to the success of the Group’'s
business. The Company will continue to seek, to retain and attract
qualified employees, particularly restaurant staff and operational
personnel, by increasing efforts in recruitment and human resources
management, further its career advancement program and establish
a clearly identifiable long-term career path to motivate its employees,
implement a rigorous evaluation program to identify suitable candidates
for promotion, offer long-term equity incentive plans and tailored
compensation packages and offer training programs tailored to specific
needs of our employees’ career development. The Company also
provides various incentives through share incentive schemes to better
motivate its employees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
and based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan and Restricted Share Unit Scheme” above, at no time during the
year was the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries,
or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right
to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any equity-linked
agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

b

72

Framework Cooperation Agreement

On 11 January 2021, the Company entered into the Framework
Cooperation Agreement (the “Framework Cooperation
Agreement”) with Tea Mi Tea (HK) Holdings Co., Limited (“Tea
Mi Tea (HK)", a company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a
substantial Shareholder and an executive Director, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company) for the sale of ingredients
needed for the production of the tea beverages and tea snack
products that are currently selling and/or expected to be sold at
the Group’s restaurants (the “Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks”),
pursuant to which (i) Tea Mi Tea (HK) agreed to provide relevant
operational support, primarily (a) recipes of Tea Beverages and Tea
Snacks and proprietary know-how as to the on-site preparation of
Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; (b) advices on development of new
products of Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; and (c) staff training
in respect of operation workflow at the restaurants, to the Group;
(ii) Tea Mi Tea (HK) granted to the Company and its subsidiaries
a non-transferable right to use trademarks owned by Tea Mi Tea
(HK) to produce and sell Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; and (iii)
the Company agreed to share 5% of the revenue from the sales
of Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks at the Group’s restaurants
with Tea Mi Tea (HK). The Framework Cooperation Agreement is
for a term commencing from 11 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. The annual caps under the Framework Cooperation
Agreement in respect of the three years ending 31 December
2023 are RMB45,000,000, RMB55,000,000 and RMB68,000,000,
respectively. The fees payable under the Framework Cooperation
Agreement will be billed every calendar month, which shall be paid
within five business days of the settlement day. The Company shall
pay the amount due upon receipt of the invoice issued by Tea Mi
Tea (HK). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the actual fees
paid by the Group under the Framework Cooperation Agreement
amounted to RMB23.9 million.
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Licensing Agreement

On 14 December 2020, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK)
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Xiabuxiabu HK") and Coucou (HK) Holdings
Co., Limited ("Coucou HK”), wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, separately entered into the Licensing Agreements with
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co. Ltd. (the “JV Subsidiary”, a company
indirectly owned as to 40% by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a substantial
Shareholder and an executive Director, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company) (the “Licensing Agreements”), pursuant
to which Xiabuxiabu HK and Coucou HK grant to the JV Subsidiary a
non-transferable right and license to use the Trademarks owned by
Xiabuxiabu HK and Coucou HK in connection with the production and
sale of Condiment Products and Instant Foods for a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. Xiabuxiabu
HK and Coucou HK shall charge a royalty equaling 1% of the total
revenue of the JV Subsidiary generated from the sale of Condiment
Products and Instant Foods. The total royalties payable by the JV
Subsidiary to the Company pursuant to the Licensing Agreements
are expected to be no more than RMB3,240,000, RMB5,280,000
and RMB8,160,000 for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022
and 2023, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
actual royalties received by the Group under the Licensing Agreements
amounted to RMB1.1 million.

Framework Purchase Agreement

On 14 December 2020, the Company entered into the Framework
Purchase Agreement (the “Framework Purchase Agreement”)
with the JV Subsidiary, pursuant to which the JV Subsidiary
agreed to sell, and the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries (other than the JV Company and the JV Subsidiary))
agreed to purchase, certain condiment products and instant foods
from the JV Subsidiary for sale in the Group’s restaurants. The
Framework Purchase Agreement shall have a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
annual cap for the total purchase of condiment products and
instant foods by the Group from the JV Subsidiary pursuant
to the Framework Purchase Agreement shall be no more than
RMB38,000,000, RMB44,550,000 and RMB59,400,000 for the
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the total purchase under the
Framework Purchase Agreement amounted to RMB4.5 million.
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Renewed Lease Agreement

On 30 April 2017, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiabu Beijing”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a renewed lease agreement (the
“"Renewed Lease Agreement”) with Xiabuxiabu Fast Food
Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Xiabu Fast Food”, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a substantial Shareholder
and an executive Director, and is therefore a connected person
of the Company) to lease the factory located at Suncun Industrial
Development Zone, Huangcun Town, Daxing District, Beijing,
PRC with a total area of 7,066.75 square meters for a term of
three years commencing on 1 May 2017 and renewed on 1 May
2020. The leased property is used for industrial purpose and
which is utilized by Xiabu Beijing as the food processing plant
and warehouse. The monthly rental under the Renewed Lease
Agreement is RMB100,000. The transactions under the lease
agreement and the Renewed Lease Agreement constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the actual rental paid by the Group under the Renewed Lease
Agreement amounted to RMB1.2 million. The transactions under
the Renewed Lease Agreement also constitute related party
transactions of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
continuing connected transactions above were entered into by the
Group:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

74

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Further, the Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from time to time.

The Company followed the policies and guidelines as set out in the
Guidance Letter 73-14 issued by the Stock Exchange when determining
the price and terms of the continuing connected transactions during the
year under review.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this Directors’ report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Company plans to adopt amendments in the articles of association.
For details, please refer to the announcement and circular to be issued
by the Company.

By order of the Board
Ho Kuang-Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

BEoN - EEEREAR A XA RIE
BEGFMAEEMNBERERALE
Al 530005 [ 25 #% 3 & B IE 52 B 7% & B
MMM B TR AR 2 EEKHASE
74055% [ BE M &8 L AR RI By I 5 4B B &
RENZEEM N | B AEENRER
BERXPELER - ZBEOERELETR
AIZE14A561F EX IR BRAERER
SHABARERLERNEBEREER

B e

NN A IR B 52 PR B 414 A% B 3 A S [
BE_T_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
MFERER 5B LK RFEIA -

RWRERERXZIME AAREETL
MARATEEROEERE -

AABEBEBXATBEMAIESKE
T3-NAMEFTE R RIESI NEE BB F
NIFEBEBER SHERRIER -

EXEBAFREMEL - & RME
MFrERL  BRAEZTGREN A

7 e

¥ BLEm

MBERRCOHED e ERT SHENTT
Eif AR EERRBEAE LRE
ANEERYMEEESE-

BEHRREE

AD R R EIRSEBERMAEST -
BRE - BEMARARBTNAER
T

EEEGm
TE
Bk

&5 - _F=A=-+/\H

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —ZE——F &% /5




Corporate Governance Report
SR EREE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company
has developed and implemented sound governance policies and
measures, and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate
governance duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor
the corporate governance of the Company, as well as various internal
policies and procedures, including but not limited to those applicable to
employees and Directors, with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements so as to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company complied
with the applicable code provisions of Part 2 of the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for a deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the Code which states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

As Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, the founder of the Company, is familiar with
and has extensive knowledge and experience in the Group’s business,
the Board considers that vesting the roles of both chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer in the same person provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategy.
The balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the
operations of the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high-caliber individuals. As at the date of this report,
the Board comprises an executive Director (i.e. Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi),
two non-executive Directors (and one alternate Director) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition. Furthermore, decisions of the
Board are made by way of majority votes. The Board will nevertheless
review the Company’s structure from time to time in light of the
prevailing circumstances.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company for the purpose of complying with the Code and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers
for the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
day-to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to
the management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of six Directors, namely
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (Chairman and chief executive officer) as executive
Director, Ms. Chen Su-Yin and Mr. Zhang Chi (with Ms. Li Jie as his
alternate) as non-executive Directors, and Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun,
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man as independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Zhao Yi was removed from the Board as
an executive Director on 28 July 2021. The Board has a balance of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity policy
to set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of
Board members. In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director of
the Company. The Company will also take into account factors relating
to its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

On 1 April 2022, Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun has retired and Mr. Kot Man
Tat has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, Chairman, chief executive officer and executive
Director of the Company, is the husband of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, a
non-executive Director. Save as disclosed, no Board member has a
relationship with the other Board members and the chief executive of
the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 35 to 40 of this
annual report.
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The executive Director, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 28 November 2014, which was renewed
in 2017 and 2020 for a further term of three years. Ms. Zhao Yi has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 29 August 2019
and was removed as executive Director on 28 July 2021. The Company
has issued letters of appointment to each of the non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chen Su-Yin on 28 November 2014 which was renewed in
2017 and 2020 for a further term of three years, and Mr. Zhang Chi
on 22 August 2017 which was renewed in 2020 for a further term of
three years, respectively, and also to the independent non-executive
Directors on 28 November 2014, which were renewed in 2017 and
2020 for a further term of three years. Subsequent to the reporting
period and disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
March 2022, Mr. Kot Man Tat has entered into letter of appointment
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2022 for a term
of three years. The principal particulars of these service contracts and
letters of appointment are (a) for a term of three years, and (b) subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term of
the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be renewed
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
applicable Listing Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB9.7 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors for 2021 are set out in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code
provision E.1.5 of the Code, the annual remuneration of members of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021
is set out below:

EEFM L2 EAELBRAFMIAH
e EZTNHREBRARBEURASE
ENRREBET - — T -_—FEZNEHW
HBHNEAMBRRM L4 1o
BIEZSTRIMSFRMESCEEN & - HE
B+ -_A=1+—BIFESH
EEEKNENTEFMNEESHINAT

Number of senior

management

Remuneration band member
BREERE

yeE ME#E
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 2

1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
1,500,001 71 £2,000,0007% 7T
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,000,001 70 £2,500,0007% 7T

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement
of the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not
be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary
of the Company is Ms. Tam Shuk Wah, Carrie. She is a corporate
services director of Incorp Hong Kong Limited, and is responsible for
provision of corporate secretarial and compliance services to clients. Her
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi, Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director of the
Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Tam
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Each of the Directors attended various trainings in 2021, including the
trainings for the Director’s duties and responsibilities and continuous
obligations, the anti-corruption and ethics, the compliance with the
Listing Rules, the ESG management and disclosure, and the update
on corporate governance code, etc. The Company will continue to
arrange suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional
development.

In 2021, the Company convened and held two general meetings,
being the 2021 annual general meeting held on 28 May 2021 and the
extraordinary general meeting held on 28 July 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held twelve
meetings to discuss and approve, among others, the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, as well as to review and approve the
Company’s 2020 annual report, 2020 annual results announcement,
the payment of final dividend, 2021 interim report, 2021 interim results
announcement and the payment of interim dividend.

The table below sets out the details of general meetings and Board
meetings attendance of each Director during the year ended 31
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December 2021. REEC@EMES -
Number of Number of
general Number of Board Number of
meetings general meetings Board
requiring meetings requiring meetings
Director attendance attended attendance attended
FE IR R HERR BHEESEE HEESS
= REBRE RERH SERE =E N
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 2 2 12 12
BRERE
Ms. Zhao Yi (removed on 28 July 2021) 2 1 9 6
et (RZEZ—FtA=-+T/\BHEER)
Ms. Chen Su-Yin 2 2 12 12
PRERZ T
Mr. Zhang Chi 2 2% 12 12*
SRt A
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022) 2 2 12 10
HEELT(R_T_—_FTOA—ABEM
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 2 2 12 12
BEIRAE A
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 2 2 12 12
RSt
Mr. Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) N/A N/A N/A N/A
EXERERZZE-__FWOA—HEZE) N iE A A iE A i A A3 A
* Two general meetings and twelve Board meetings were attended by his * HHESTEETZ2LTRAEEERK

alternate Director, Ms. Li Jie.

BEREGRTZAREEZEEH °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the website of the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee consisted
of three members, being two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun and Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi. Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun
has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise,
and provide an independent view of the effectiveness of, the financial
reporting process and risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

On 1 April 2022, Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun has ceased to act and Mr. Hon
Ping Cho Terence has been re-designated as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Kot Man Tat has been appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held
seven meetings to consider the Company’s 2020 annual report, 2020
annual results announcement, 2021 interim report, 2021 interim results
announcement and the report on audit plan for the year of 2021 by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee also assessed the risk management and internal
control measures of the Company, as well as the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company.

REE—F= - Horhs Bl
BEA- %V?ﬁAﬁﬂTtME%'M
BHARR_F_FHFFH —_F_F
iif%ﬁﬂi‘_f_—¢$%ﬁ%~
TR FRHEERERARAINE
ZEEN RS e RN SREAMITAMHA
—E_-FERAMIRE - -BERLZES
NHZETARRNRAREERABEE
B E AR AR B B B RE Z R ©

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each TEXHIIWRAEBEE-_ZE-_—F+ = A
member of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December =+—RHIIEERNEETHXEES@KE D
2021. EagZEHFE -
Number of meetings Number of

Director requiring attendance meetings attended
=2 EHEEZE R HESZRREHE
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022) 7 7
HHEEFLT(R-ZZE__FMA—BEME)
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 7 7
B IRAR 5
Mr. Zhang Chi 7 7*
o oth 55 A
I\/Ir Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) N/A N/A

ENERER-_ZE-_—_FNA—HEZMT) i A i A

* Seven meetings were attended by his alternate Director, Ms. Li Jie.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee consisted of two
independent non-executive Directors, being Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun and
Ms. Cheung Sze Man, and one executive Director, being Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi, who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors.

On 1 April 2022, Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun has ceased to act and
Mr. Kot Man Tat has been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the Board structure, the board diversity
policy, the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and to recommend the re-election of the retiring Directors.
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The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31

TR REBEE=_ZT = i
= —Eﬁi@ﬁ%%%\éﬁﬁéﬁ

December 2021. A o=

Number of meetings Number of
Director requiring attendance meetings attended
= EHEEBIRE HEEBAH
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 1 1
BHREEE
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022) 1 1
WHEELLT(RZTE__FHA—HRE)
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 1 1
RSBt
Mr. Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) N/A N/A
EXERE(RZT__FHA—HEZE) @ B i@
Nomination Process REERF

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”), which sets out the approach to guide the Nomination
Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-appointment
of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process as set out in the Nomination Policy:

(i)  the Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration to the
current composition, diversity and size of the Board, develop a
list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort on suitable candidates;

(i)  the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertisements, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from
Shareholders;

(iii) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such
as conducting interviews, background checks, presentations and
third-party reference checks;

(iv) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/ or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

ARACHRMH - ERBEE UE%&
K] ETHIERZESEE ZRE
REHEEEENEEE -

REZEEEREBEREBBEME T2
Fhmiz BEFEEFRNESSFELE
BE®

oo

ER R BN ERNREEEENMA
K ZTAERABHBERT » B
BE—PTE A BERERB
B UEETREIVESEREA:

(i)

(i) RYETERASBEEREAR RS
ZB8 Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ g 21Tk
BRI EEEN BEE - BY
REAFRNEBRREMER

(i) RAHEREARTEGER REZ
BEelEMENERAEE <2
Fr  fRETHR  E=28E - Rl

MZEE=FHE

vy RAEREABELEESR 2
REEERBRTERER/HAER
RFEROTA  BBHLEANESS
T & R

84  EHEHEHKEE (hE) ERARAT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.




Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

(v) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment; and

(vi) the Board will have the final authority in determining the selection
of nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be).

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated and adopted the board diversity policy
(the "Board Diversity Policy”) for compliance with the Listing Rules
and the code provisions of the Code concerning the diversity of Board
members. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach adopted by
the Board regarding diversity of Board members.

The Board continuously seeks to enhance its effectiveness and to
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and recognizes
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining
competitive advantage and sustainable development. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.
The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing
Rules, during the financial year, the Board maintained and achieved the
balance gender of directors with at least 3 female Directors (and one
female alternate Director) during the reporting period. Furthermore,
the Directors whose ages range from 41 years old to 67 years old have
varying education background from economics, business administration
and law with different industry backgrounds, including food and
beverage, accounting and financial management.

The Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of its business strategies and in order for the
Board to be effective.

Nomination Criteria

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee had three members, being two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man,
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi. Mr. Hon Ping
Cho Terence was the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish and
review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and make recommendations to the Board on
employee benefit arrangement.

On 1 April 2022, Ms. Cheung Sze Man has been re-designated as the
chairman whilst Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence remains as a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management as well as the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Number of meetings
requiring attendance
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company's employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES AND
OBSERVANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS RELATING TO
OPENING OF RESTAURANTS

Historically, the Group had certain non-compliance in respect of the
licenses and approvals of some of its restaurants and prior to the
listing, the Company had enhanced its internal control measures to
reduce the risk of penalties from the PRC regulatory authorities in
respect of restaurants that the Company operates in the future. Such
enhanced internal control measures include, among others, (i) adopting
of the Restaurant Opening Approval Policy and amending the Licenses
and Permits Management Policy, (ii) compiling and maintaining a
list of relevant licenses and permits that would be required for the
commencement of the operation of a new restaurant, (iii) strengthening
the site selection and approval procedures, (iv) streamlining the
development plan and timetable for opening new restaurants to cater
for time required for applying and obtaining various licenses and
permits prior to opening of new restaurants, and (v) regularly carrying
out compliance status review on individual restaurants and identifying,
assessing and monitoring compliance risks.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has strictly
implemented the above internal control policies and measures relating
to restaurants opening and their operations, and had strictly complied
with and fulfilled the relevant undertakings provided by the Company
with respect to the opening of new restaurants. In particular, the Group
has obtained all the relevant material official licenses and permits prior
to the opening of restaurants.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the audit of the financial statements of the Group
were RMB3.6 million.

Fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for non-audit services
provided to the Group in the year were RMB1.8 million. The non-audit
services conducted include the issuance of the ESG report and tax
service.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Pursuant to code provision D.1.3 of the Code, the Directors are
responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement
from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out on pages 93 to 98 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimated that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective internal control and risk management systems in order
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The internal control and risk management systems are implemented to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks (including ESG risks) to which
the Group is exposed. The systems therefore serve to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.
The Company also has an internal audit function which primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual
basis. The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions
and prospects.
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The Company has established a sound internal control and risk
management system, and formulated internal guidance covering a
full range of operations including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing, finance, treasury activities,
finance and human resources management, with a complete
organizational structure and clear responsibilities and authorizations.
The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and
strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from
time to time. Each department is also required to keep the Board
informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a
regular basis.

As the risks faced by the Company stem primarily through various
aspects of its operations, including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing and human resources
management, these departments are in the best position to observe and
identify recent development that might lead to material risks for the
Company, and the management and the Board take into account the
reports made by these departments in assessing and managing the risks.

Procedures to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

(1) Establishment of the risk context: evaluating and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group to reduce the costs of operational risk and ensure
compliant operation of the Company.

(2)  Formulation of the risk management policies: ensuring that the
Group carries out consistent procedures and criteria for risk
identification, measurement and reporting.

(3) Identification of the risks: identifying any potential risks of various
business segments and key procedures.

(4) Evaluation on the risks: evaluating and rating the impact on
business and its likelihood of the risks identified.

(5) Response to the risks: evaluating the risk management solutions
and the effectiveness of risk management.

(6) Report and monitor: monitoring and reviewing the policies and
evaluating procedures for risk management, and the measures for
managing and effectiveness of controlling significant risks, and
report the findings to the Board.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board conducts regular review and assessment of inside
information, discusses with the management or authorized persons
of the Company about disclosure of inside information, reports to the
Board once identified any inside information for dissemination. Inside
information disclosure policies are formulated to provide employees
with guidelines on report and disseminating inside information,
confidentiality and compliance with restrictions on trading.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs, budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to
the ESG performance and reporting of the Company. The review was
made by discussions with the management of the Company, its external
and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened by written requisition to the secretary
of the Company of any one or more members of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Boards
hall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
Director is available on the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders may lodge written proposal to the company secretary
of the Company at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such written notice is given, shall be at least seven days and
that the lodgement of such notice shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders
would have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of
the person proposed for election as a Director, Shareholders are urged
to lodge their written notice of his intention to propose a person for
election as Director as early as practicable in advance of the relevant
general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which the Stock Exchange is
open for business of dealing in securities) before the date scheduled
for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company can
complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar,
and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to Shareholders in compliance with the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any
such written notice is received by the Company later than the 12th
business day before the date of holding the relevant general meeting,
the Company will need to consider whether to adjourn the relevant
meeting so as to give Shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days
of the proposal in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting
the Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the
Company are set out in the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company maintains different sections on its website,
such as “Corporate Governance”, “Investor Relations” and “Press
Releases”, to provide key information and updates of the Company to
its Shareholders.

Further, the Company try to understand investors’ perspective and also
share with them a full picture of business, including the views on market
outlook and the development strategies of the Company, etc. The
Investor Relations team of the Company is committed to maintaining an
open and constructive dialogue with them.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of communication with Shareholders and made
on-going updates to meet the needs of changing circumstance.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, there has been no change to the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. The Company’s memorandum
and articles of association are available on the website of the Company
(www.xiabu.com) and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Company plans to adopt amendments in the articles of association.
For details, please refer to the announcement and circular to be issued
by the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B E

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD.

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xiabuxiabu
Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
99 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
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XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., HEEEEREE (PR ZERERA T

LTD. — continued
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BR — &
(RESHEZMA LA FRLA)

BARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, B4t BIH SR IE T M09 =2 2 J) & -
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial RAUAKHAGETBRRNEBITRAS
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the EEIE - B ETH S E R PR =
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,  4FA B ERE R E B E BEHEITRIEN -
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate I T@HELEEEHREBFBHNZR

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAWETNMMEEEARETER

Impairment of leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets

HEYEREREHEEERE

We identified the impairment of leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the
significant management estimation involved in determining
the recoverable amounts of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets.

HR-ZZEZ—F+ A=+ —HEGEEMBRRKRM2 RO
SREXR BEEFTHEVMERERERAREENAT KT SRS
REREBEM  MEMAEHEEDREEREREEERE
BRBREFEE-

The Group recorded leasehold improvements and right-of-use
assets of RMB792,930,000 and RMB1,638,334,000 as at 31
December 2021, respectively, and impairment loss amounting
to RMB44,016,000 and RMB54,447,000 were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021, respectively.
HE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—H0 ESEHSHENERER
FRREEED R A ARE792,930,0007T & A K% 1,638,334,000
T UREE_E - —F+_A=+—HBLFEHRERRE
& 18 AR #44,016,0007T & A R #54,447,0007T °

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management determined whether leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of individual assets or the cash
generating units to which the assets belongs using a value in
use calculation. Management'’s estimation is primarily based on
the cash flow projections and the discount rate.
BIGRE M BRI TANEE EEEECHEREYER
EREEESAHRAE REBEREBEFEU G ERE
EXFBEEMBREELAETNHATRECHE - EREMN G
FEERBREREFRA RN EMEDL -

Our procedures in relation to impairment of
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets
included:
BAREEMERERERAREEREBEMETNE
FrE4aE

o Inquiring the management on their
identification of impairment indication
and their method used for the impairment
assessment of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets;

REBERNBRETR KRERHEHEYEEE
REREEENRENGMARE HER
BETEM :

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and assumption of
pre-tax discount rate used in determining the
recoverable amount;

T 8 7F FT Ue [B) & FE PR AR ik (B 5 0K R B A
MBREERREINEE M

o Evaluating the appropriateness of other key
assumption and input, including the growth
rate of revenue by comparing to historical
performance and relevant operation plans.
FEREBERBNABLETEETLER
MG E MR RER L AR (BRI ALERE)
EEE -
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

24

I REERER (PE) ZRERLDF
BR — &
(RESHEZMA L FRLA)

Hibf5 2

ERRER(EE)) AHHEMESR
" - REERETNENFRANEE -
BREREEMBHRR REMLE LA
B AZ BURD ]

BPEGAVBRENBERAL TRER
iES  RATITHZSEEMEEER
EAEANEEER

BREBRMYEAM B RENTT B
MEEEHELMER  EUHBERT
EREMEERETHEAPHRAIRK
MEZEFBETAEENBAFEERKR
HEEXEUFFEERBRRANBER
ERBEMERTHIE  MREMAER
HERFEEAHERRM KMHF2
BEZFE -GEE/H RORBEM
EHATHE

EENAEEMGESHBHRR
AERENEE

EXFARARBER S EAZESH
o BIBR B 75 5 R R BB (R BHE
FOMBEESETHREEEMT NGRS
MBRE UEBEHRRRESRAMH
BROMETFEBNRFHERNE
RO B K 3 RR Rt P 75 B0 O R 2 )

ERBEEMBRRET EFERTMH
BEEERELENED Y EERBR
THRERASELEBHENER  URE
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ERNEBERTR-

REERBREEER
12 o
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

£

R EREE (PE) ZRERD A
BR—&
(RESHEZMA L FRLA])

BB F S RS MR R
EHEME

BZMWER SHRAMBHRERBRER
BN FEHNRFRERMEFINERKR
HRRABRSAERE  ARBEHER
BEXERNE2BRRHABEUMAER
EVAZ AR RS - BR Uk ASN R I RS A
AREEMAR - HMALTHARSEZ
WA A E A A LA E R B E S
REMAED - AEFRERSKFHRE -
BRERERBEBEFEIETNE
O ER-BEABRRAGFER GRS
B o $B AR PR AT DA (KRR X 8 AR ol AR
R A I T8 HE (P B8 9 Bk [ AREE 2R AT e
TERAVBBRREAEKBEZESRS
MBRERMIELORERE » Al BB
ERBUR AT RARIEE X -

ERBEBETENETETHBRES
BPIERT EXHAME - REFTERIESR
BB o AT

o BRIAFFfEBENIRFEREERMEK
REMBHRRFEERERRDDH
R - RERMITE IR ALY
BEERE  ARERFEEMEE D
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MRS RER  BE &
BER BRI EBRAR
2z £ FReERIRERIEM
B E AR A R & R
REERRERMEBNBAHERR
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o
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

>

IR EREE (PE) ZRERD A
BR — &
(RESHEZMA L FRLA)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tung Wai Lung Ricky.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEakHEMEENRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-BA=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR T ARETF T
Revenue A 5 6,147,262 5,455,246
Other income E g A 7 103,767 170,732
Raw materials and consumables used B B B &l R FEHF (2,341,334) (2,130,169)
Staff costs 8 TRk AR 19 (1,829,717) (1,478,146)
Property rentals and related expenses )2 & M EEEFH X 11 (298,069) (219,593)
Utilities expenses INGEE$- 3 (201,567) (190,277)
Depreciation and amortization e R 11 (1,052,911) (1,006,161)
Other expenses HEfx 8 (441,814) (382,490)
Other gains and losses H W zs R EE 9 (206,708) (53,655)
Finance costs B 75 B 2N 10 (92,562) (98,310)
(Loss) profit before tax Fioal (&) FE 11 (213,653) 67,177
Income tax expense Frigfim = 12 (69,480) (55,692)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)FE (283,133) 11,485
Total comprehensive (expense) FAZE (B WAL
income for the year (283,133) 11,485
(Loss) profit for the year DTALTEMER (BE)
attributable to: F58 :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F=IN (293,212) 1,837
Non-controlling interest FEFE AR T 10,079 9,648
(283,133) 11,485
Total comprehensive (expense) DTATEMAZE (AX)
income attributable to: U A #8855 .
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE T =N (293,212) 1,837
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR A 2 10,079 9,648
(283,133) 11,485
(Loss) earnings per share BR (5B &R
— basic (RMB cents per share) — EXK(ERARESD) 13 (27.28) 0.17
— diluted (RMB cents per share) — BB (BRARE D) 13 (27.28) 0.17
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE KRR
As at 31 December 2021
R g el

As at 31 December

RTrEHAEF=FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR%T AR TIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENERE 16 1,052,577 1,296,622
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 1,638,334 1,971,529
Intangible assets mLEE 2,403 1,977
Deferred tax assets RN IE & B 18 43,020 86,203
Rental deposits HeiEe 19 169,582 169,741
Financial assets at fair value FiRERE AT E=E
through profit or loss ([EBERRATE
(“FVTPL") SEREDZERMEE 22 = 36,315
Interest in a joint venture NELSPHE R 34 49,000 —
2,954,916 3,562,387
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 20 598,962 690,921
Trade and other receivables and H 5 e AR 30 K o e U
prepayments FRIE A KR TE A 3RIR 21 394,790 391,715
Restricted bank balances PR B ER 1T 45 gk 23 66,268 37,609
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RIS 24 920,533 1,097,324
Financial assets at fair value FiRERE AT E=Z
through profit or loss ([EBERRATE
(“FVTPL") TR EREE 22 15,832 =
1,996,385 2,217,569
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B S EMNERR 25 250,694 341,225
Accrual and other payables FEtE RN EMENSHIE 26 603,868 703,529
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 509,492 564,756
Income tax payables B TSR 10,111 45,628
Contract liabilities EXBEE 28 316,640 301,701
Deferred income JRIEU A 29 1,277 1,966
Bank borrowings IRITER 30 75,804 20,000
1,767,886 1,978,805
Net current assets REBEEEE 228,499 238,764
Total assets less current liabilities ZA&EERREB AR 3,183,415 3,801,151
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As at 31 December 2021
e e e ot i - g

As at 31 December

inTr=EZ=E9r=12
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR%T AR T T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income PR AT WA 29 25,033 26,162
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 1,089,793 1,400,285
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBERE 18 3,958 =
Provisions B 31 53,329 34,536
1,172,113 1,460,983
Net assets EEZEE 2,011,302 2,340,168
Capital and reserves EXKH#E
Share capital % A% 32 176 175
Share premium and reserves IRt 5 B N R 1,969,412 2,318,705
Equity attributable to owners of RRAFHEB ANE(LE=
the Company 1,969,588 2,318,880
Non-controlling interest FEFE RS RE S 41,714 21,288
Total equity RSB 2,011,302 2,340,168

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 224 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 28
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

BN EIE248 v R A M EREREH
gEFeN T _—_F=A-_t+/N\B#LE

REEEMN I

HTIIEFARESE

Ho Kuang-Chi Chen Su-Yin
B x BRE R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EBEF BEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A B 3£ 4
REERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

Attributable to owners of the Company

ESAEE 2N 31
Equity-
settled
share-based  Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
N
LD
RERN R ER
kx  RBEE fRE EREE  ROBE  RERN @it FERER @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR ARETn ARMTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR
(Note i)
(R 3i)
At 1 January 2020 RZF-FE-A-H 174 539,824 26,781 36,318 (78493) 1,850,841 2,375,445 11,395 2,386,840
Profit for the year FRHE = = = = - 1,837 1,837 9648 11,485
Other comprehensive income for £RE M2 EHA

the year - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for N2 ENALH

the year - - - - - 1,837 1,837 9,648 11,485
Recognition of equitysettled ~ BRARELENRH A

share-based payments ERHER - = 12,884 = = = 12,884 = 12,884
Exercise of issued share option  {TEE &#{1ER#E 1 11,974 (3.637) = - = 8,338 = 8,338
Exercise of Restricted Share Unit TR X R (3 51 ([

("RSU") Scheme RABAELR ) el - 9 (10467) - 10370 i _ _ i
Payments of dividends (Note 15) JEFTAR & (Ff3k15) - (19,624) = = = - (19624) - (19,624)
Capital injection from FERERTE

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - 25 245
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE

surplus reserve - - - 8,352 - (8,352) - - -
At 31 December 2020 e 25

== 175 472,21 25,561 44,670 (68,123) 1,844326 2,318,880 21,288 2,340,168
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAARGE
Equity-
settled
share-based ~ Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
N
GENRR
RERN EE ER
Rx  RGEE AREE  EHRE  RORE  REEA a FoRER it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARWTR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note i)
(H3ti)
(Loss) profit for the year En(BR)FE - - - - - (9321 (93212) 10,079 (283,133)
Other comprehensive income for ERE M2 EMA
the year - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive (expense) M2 (%)
income for the year KA#% - = - = - (9321) (293212 10079 (283,133)
Recognition of equity-settled BUREEE AR I
share-based payments ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ - - 8,778 - - - 8,778 - 8,778
Exercise of issued share option  {TEE #{TER#E 1 8,513 (2,584) = - = 5,930 - 5,930
Bxercise of RSU Scheme ST UETRE | - @) (13,021) - 1519 - - -
Payments of dividends (Note 15) JEFTAR & (Ht3k15) - (60,000) = = = - (60,000) - (60,000)
Purchase of treasury share under REX KR (A Ehizt 2
restricted share unit scheme BREERRLH - - - - (10,788) - (10,788) - (10,788)
Capital injection from FARERTE
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - 10,347 10,347
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE
surplus reserve - - - 2,496 - (2,496) - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-8=-£124A
=t-H 176 418,614 18,734 47,966 (63,7200 1,548,618 1,969,588 4,714 2,011,302
Note: Bt 5
(i) According to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law and (i) BWEREARENE ([RE]) AFE

the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, these
companies are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax
profits, calculated in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to entities established in the PRC, to
the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised, upon
approval of the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of these companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

EAEETENBARNNEABZEIZA
A ZERARAKEZERBEAR
PEKNZERBNEBEERETE

AR ENBRZMNEN10%E ALE
BRFERE BEERABAREIEME
REI50% ° ZAABMBRLER X ER
R R A A O IR 3H R AT B B S N Ex
ERAMAMER HZEELED
J& M+ FE T B AR 25% B 7K F ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR% T AR®ETIT
Operating activities REEH
(Loss) profit before tax AT (EE) A8 (213,653) &1 A77
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMRETE
equipment 464,925 406,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 586,365 597,060
Impairment loss, net of reversal RWEEE - HREE
— property, plant and equipment — ME  BENMKRE 64,981 37,117
— right-of-use assets — PREAE 54,447 45,528
— other receivables — H U ERIE 17,662 16,881
— rental deposit —HeHe 13,439 =
Amortization of intangible assets B EEHE 1,621 2,634
Recognition of equity-settled share-based — #:2 L/(Hx%%%;uﬁﬁ{ﬁz%gﬁ’%
payments EOEDE 8,778 12,884
Interest income on bank deposits HRITFE R E WA (3,782) (2,313)
Interest income on loan receivable fE W E ZF B U A - (2,176)
Interest income on other financial asset at 1Z#E KA ENHM S G E
amortised cost E R F B A (7,078) (6,661)
Gain from changes in fair value of BEBREREAFEFENS R
financial assets at FVTPL BEMAFEEEHMFKE (5,965) (60,369)
Government grant released from deferred [ & % Ug A % [0 &9 B AT 48 B
income (1,818) (1,873)
Foreign exchange loss, net (A = 8,095 14,863
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BMELKEERE
equipment, net FER 761 1,172
Finance costs B 7% A AN 92,562 98,310
Gain on termination of lease LIt Er =S (44,482) (11,046)
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities EHHEEEENKE (5,975) =
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-191HFEH £ B = (3,965) (60,727)
Loss on closure of restaurants A E R E 1B 100,501 =
Operating cash flows before movements in ZE&E S EFHAMNE LIRS RE
working capital 1,127,419 1,154,928
Movements in working capital %@\/i\ﬁé@]
Decrease in inventories FERD 91,959 20,852
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B 5 EWEE O (3% h0) 10,632 (16,211)
Increase in other receivables and H b & Yo mi I8 K T8 5RIE
prepayments 1% 40 (35,251) (12,725)
Decrease in loan receivable EWE:; AH’J\ = 32,102
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B 5 MR (R 4>) 180 (90,531) 23,383
(Decrease) increase in accrual and other & B & E b B~ B8
payables CRLA) N (12,775) 7,024
Increase in contract liabilities S4B EE 14,939 155,684
Increase in deferred income i T IR A 3E N = 18,309
Cash generated from operations KEEHAMERE 1,106,392 1,383,346
Income taxes paid Eﬁﬁﬁ@ffﬁ (57.,856) (113,141)
Net cash from operating activities RETBHMEBESFE 1,048,536 1,270,205
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EZEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR AREBTT
Investing activities REED
Interests income received =ELENESNON 3,782 2,313
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL EBEFSBESEATETEN
S REE (1,879,669) (3,036,704)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&:FBEFIZAFETEN
at FVTPL SREEMGNIA 1,906,117 3,130,830
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERXE
equipment (438,959) (404,632)
Acquisition of investment in a joint WEREELENTRE
venture (49,000) -
Payments for right-of-use assets 2 AEEEMNK (5,146) (5,120)
Utilization of provisions B A (16,200) (1,320)
Payments for rental deposits HeRL MR (31,407) (20,575)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ﬁ’ii%% B NS
and equipment N 1,874 124
Purchases of intangible assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,é? (2,047) (1,129)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances TREN 2[R HI R 1T 45 #4 118,503 69,135
Placement of restricted bank balances TR GIER1T 4 84 (147,162) (106,744)
Net cash used in investing activities REEFBFARSFHE (539,314) (373,822)
Financing activities MEED
Dividend paid 2T A (60,000) (79,624)
Interest paid [=ANELIYY (1,732) (4,027)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEX (20,000) (220,701)
Repayments of leases liabilities HEBGEENK (663,958) (528,378)
New bank borrowings raised MESRITER 75,804 240,701
Cash received from exercise of share TEEREEENIRS
option 5,930 8,338
Payment for purchase of ordinary shares B B & i & < 2% (Bt 5£33)
(Note 33) (12,294) -
Capital injection from non-controlling IR ERTE
interest 10,347 245
Proceeds from other financing activities H b g & E B FT 1S BUE - 55,000
Repayment from other financing activities — E b7 & & 8)i&E (17,402) (37,498)
Net cash used in financing activities METEMARSFE (683,305) (565,944)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash Be MBS HE D) B INFRE
equivalents (174,083) 330,439
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning E#IR4 RIREEE
of the year 1,097,324 785,192
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EEEEHE (2,708) (18,307)
Cash and cash equivalents attheend FREELRRESZENET
of the year represented by bank EHRRES
balances and cash 920,533 1,097,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RN E e

For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

|

106

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the "Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. Its shares have been listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
on 17 December 2014. The address of the registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company and the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are principally engaged
in Chinese hotpot restaurant operations in the PRC.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Ying Qi Investments
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), and its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, who is also the Chairman
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

—REH

PR EERER (R IERE
RAR (AR BERSHS
NAVEEREHS MK BB
REREFERF - ARFWHKRMNHE
N e I 2 S e o (2
BEEXSMAERAR ([BRA])
IR ETE o AR F)FE M EE b
iiF A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &K 2
AAREERAR  MARARE
MEBAR (KBIAEE]) F2E
B AR R A R o

RARMEEZER AR AYing Qi
Investments Limited (A 3 B 5z % B¥
EaMAy) RERKRERSTAE
HEESE  BEIRNARRRINESE -

FEVBBRRAARE (AR
25 ARBTRARARNINES
W o
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified
the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

RAFE  NEBERER TS
BERest 228 e (ERE
HEAZEBEE]) B MHE R % &
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FI% - BIREsHE
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HERAE 165
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Fl=EENE
- F-KE

AN REE B IRATE R R
BREEDFI65 (BFIA) - F
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BT ER -

o - REEERBEB 2R ERZ
BB TEBRIUEREENRESR
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (CONTINUED)

108

2.1 Impacts on early application of Amendment

to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has early applied the amendment in the current
year. The amendment extends the availability of the practical
expedient in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16")
by one year so that the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2021. The Group has
benefited from 1 to 12 months waiver of lease payments on
several leases in restaurants. The Group has derecognised
the part of lease liability that has been extinguished by
the forgiveness of lease payments using the discount rates
originally applied to these leases respectively, resulting in a
decrease in the lease liabilities of RMB3,965,000, which has
been recognised as variable lease payments in profit or loss
for the current year.

AEBEBERAFEIRAER
ZAEF] AN o B 7] AN 5 B R
MBHREERE165REE
(TERR A A RIS 1655% )
FA6AR Z FITHRE IEZ A
AMER—F URATHE
B AERRBEENRZE
MREETERIHER =
B _FRA=ZTHRZA
ZNRZzZBEEEE - ATEE
FER AT E 77 R 2 HEAtb &
FREER ©

ERZETAER =T = —
F—A B8R E&F
WEZE AEEZBERE
TEEHENHENRES
—=2t+t-_@AAMNEKE - A&
BEERItEARNERHEE R
R (DR KAZEHERYE
FHERIR X)) f ik A0 o
EaE - ExHEaERD
A R #3,965,0007T © & R A
FEMBZABRARNEME
B
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERERMK®RSESER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (BB BHmEEA] &
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (CONTINUED) H W NE )

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet CEMEERERZFHEEH
effective PREF IS 3RS 2 A R HAEFT R
The Group has not early applied the following new and ANEFWHEIEFEA T D EHE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet i R A2 T BT B PR B RS R s 2E A
effective: REAEFTA :
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments’ BERHBEREEN  RRAOREBETAR
E17%
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework' AR BRsEn  HaERED
EELACHEY
Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor BB BREENE10 HEEBEBE DA
AS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture® EREReEN  AECEZRNEED
285 (BF1A) EgTE
Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BB EREIR //@J'JZ?FU@JEF\Z
Non-current’ GCHEY) HE
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ BReEEIRE SHBREE
IFRS Practice Statement 2 B P B 7 e o 2 B
Eﬁ%fﬁ&m%z%ﬁ
(BFTA) -
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BRet el g%  eifiiteEs’
GCHEY)
Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising BReEAESE E-RFEEZEER
from a Single Transaction’ CHEY) BEREETHE
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plantand Equipment - Proceeds before AReERE16 NE BERRE-
Intended Use' (BFA) BT RRAAMENE
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract' RREENETR BEMAN-
(BEXK) BITAHMMKE
Amendments to IFRSs Standards Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020' Gl s el @%Eﬁ%#ﬁi“‘J z
(fB3T) -NFE-T-FF
?@%ﬁﬁ’\]ifﬁﬁ&f
1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 1. RIZEB-_—_F—-—A—BadzEHR
IR R EAR AR o
2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 2. RZEZ=F—H—HBz%zEHA
b6 89 G S HARE AE R -
3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3. REEETHHK ZERBNEE
determined. HARR K o
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that RKATES([ESE]) EHER
the application of all above new and amendments to IFRSs will T A ] BB S A R H
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements BRI AR~ ER RAKRANLEGZES
in the foreseeable future. MERREEFMNEATE -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on HKEX ("Listing
Rules") and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have, at the time of approving the consolidated
financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

AFEEERFEEMHELH
EREBUMFRGPELEEE
AT ER S 8E ik B B A T
B MAwmzEBERER
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112

b\

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MERECUBHRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT REESHBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3.1 REGEHMBERRZE
statements (continued) It (4Z)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o BB E2EHEmME - A

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based TEA=EBREAFLES=N

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value BMAHSEBEIEBEREERAF
measurements are observable and the significance of the B2 8E AR L2

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which NEZUESERE—HK B

are described as follows: ZHRE=AR BT

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . FE—RBABELSETR
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity Bee HREt = BEEHE W
can access at the measurement date; HMREEXE8ERE

BigHmE CREHE
)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices s F_RBMAREBRRE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the —RET AN Z BB LASNAT
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and BESREEEREES

BEGFHNE ASE
&

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e ZE=RBWABBREAE

liability. FBENTAEBRRE A
BIE -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

(i)  has power over the investee;

(ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

(iii)  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
controls until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control" of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group generates revenues from restaurant operation and
sales of condiment products and other goods.

For restaurant operation for which the control of services is
transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the related services have been rendered to customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from the sales of condiment products and other
goods for which the control of goods is transferred at a
point in time, is recognised when the goods are delivered
and titles have passed.

For delivery service for takeout orders for which the control
of service is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the related services have been rendered to
customers.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments ("IFRS 9"). In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

The Group operates a customer loyalty program through
which reward credits are granted to the customers on
consuming in the restaurants that entitle them to consume
by offsetting the reward credits on future purchases and
consumptions in the restaurants. These reward credits
provide a right to consume by offsetting the reward credits
to customers that they would not receive without future
purchases and consumptions in the restaurants. The promise
to provide the right to the customer is therefore a separate
performance obligation.

The transaction price is allocated between the restaurant
operation service provided and the reward credits on a
relative standalone selling price basis. The standalone selling
price of each reward credit is estimated based on the right
to be given when the reward credits are redeemed by the
customer and the likelihood of redemption, as evidenced by
the Group's historical experience.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate standalone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable
standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of restaurants, rented premises and
catering delivery robots that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms

and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied the

practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. When a lease contract contains a specific
clause that provides for rent reduction or suspension of rent
in the event that the underlying assets (or any part thereof)
are affected by adverse events beyond the control of the
Group and the lessor so as to render the underlying assets
unfit or not available for use, the relevant rent reduction
or suspension of rent resulting from the specific clause is
accounted for as part of the original lease and not as a lease
modification. Such rent reduction or suspension of rent is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments to occur.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MERECUBHRRZEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT REEESTHE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFBE(E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEEFERBFKRHAA ()
Lease liabilities (continued) HEAE(E)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a WEBEELTBER  AEBSE
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) MErEMEAE L HAERE
whenever: FRiEEEFLARERE) :
e the lease term has changed or there is a change in o THHIRAZHLENIT

the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market o
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEFCHMBHRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEEESHEHE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEESFTHE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative standalone price of the lease component
and the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease
components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 if the changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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HE

3.

e =t g 1 0

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
government grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, the obligations of the
Group under which are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan. Payments to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contribution.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options and restricted share units granted to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
Note 33 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options and restricted share units granted to
employees (continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (equity-settled
share-based payments reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instrument expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimate, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled share-based payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in equity-settled share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When restricted share
units are exercised, the difference between the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-based payments
reserve and the cost of purchase of treasure share before
will be transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in equity-settled share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress as described
below are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property, plant and equipment, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets representing trademark and software that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives as below:

Trademark 10 years
Software 3 years

The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MBS BRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEEESHEHE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EEETTHER(E)

132

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the year, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

mEZE
REESHE &

MBEHRR2EE

3.2 BEERFTEE (&)

EHEE (&)
=@ EER D ERE R

Z(#&)

HEBTIER EREER

FIEERE -

e HUBHTIEANEH
AHE - =

s RUTHAKEBD &
AeMIAEEGH—&
D MASEEREEE
Ze BOMAERE
BREHENMER 3L

e HUFETER/HEATL
B ERLENRFEHHRT
EMPTET A -

S AN - SR B A] T R A
5 78 1 G PR R 08 B B A
EPHRARAFEFENS
MEERERNBEBEBRER
RFEFAENTAGTE A
REAMAEEAHERIEX
A G o

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=—#%% 139



For the year ended 31 December 2021
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B4R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EESFTHE (&)
Financial assets (continued) LA EE (&)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TEREEN S ERARZL
assets (continued) E (&)

Q Amortised cost and interest income Q

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank
balances and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually

for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MAFSUBHEKREE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEESTHRE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 SITHE (&
Financial assets (continued) 2HEZE (B)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) T EERFE (E)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk () EERBRAEE N
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased RITEEERRER
significantly since initial recognition, the Group )95 TR IA R E K iR 1
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial e - NEE LR R
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a TARHEBBHERE
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the A E) BB B oz & @l T
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, A0 090 #E5R B 8 3R
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative EH R R o 1E LT
information that is reasonable and supportable, B AfEeEESE
including historical experience and forward-looking REBENTEERENE
information that is available without undue cost or BEF - BRELERR
effort. BRILE T W RKAK
¥5 0 BN AT 15 & BT BE 1
In particular, the following information is taken LER FHEEERAR
into account when assessing whether credit risk has EERNEBMEEEE
increased significantly: T3E R
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in s SRI AN (40
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or B)XABEEN
internal credit rating; B ERKTERE
X
e significant deterioration in external market s FEERABRMI A
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase IRCE RPN
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices =Ae - HImER A
for the debtor; WEER=E 58
B HREREG
n
e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, o FBHNEHEBA
financial or economic conditions that are expected BITHEEL AT
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's PPN T E S
ability to meet its debt obligations; % - B SR IR
EVIR B K IERI
MESH
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in s BEHRAREXREDN
the operating results of the debtor; %E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
e an actual or expected significant adverse change e BHEBABTH
in the regulatory, economic, or technological BHEENE DR
environment of the debtor that results in a 8 T P& EB AL
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet BB ITIR
its debt obligations. BHERKAHE
RAFEE o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEFCHMBHRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEEESHEHE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEESFTHE (&)
Financial assets (continued) THREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 EER R E (E)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

87

144

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

—~

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance

account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. mBEZE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EEE®BE =)

148

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MUGSUBBRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FEEESHRE#Z
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEESFTHE (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) THEEREZ (&
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEERENFEGTER

TEEE
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the fi) & Bt B &) A W EE 5 KB
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer B B 755 e 15 4 BN 38355 P i A
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (i) held ZEBEHFREHARE - (i)
for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL. BIERX S ABLNEE RE

BEDEAFEFTE AR
BREBESEATENE -

A financial liability is held for trading if: TREBBENBATER 8
REBEEXSHAE :
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e WEENTFERNEH
repurchasing it in the near term; or WEEE 5k
e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of o RURERE  HER
identified financial instruments that the Group manages AEESEREENDH
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term Rler T REAEH—&B
profit-taking; or o B Bi i B B3R RS A
BRI 3
. it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a . BUTETE (AIEAES®
financial guarantee contract or a designated and BEIR & KSR E R 7]
effective hedging instrument. BRUERE R T EMLT
HET AR -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost EH KA B2 A
=4
Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, trade payables cRBEE(BERITER - Z
and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised 55 & A~ R SR % B A JE < SR IE)
cost using the effective interest method. HERBERAM R X1 H
BXARGTE o
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIFIER A E
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only EREBEAREEEXER
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or BBORSEME  AEE
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of MR IERAERBE  KIE
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid BRzeRAEREMBERED
and payable is recognised in profit or loss. NERENREBZEZBIRE

R -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts: and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal option,
specifically, the leases relating to restaurants. The assessment
of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise renewal
options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
Re-assessment is performed upon the occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic incentives/
penalties for exercising or not exercising the options. Factors
considered include:

° contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount of
payments in the optional periods is below the market rates);

o the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by Group;

o costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset suitable
for the Group's needs);

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the exercise of the
renewal option, which is detailed in Note 17, resulted in an
additional amount of RMB166,693,000 of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities recognised.

The Group has termination options for leases of restaurants. These
are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of the
termination options held are only exercisable by the Group not by
the respective lessors.

FTESHHERMGT TR
EEENEFERE#®)
FERE
(%)

SIS 0 B g BT

EESEEE R AEEeE
BRAERBNEERBR - BT
BT TEAREERNEER
o FTEBENAEAREE :

e HUMBEEXRMT AHOKE
AR ERT7 TH A 18R B Mg (1
MEEPENRERREE
RiGERX)

e AREBEETHWHEMEEE
RE

. i“t%ﬁi"fﬁ’ﬁﬁf@ﬁizli(ﬁllzuﬁ
BRA -VEEGAKET
KOEMBEREENKA)

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HI1
FE - TEEHEER GIBRER
MIaE17) BRBEINEREREEE
LHEaEARK166,693,0007T °

AEERFERHENRLERE
o ZEEERDANREREAE
BREmAEERNEEHBESK
LR - IR AMARD R IEE
BREJHAEETE - MILIEH
BRHLBEAITE -

TR N RS 18 (R AR B R A R] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

4,

e =t g 1 0

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

The Group assessed at lease commencement date and concluded
it is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination options. In
addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain not
to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that
is within the control of the lessee. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group exercised the termination options for under-performing
restaurants under Xiabuxiabu brand to integrate light model to
promote the business and maintain the overall profitability level of
the Group.

As a result, the Group remeasure the lease liability to reflect
changes to the lease payments. The Group recognised the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. However, as the carrying amount of
certain right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group
recognised the remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit
or loss amounted to RMB5,975,000 during the current year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets are stated at
costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The
Directors review their impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group have to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimate the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumption and estimate, including the growth
rate of revenue and the discount rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
Furthermore, the cash flows projections, growth rate and discount
rate are subject to greater uncertainties due to uncertainty on how
the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in
financial markets, including potential disruptions in the Group’s
restaurants’ operations.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets subject to impairment
assessment were RMB792,930,000 and RMB1,638,334,000 (31
December 2020: RMB1,018,607,000 and RMB1,971,529,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses of
RMB44,016,000 and RMB54,447,000 (2020: RMB37,117,000
and RMB45,528,000 respectively. Details of the impairment of
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets are disclosed in
Notes 16 and 17 respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable temporary difference and taxable profit
will be available. Significant management judgment is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax in the period in which such estimates are changed. As at 31
December 2021, deferred tax assets recognised are approximately
RMB43,020,000 (31 December 2020: RMB86,203,000), in which
RMB11,504,000 (31 December 2020: RMB14,553,000) is from
deductible temporary difference of royalty expense (details
reference to Note 18). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses of RMB379,287,000 (2020: RMB179,584,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in respective
subsidiaries. Further details are contained in Note 18.

The Group applies incremental borrowing rates as the discount
rates of lease liabilities, which require financing spread adjustments
and lease specific adjustments based on the relevant market rates.
The assessments of the adjustments in determining the discount
rates involved management’s judgment, which may significantly
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are RMB1,638,334,000 and RMB1,599,285,000
(2020: RMB1,971,529,000 and RMB1,965,041,000) respectively.
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5. REVENUE 5 WA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) BEFEXHNWADIF

with customers

During the year, the Group’s revenue which represents FA-REBRWA (BNEEER
the amount received and receivable from the restaurants ¥ HEFANERNKREM
operation, sales of condiment products and other goods, net BHane Wk EEKZE (21
of discount and sales related taxes, are as follows: BRITH REEHRBEFE)) !0

TS 8

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-ZE--S+-A=+—-HLEE
Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total

MR g MER O BE Ht HEt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR¥®Tn AR¥Tx

Type of goods or service ERFIREER

Restaurant operations BEER 3,497,210 2,353,479 - 5,850,689

Sales of condiment products $5& #E K E R - - 126,210 126,210

Sales of other goods HEEME R 27,544 203 142,616 170,363
Total et 3,524,754 2,353,682 268,826 6,147,262
Geographical markets & ™%

Mainland China LaETpN 3,524,754 2,229,446 268,826 6,023,026

Hong Kong BB - 124,236 - 124,236
Total #Et 3,524,754 2,353,682 268,826 6,147,262
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA@®

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EEEHWADIF(E)
with customers (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
E=m e A== 5
Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total

NER ey AR O == Hh, Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT AREFTT

Type of goods or service 7 @ = BRI % B!

Restaurant operations ey S 3,464,010 1,686,580 - 5,150,590
Sales of condiment
products HEFARE R - - 147,843 147,843

Sales of other goods SMEH M S 37,505 2,475 116,833 156,813
Total Bt 3,501,515 1,689,055 264,676 5,455,246
Geographical markets HE ™5

Mainland China o B K R 3,501,515 1,623,904 264,676 5,390,095

Hong Kong E5 - 65,151 - 65,151
Total HBEt 3,501,515 1,689,055 264,676 5,455,246
No revenue from individual external customer contributing B ASNEL R = B B A U AR
over 10% of total revenue of the Group. ERANEFBEIWARNI0% o
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA
(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) "EHEEZEFEHNTIEE
performance obligation for contracts with ,f(:’\],\ THNRBE
Customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance SREFBBHRE KRBT
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) and the IO REIT) R F B M E
expected timing of recognizing revenue are as follows: RUT AR TEEARE S 0 T
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_—F+=-HA=+—H
Customer Advance
loyalty Prepaid from
scheme cards customer
BE
BHESE BN+ BEFEX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T ARET T

Within one year —F R 14,985 294,391 4,201
More than one year but not #8i&— 4

more than two years BB 3,063 - -
Total #HEr 18,048 294,391 4,201
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_FTF+_-_HA=+—H
Customer Advance

loyalty Prepaid from

scheme cards customer

BEE
B E A S BR EFEBK
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Within one year —F R 14,232 282,714 2,299
More than one year but not #8i&—

more than two years BB F 2,456 - -
Total HEr 16,688 282,714 2,299
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5.

REVENUE (conTINUED)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
Customers (continued)

The customer loyalty points have a twelve months to
twenty-nine months’ valid period after the grant of award
credits based on different types of loyalty programmes
and can be redeemed anytime within the valid period at
customers’ discretion. The amounts disclosed above represent
the Group’s expectation on the timing of redemption made
by customers.

The Group issued the prepaid cards which can be utilised
in the future consumption in restaurants at customers’
discretion. The amounts disclosed above represent the
Group’s expectation on the timing of utilization made by
customers.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

As disclosed in the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure in 2020 which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. With the development of
the Group’s business, each brand of “Xiabuxiabu” and “Coucou”
is considered as a separate operating segment for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance by
the CODM.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

o Xiabuxiabu: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Xiabuxiabu”.

o Coucou: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Coucou”.

In addition to the above reportable segments, other operating
segments include operation of the condiment products and
other goods that were not sold out by Xiabuxiabu restaurants or
Coucou restaurants. None of these segments met the quantitative
thresholds for the reportable segments in both current and prior
year. Accordingly, these were grouped in “Others”.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ﬁ‘(:_l: R AR A\ ﬁB (fm

7 EBRA R FER
AN B A 255 W B 5 MBS
BRI AR REATOT

ME =B = B

FE
Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others  eliminations  Consolidated
RERE R TREANEE iy  H#ERER &4
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE ARRA
External sales NIHE 3,524,754 2,353,682 5,878,436 268,826 - 6,147,262
Inter-segment sales PPHEE - - - 332,850 (332,850) -
3,524,754 2,353,682 5,878,436 601,676 (332,850) 6,147,262
Segment results (Note) s 2 iR 34,019 23 105,302 38,853 = 144,155
Impairment losses on property, plant and \ o
equipment Nz RERRBAERSE (48,535) (5,811) (54,346) (10,635) = (64,981)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets EREAENESR (50,053) (4,3%) (54,447) - - (54.447)
Impairment losses on other receivables R RN EER (1,109) (153) (1,262) (16,400) = (17,662)
Impairment loss on rental deposits EeRe JAERR (13,184) (255) (13.439) - - (13.439)
Loss on closure of restaurans BRRERR o (103,654) - (103654) - - (103,656)
Gain from changes in fair value of }fijﬁ/ BATEENSREEN
financial assets at FVTPL AVERBAELE 26,947 - 26,947 - - 26,947
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE - FRERIE
equipment, net BEEE (368) (312) (680) (81) - (761)
Interest on bank borrowings RTRHHE (975) = (975) (757) = (1,732)
Segment (oss) profit FB(ER)ME (156,852) 60,208 (96,554) 10,980 - (85,574)
Unallocated loss from changesin FREARATEABHOREEN
fair value of financial assets at FTPL ATEEBNAHEEE (20,982)
Unallocated central administration costs APEG-EENA (97,392)
Unallocated directors” emoluments AAREZHM (9,705)
Loss before tax HABE (213,653)
Other segment information Hih o IE R
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: HADEEBETENSE
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others costs ~ Consolidated
BRER BE UEEANAE At RARHA &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB*000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Depreciation and amortization EREy (688,199) (339,574)  (1,027,173) (21,114) (3.424)  (1,052,911)
Gain on termination of lease RIREN SR 44,482 - 44,482 - - 44,482
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities EfRERENA 5975 - 5,975 - - 5975
Finance costs (excluding interest on HERA(FRERIERHE)
bank borrowings) (57,736) (33,014) (90,750) (80) - (90,830)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KEFE®)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEUT ARG EE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—SE-_E&+-—A=+—HI1
FE
Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others ~eliminations  Consolidated
REER & UERSHEE iy  ARREH G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
AEEFL  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE AR
External sales NPHE 3,501,515 1,689,055 5,190,570 264,676 - 5,455,246
Inter-seqment sales APEEE - - - 287359 (287359) =
3,501,515 1,689,055 5,190,570 552,035 (287,359) 5,455,246
Seqment resuls Note) AR M) G036 l4gd 1B 40 -
Impairment losses on property, plant and % BERREREESR
equipment (37.17) - (37.117) - - (37.117)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FREAENEER (45,528) - (45,528) = - (45,528)
Impairment losses on other receivables EhENTERERE - - - (16,881) - (16,881)
Gain from changes in fair value of BRRRELTEIENEHEEN
financial assets at FVTPL ATEEDMENS 25,474 - 25,474 - - 25,474
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERREEERE
equipment, net (1172) - (1172) - - (1172
Interest on bank borrowings RTRFAE (3,186) (368) (3,554) (4n) - (4,027)
Segment (loss) profit AR(ER)HE (1,133) 114,456 11333 24,853 - 138,176
Unallocated gain from changes n fair BARRRATENENEREEN
value of financial assets at FVTPL ATERINA AR YE 34,895
Unallocated central administration costs FORG-ERKA (93,08)
Unallocated directors’ emoluments AAREZEH (12,7%)
Profit before tax B 67177
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. BeEFE)

DEWRARELE ()
BZE-_Z-_ZTf+-A=+—HL

Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

L3
Other segment information H o2& R
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: HADEBETENSZE -
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others costs  Consolidated
REHE £ TZRAPEE iy KARRE 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Depreciation and amortization fEREH (724,508) (259,310) (983,818) (18919) (3424 (1,006,161)
Gain on termination of lease RrREaE 9,997 1,049 11,046 - - 11,046
Finance costs (excluding interest on bank SEHA(PRRERTEAFE)
borrowings) (64,625) (29,392) (94.017) (266) - (94.283)
Note: The measure used for reporting segment result is the adjusted Mizr: 2RO BEEFMBAER LA
segment profit (loss) before (i) Certain gain or loss from changes HBROEBREBESEAFETF=E

in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL;

(ii) Interest on bank

borrowings; (iii) Impairment loss and disposal loss on non-current
assets; (iv) Impairment loss on other receivables and (v) Loss on

MEREEATFEEIMESE
T USSR AR 5 (IDIRTT 15 A
B (iERBEEREERR

closure of restaurants. HERsE iv VEL ftb JE UK 5K IE R
BEEE: RVEBREBEBIEA
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CoNTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/(loss) represents
the profit earned by/loss from each segment without allocation of
certain gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of financial assets/
liabilities at FVTPL, central administration costs and directors’
emoluments. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

S
K&E2E (w)

7 EPRA R R (B
REEEHBOGHBRREAEE
S EE—B - HHFE/ (BR)

EENBREHFE ELENE
B ERUTESREABRIEAT
Bt ENEeRMEE, BENATFE
B2EIEETKE(EE) &
—EERAREZEHM - LTI E

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

BORMREFERNEEE

EHRENFET A -

D ESFESH B RIRTTME

THEERERE
AEEZA 2

BIRE

BRTE -

BREEDHLE D

reportable and operating segments: BERBEITWOT
As at 31 December 2021
R-8--F1-A=1-H
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others assets  Consolidated
RE R R TREANER By  FIREE &4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETn  AR¥TR  ARETR
Segment assets AHEE 2,516,105 1,823,464 4,339,569 542,626 69,106 4,951,301
Other segment information EfbAHEn
Amounts included in the measre of seqment  FFASFEEHENLE
aSSES:
Interest in a joint venture REELENESR - - - 49,000 - 49,000
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BEREE 150,335 201,548 351,883 17,592 - 369,475
Additions to right-of-use assets TEFAELE 283,267 234,315 517,582 - - 517,582
Segment liabilities ARER 170065 1114809  2,804434 115,565 2,939,999
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (conTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

6. BReEDI (=)

PEHEEREE(E)
As at 31 December 2020
i gy =

Xiabuxiabu
REER
RIMB'000

AEET T

Coucou
33
RMB'000
AEETT

Total
reportable Unallocated
segments Others assets
PEZ Gt B KOREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARBTR

Consolidated
54
RIMB'000
ARETT

Segment assets

3,493,243 1,517,183 5,010,426 697,001

72,529 5,779,956

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure
of segment assets:

Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to right-of-use assets

Segment liabilities

AATEEIENAE:

TENE BREREE 217,581 208587 426,168 1,957
REBRE 309,410 238,784 548,194 5,806
2258713 1,083,452 3,342,165 97,63

= 428,125
= 554,000

= 3,439,788

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments based on — FFB
the corresponding operating brands other than certain
unallocated corporate property, plant and equipment and

BIR

&=
>
38 i By my
et o 1oje ik

REESHRBLRRD B 2B E

right-of-use assets; and R & ERES

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments based on — FAAEREBKLRES
the corresponding operating brands. Pl 25 4R A% 43 & o

Revenue from major products and services, geographical =S TREEE L RR

information and information about major customers please

reference to Note 5. B o

The Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets, ZJK’EliF}uL@Jﬁ?(LLﬁIEﬁF

rental deposits and financial assets at FVTPL), including property, e e REBEXR AT Ete

plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and TAERMBER) BIEYE  BE

interests in joint venture are detailed below: LR FRAREEE EREER
AELEEE - KR T

BRWA I EHEERZRFH

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t=-A=+—BHBLEE

2021 2020

—E—_—F —E_FF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTT

Mainland China A A 2,662,286 3,198,934
Hong Kong BB 60,462 71,194
Singapore EZIIE3 19,566 -
2,742,314 3,270,128
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7. OTHER INCOME

7. HMKA

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARMT T ARBTT
Interest income on: FLBWA -
— bank deposits — RITIFERK 3,782 2,313
— other financial asset at amortised —— X KA EHE M
cost TRMEE 7,078 6,661
— loan receivable — ERE R = 2,176
10,860 11,150
Promotion service income HE B AR 755 A - 1,763
Covid-19 related value-added tax Covid-19fH B I ER FA
exemption (Note i) (FF=ED) 22,086 94,749
Government grants B #7 B
— subsidy received (Note ii) — B AL (M &Ei) 28,110 24,767
— released from deferred income — EEW A B D (FFEE29)
(Note 29) 1,818 1,873
29,928 26,640
Delivery income for takeout orders HNEE FT B AR K U A 16,299 17,821
Others HAi 24,594 18,609
40,893 36,430
103,767 170,732
Note i: During the current year, the Group recognised RMB22,086,000 Mizri: HWBER_Z-_ZTF#—H—H
(2020: RMB94,749,000)in respect of Covid-19-related Exﬁzﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁf\ihﬁiﬂﬂﬁj{}*
value-added tax exemption provided by the local government in ERINBAZEE [f)‘j? 1 Bt
accordance with Cai Shui [2020] No.8 Tax Policy on Supporting Fi[2020] 8T K E - WA
Covid-19 Prevention and Control Measures, which came into FE - NEB S M KT
effect on 1 January 2020. According to Cai Shui [2020] No.8, IR HCovid- 19t L BT A %
restaurant operations revenue of the Group is temporarily R AR 22,086,000 (=
exempted from value-added tax until 31 March 2021. T T F : ARM94,749,000
JT) ° 1R & B Bi[2020] 85% -
REBERBLERANERFE
HBRER BEE-_T-_—F=
A=+—RHA&L -
Note ii: The amounts represent the subsidy received from the local MisEii 0 2 SFERIAEE H BT AT W
government for the Group’s local business development. There ARAEBEMEREREDN

were no unfulfilled conditions in the period in which they were
recognised.
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8. OTHER EXPENSES 8. HfBpxX

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F = R
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR AR TIT
Delivery service fee G IR 7S B 87,701 84,641
Professional service fee HERBE 71,406 54,644
Marketing expenses M EHE 68,265 87,295
Logistics expenses i B X 52,928 41,471
Travel and communication expenses 2= ik KB XX 43,311 23,833
Maintenance fees HEE 34,047 40,682
Office and administrative expenses PN RATHF X 30,087 35,737
Others E A 54,069 14,187
441,814 382,490

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtWumZREE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E_—F —_EF-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME  WEREE

and equipment, net BB F R (761) (1,172)
Gain on termination of lease (Note i)  #& |FFA & Us 25 (Pt 551) 44,482 11,046
Gain on reassessment of lease EHMEEEEKS

liabilities (Note ii) (Bff =i ) 5,975 -
Foreign exchange loss, net ME 5 B5 18 )5 58 (8,095) (14,863)
Loss on closure of restaurants (Note iii) 8B 2 B2 &8 (B &Eiii) (103,654) (2,143)
Impairment loss on other receivables i & Ui 2k 18 J5i (& /&5 18 (17,662) (16,881)
Impairment loss on rental deposit HeMe 2 RERBE (13,439) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect Fi¥I% - R RSB EER

of property, plant and equipment BB EE (64,981) (37,117)
Impairment loss recognised in respect Bi{& F 4 & E R REE 1B

of right-of-use assets (54,447) (45,528)
Gain from changes in fair value of BREBEEATEFENS M

financial assets at FVTPL BEENRANTFEZFAERE 5,965 60,369
Loss on disposal of inventory LEEFERE (91) (7,366)

(206,708) (53,655)
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (conTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the current year, the Group decided to close down
a number of under-performing restaurants of Xiabuxiabu to
reinitiate the business and maintain the overall profitability
level of the Group. The Group decided to exercise the
termination option to terminate the lease contracts before
the previously expected date. A net gain on termination of
lease amounting to RMB44,482,000 (2020: RMB11,046,000)
was recognized, which represented any subsequent
adjustments to the carrying amount of the right of use assets
and the lease liabilities upon the store closure.

For the restaurants that the Group plans to exercise the early
termination option, the Group remeasure the lease liability
to reflect changes to the lease payments and recognised
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, as the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognised the remaining amount
of the remeasurement in profit or loss amounted to RMB
5,975,000 during the current year.

Due to the decline in restaurant operating results of the
Group as well as the management’s strategic decision to
permanently close certain restaurants during the year, the
Group incurred significant loss on closure of restaurants
including write-off of the leasehold improvements,
uncollectable rental deposits and compensations paid, of
those closed down restaurants.

10. FINANCE COSTS

HiwzREE 2
B 5 -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

RAFEEARN  AEEREHRASE
TFREETERNRIGERREERE - &
HEEEN LB EmEFAE
EEEBRFKT - AEEREST
R  NERITREF B
AR IEHEAY - AR IEREE
AR A R#44,482,0000T (=
T_TF: AR¥11,046,0007T)
B FHER - 2% W5 P IE B A
BERABEAENEEEERAE
K E & B -

BRAREFETRIESRILESR
BNER AEEEHMAEES
BENRRBEENRES - ki
ENEHERAGENSHERER
REEREEEZHE - AW
HREREEERTEARE
T HHEREMETELE—F
AR AREREAFERBREA
BREHMGTENRTRARYE
5,975,0007T °

HRAEEERKREXET AN
NEREOEBORR (INFR
KABEHETER)  AEEHE
AHAEREANEE  BEZS
EHAERENEAEYXRKEMK
o AAREEeRE RE N

f& -

10. BH % B A

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-BA=+t—HLHE

2021 2020

—EC-—F —EZFF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 89,208 91,282
Interest on bank borrowings RITHERAE 1,732 4,027
Interest on provisions BT B 1,622 3,001
92,562 98,310
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11. LOSS (PROFIT) BEFORE TAX

168

e e e s = a5

The Group’s loss (profit) for the year has been arrived at after

charging the following items:

1. BRI E (FE)

AEBWFEARAEBR (FE) EME
il

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—BLEE

2021 2020
—E- 5 == EEE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 586,365 597,060
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZFEITE
equipment 464,925 406,467
Amortization of intangible assets A Y 1,621 2,634
Total depreciation and amortization WEMEEARE 1,052,911 1,006,161
Rentals in respect of restaurants lease BHEZEHEENKHES
payments
— short-term lease (Note i) — RHRAE (M) 40,699 38,322
— Covid-19-related rent — Covid-19i8 i H S B =
concessions (3,965) (60,727)
— variable lease payment (Note ii) — 7] # & 7 (P 5E0i) 79,588 80,501
— other rental expenses (Note iii) — H b 5 2 (i &Fiin) 181,747 161,497
Total property rentals and related MEREREAR AR
expenses 298,069 219,593
Directors’ emoluments =500 9,705 12,796
Other staff cost Hih 8 TAA
Salaries and other allowance e M E M EEL 1,691,166 1,401,193
Equity-settled share-based payments — LARS#E 45 & LA RL () A E R &
INEN 2,216 4,574
Retirement benefit contribution RIREFIE R 126,630 59,583
Total staff costs B TR AN4E5E 1,829,717 1,478,146
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 3,600 3,600
Note i:  The short-term lease refer to leases of restaurants, Bt 3% - CHITEIEEE %51k
catering delivery robots and rented premises. ZAREASYEHNEES -
Note ii: ~ The variable lease payment refers to the portion of B £Tii AR E AR ETE
property rentals based on pre-determined percentages ZEMRABDEY
to revenue less minimum rentals of the respective LE i et R =%k ol
leases. SEHES -
Note iii:  The other rental expense refers to the property B £Tiii = N R AL E = d

management fee paid to the landlord.

NHOMEERE -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTBFHBEAX

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=+—HIt&EE

2021 2020
—E-—F = A
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETT
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEMSH((LEmMER])
Current tax B EA #5418 22,339 62,703
Deferred tax BT IR 47,141 (7,011)
Total income tax recognised in FEEE PRS2
profit or loss 69,480 55,692

The Company is a tax exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

The Company’s subsidiary, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK)
Holdings Co., Ltd., (“Xiabu Hong Kong") incorporated in Hong
Kong is qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of Xiabu Hong Kong is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ARARR/RFASHEEMKRILNE
LR A NI

R_E—NE=A=-+—H &%
SNAEBEE2017TERK (BE]) (5
75) B ER ((EHER]) - H
SIAMBEFNEHEGE - ZIEHE
BER_ZE—N\E=A=-F+/\BEE
MELZZENRBRTIEER - BIE
MAAFERESE  AEREEE
BHE2E 8% B 1%8.25%
REHBRH  mBE2E 878 T HE
1512 16.5% M EET - TFFE MR
FEREHENEBEENFBEH
HEIBEIR16 5% RIS — T RS -

RABREB TN E AR
BEERHERER (BB ERE
RAa ((HEEB]) HEEKE
MRS R EHE - Bt - H
BEBGTERGEANENE2E S
B REFERTAN B ERA2E 8
BRI D 9 BI1E8.25% &% 16.5%
STEEBFEH -

BREPBECEMRSTE ((REMHR
BEE) REXMBHIZER K
5]+ A2 R] Y A BB 2 ) S R
FREOB R [25% °
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12.

170

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTINUED)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared and paid to non-PRC resident in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to RMB1,772 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB1,973 million), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Further, withholding income tax is generally imposed on assessable
profits earned by foreign entities from the PRC. With respect to
the trademark license agreements entered into between Hong
Kong subsidiaries and PRC subsidiaries, Hong Kong subsidiaries
had recognised taxable royalty income with reference to the
predetermined percentages over the revenue earned by PRC
subsidiaries and accordingly the royalty income is subjected to the
withholding tax. For such taxable royalty income of Hong Kong
subsidiaries, which have not been paid, the deferred tax assets
have therefore been recognised for the tax deductible expenses
according to the trademark license agreement and the prevailing
PRC tax regulations. The Directors, in reviewing the uncertain tax
treatment of the Group, continuously consider effect of changes
in circumstances and new information in the context of applicable
tax laws as well as taking into account the Group’s settlement
strategy based on the latest progress of negotiation with the
relevant PRC tax authority and reflect the effect of uncertainty
over tax treatments at its best estimate as of the balance sheet
date.

12. FREHBEX (2

BECEMSHE BT N\F
— B — AR K E A T FTERER
B A R FE R B R R AT E R &K
MRS HUTENT - R=ZF=—F
+=—A=+—H HARAEEEH
THIEREEENREERRAEZE
Rt e N2 B R AR RE
B - MWK IELR A M HREK T LR
EN SN o ol e = ok 53
MEEAREI72BET(ZEZ
TE: AR¥1,973B8T) :HRIE
EFIE o

o

LS SN E R B P B AR A
MAE-—REBKRBHMASEHR - A
BREENEB AR ETEE ARG
VRERFA B BEHE AR
S2E P BB D E R AR TEE
B ERERVEFERA - B
HRFBRABBRENG - SLE
BB AR R AR 2B BRERD
FArBWA - B REBEERE A
i N B IR 1T A5 16k ) B T 40 A
NHERELEMEEE - EFKLEHN
REBEBRBGREIEHNEE N - &
ZERMNECRABEAERRBE LR
MHERZEE  FRGTRAEH
P EEENGHE S ERE
JE 5 EHBERES - WA SEM
AARRBEEERER B HRGE
BAEEENTE -
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12.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

12. FTBFHBEAX &)
ERB ST RS B %

s RHME

HRAXRAFA (BEB) FBHEER

mF :

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—E--F —B_FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETT
(Loss) profit before tax AT (EE) 7 E (213,653) 67,177
Tax calculated at applicable domestic 1% & FI R N 5 R25% 51 H 1Y
tax rates at 25% 718 (53,413) 16,794
Tax effect of different tax rate SERNARIBFTFERAR
on intra-group royalty income TR TE R B A B
and interest income subject to TRMENH B E
withholding tax (15,967) (7,208)
Effect of different tax rates of company R E b AR L L8 A
operating in other jurisdictions TRMENZE (1,529) 4,611
Tax effect of income not taxable BERMBANT G E
for tax purpose (2,100) (2,517)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT F1F: 58 X MO TR 75 2 &2
for tax purposes 12,960 12,883
Tax effect of tax losses and R SRR 5 8 18 K AT 4R
deductible temporary differences ERMEEONGETE
not recognised 84,117 43,279
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) F3 %5 Bl K #EsR £ 75 5 18
recognised (616) (882)
Recognition of tax losses and MRS B 18 I e Bl R T AR
deductible temporary differences AR E R I =5
previously not recognised - (22,583)
Reversal of deductible temporary &[] 5% B e 2R &9 B] 008
differences previously recognised TRt ERE 58,528 =
(Over) under provision in respect of BEFE (BBEEH)
prior years BETT (12,500) 11,315
Income tax expense FriS®if & 69,480 55,692
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13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

172

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

13. B8R (B1R) BF

ARBEEARGEREARESR
(B1R) B THREATEURFE -

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—B=+—HLEE

2021 2020
B —F —ET_EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT
(Loss) earnings figures are calculated — (fE518) B 7201 E 10 T -
as follows:
(Loss) profit for the year attributable  ARQ A A AEBIEFER
to owners of the Company (E18) 7 E (293,212) 1,837

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic (loss) earnings per share reconciles to the weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of
diluted (loss) earnings per share as follows:

ARABEREXR (BE) BN
EBEMEFHHEERNAEER
B8 (B18) 87 /9 L&A ¥
BEHERMT

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—BLtEE

2021 2020
—E-—&F ZTEZTF
‘000 ‘000
TR T &
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt EFIRER (EE) & F
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) & 8 A% i F 15 £X
earnings per share 1,074,900 1,070,076
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE#EHEBRAOZE
shares (Note) (B &%) N/ATE A 7,357
Weighted average number of ordinary Rzt E G #EE (B18) B F
shares for the purpose of diluted Y 38 A% hNAE S 5 8
(loss) earnings per share 1,074,900 1,077,433

Note: The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options and restricted shares since their exercise would result
in a decrease in loss per share.

WaE: t8E8E=_T=_—F+=A
=t RIEFESREBREIE
Ty R 2% 3 B\ 1T 8 AN A B e
RBEIRG  ERETESS
HERBERD -
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14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. EERESTHRABUR
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEFWNESE THM
EMPLOYEES
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, RIBERA EMARRREES R G &G
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BEBENEZERERITHRABRAE
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: ERHMLT

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-R--H1-A=t-RLEE

Retirement Equity-
Salaries  Performance benefits settled
Directors' and related scheme  share-based
fee  allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total
HREEE
BHRER HifA
Eshe  gemEy RREA PEfR BRNAR it

RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Evecutive directors: #7E%:

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (E B %4 ) Brink 1,012 - - - 8,950 9,962

Ms. Zhao Yi (8% L) (Note ) Bzt (R 151 m - 1 (2,388) (1.453)
Sub-total st 1,163 m - 1 6,562 8,509
Non-executive directors; FHTES:

Ms. Chen Su-Yin(BZ% 7 £) REfLL 299 - - - - 299

Mr. Zhang Chi (&t 5 4) Rtk - - - - - -

Ms. Li ie (22K L) (Note i) FRgr (i) - - - - - -
Sub-total st 299 - - - - 299
Independent non-executive directors: BUkIES:

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (225 1) #2285t 2% - - - - 299

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (2R £1%) L 299 - - - - 299

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (K8 X 1) Rafnt 299 - - - - 299
Sub-total gt 897 - - - - 897
Total &t 9,705
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14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BEC3RETCA=T-ALER

Retirement Equity-
Salaries  Performance benefits settled
Directors’ and related scheme share-based
fee allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total
WRELE
RIVER Wit &
g2 BoEEM KA HEfs  ERMAR &5
RIVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIVB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETn  ARETR  AREfR
Evecutive directors: #7E%:
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (B 1B % 5) Exiis 1,060 - - - 4,791 5,851
Ms. Zhao Yi(B#Z 1) Bt 313 1,837 - 24 3519 5,693
Sub-total Izt 1373 1837 - % 8,310 11,544
Non-executive directors; FHTES:
Ms. Chen Su-Yin(BZ% 7 £) REfLL 313 - - - - 313
Mr. Zhang Chi (& 5 4) Rk = = - - - =
Ms. Li Jie (& 1) (Note i) R (i) - - - - - -
Sub-total it 33 - - - - 313
Independent non-executive directors: BUkES:
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (225 1) EEEa 313 - = = - 313
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (i 56 ) EMELE 33 - - - - 33
Ms. Cheung Sze Man (5814 1) Rt 313 - - - - 313
Sub-tota It 939 - - - - 939
Total a5 12,79

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for

their services as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were for their services as directors of the Company.

ERATEETNFHM A RREFEIE
ARBRAKEEBE RS

B4 o

ERFERTEZNFMAREFELT
ARRREMBARESNME

ERBIFATEEHHFMARE
BEARBESZNMNS -
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14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Zhao Yi was removed as the chief executive officer and executive
Director of the Group with effect from 20 May 2021 and 28 July
2021 respectively.

(i) Ms. Li Jie is Mr. Zhang Chi’'s alternate.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2020: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining four (2020: three) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

14.

() HEZIHEEERASEITEHE
HEHPTESHELE 2B =F
—_—FAA-+BR=-FT_—%F
tAZ-t+N\BREERK-

(i) FRELETBRBEENBEES -

FRAASEFHEaNARE T
FRE—REFE (S _TF W
Z) HEMEHI R EX BT
ME(ZEZEZF: =ZR) FMx
SET (WHFARREZSHZSIT
BAB)FAMESFBOT

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-BA=+—BHLEE

2021 2020

—E=-—F —T-FTHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Salaries and allowances e EEEBL 3,946 3,513
Equity-settled share-based LA R e 45 5 DA R 1 /3 B i

payments EOERES 1,190 1,024

Retirement benefits scheme BRIREFEE
contribution 79 48
5,215 4,585
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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15.
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e i i

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

The number of these highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following band is as follows:

14. EERBEESTHRAEBUR

TEFHESEIEHM 2

FMN TR EENES N R=ES
BT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

1,000,001, 7C £1,500,0007% 7T
1,500,001;% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/% 7T

Total

#st

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
1 3
1 _
4 3

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no Directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the Directors or the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDENDS

HE_Z_—FR-_Z_ZFTF+=

A=+—BLFE HMEEEHE
KRB RETAFHH  NEEHE
MEESAREFMEEE T ME

% M {E S E AR ENR A
AN ER BB O SRR SR B AR AR ME

15. K2

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HL&EE

2021 2020
—E-—F —_ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Dividends recognised as distributions & R & 9 K ) IE 8
during the year 60,000 79,624

TR N RS 18 (R AR B R A R] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2021
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15. DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED) 15. RE (%)

On 30 March 2021, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2020. The dividend
was paid in June 2021.

On 30 August 2021, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to
shareholders for the six months ended 30 June 2021. The dividend
was paid in October 2021.

On 7 April 2020, the Company declared a dividend of RMB0.046
per share with total dividends of RMB49,624,000 to shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The dividend was paid in
June 2020.

On 27 August 2020, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to
shareholders for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The dividend
was paid in October 2020.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.028 per
share, amounting to approximately RMB30,000,000 to be paid
out of the Company’s share premium amount, which is subject
to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming general
meeting, to be held on 1 June 2022. The 2021 final dividend will
be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars, the exchange
rate of which will be calculated based on the rate of exchange as
quoted to the Company by The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited at its middle rate of exchange prevailing on
13 June 2022. The dividend has not been included as a liability in
these consolidated financial statements.

REB=—4%=F =48 -287
MBEREREE_ZE_ZTF+=
A=T—HLEFENREFRA
R¥0.02870 WEBRFEEARE
30,000,0007C - ZREERZ=F
Z—FRNARM -

R=ZFE=_—FNA=+H &AA
AIMRREREE T =—F X
A=THLEARERARNKREFRA
R¥0.02870  WEBRFEEARE
30,000,000T - Z W EERZF
Z—FF+ AR -

RZEZZTFWMA+LH ' NAF
MERREREREE -_T—hLE+ =
A=T—HBLFEHNREFRA
R#0.0467 REBEEARE
49,624,0007C - ZREER=ZE =
TFENAIRSM -

RZZBE-_FTFENA-_++H AR
AIARREREE T _TF X
A=+tRHIEANEANBREFRA
R#¥0.02870 R Bz EARE
30,000,0007C - Z R EER =T =
ZEF AR ©

RBEHRE BE_T-—F
T+ A=+ —BLEFENRERE
FlRARK0028TT (T REELD
AR #30,000,0007T# B A2 7 A%
D ERFPIRS  HEERBR=F
T TFXNA—BRTHERKRREK
o LERERE — T - —FKH
EEBUAAREETIRRAB TS
- HIEXRBRES LISELRT
BERARBBRBENR T - —FXA
+=BIRITH) P RIE R [ AR R AT
MAEERGE ZBRETENZSE
REPBRRAERIEARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

178

16. W% - BMERR®E

Leasehold Motor Furniture  Construction
Buildings improvements  Machineries vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
B RENEEE B2 hE  BER#E kIR 6]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETTL
CosT it
At 1 January 2020 N-F-E£-F-H 103,979 1,998,281 57,187 6,003 189,760 53,679 2,408,889
Additions HE - - 5 315 33,445 394313 428125
Transfer &z - 370,782 - - - (370,782) -
Disposals k= - (137,132) (113) (360) 9,657) - (147.26)
At 31 December 2020 i 2 s o ! 103,979 2,131931 57,126 5,958 213,548 71210 2,689,752
Additions e - - 988 294 43257 324,936 369,475
Transfer g3 1421 302,244 - - - (303,671) -
Disposals i3 - (312.239) (1,648) 1) (15,432) - (389,535)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--E+-f=1-8 105,406 2,161,937 56,466 6,035 11313 98,475 2,669,692
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT A
At 1 January 2020 N-F-EE-5-4 20491 965,246 11,840 3,986 93,949 - 1,095,512
Charge o the year Epng 7,088 348,093 8,904 801 41,581 - 406,467
Eliminated upon disposals of HERERES
accumulated depreciation - (116,903) (107) (383) (8,384) - (15731)
Eliminated upon disposals of HEZTHERRREY
accumulated impairment loss - (20229 - - - - (20229
Impairment loss recognised n RERPRIRERR
profit or loss - 37117 - - - = 37117
At 31 December 2020 i 2 g o = 27579 1213324 20637 4,444 127,146 - 1393,130
Charge for the year Epng 113 402,515 8,725 489 46,063 - 464,925
Charge to loss on closure of BRRESERA ()
restaurants (Note) - 80,979 - - - - 80,979
Eiminated upon disposals of accumulated  HEZHHEREE
depreciation - (330,808) (1531) (207) (13329 - (345,881)
Eiminated upon disposals of accumulated & Bt EE 4IRS
impairment loss - (41,019) - - - - (41,019
Impairment loss recognised RERTEIHERR
in profit or loss - 44,016 10,644 132 10,189 - 64,981
At 31 December 2021 WZ8Z-E+ZA=t-A 3,712 1,369,007 38,469 4,858 170,069 - 1,617,115
CARRYING AMOUNT EiE
At 31 December 2021 WZ8Z-F+ZA=1-R 70,69 792,930 17,997 1AM 71,304 98,475 1,052,571
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-f=1-H 76,400 1,018,607 36,489 1514 86,402 1210 196,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTivuED)  16. % - BE R % & &)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated over their useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease term and

estimated useful lives

up to 5 years

Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, loss on write-off of leasehold
improvement upon restaurant closure of RMB80,979,000 is included in
depreciation of leasehold improvements, which is recorded in the “other
gains and losses” as set out in Note 9.

As at 31 December 2021, in view of the unfavourable future
prospects of some restaurants, the management of the Group
concluded there was impairment indicator for related leasehold
improvement and right-of-use assets, with carrying amounts of
RMB792,930,000 and RMB1,638,334,000 respectively (2020:
RMB1,018,607,000 and RMB1,971,529,000), and conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the restaurants to which
the leasehold improvement and right-of-use assets belong as
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
assets individually, including allocation of corporate assets when
reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

Lz BEMRRERE (B
TRERIN) &5t KA RSEER
B AORIR T Al 2 R BT

=
gF 204
HEMHEEE RHABEER
ESF M EET
] A FH A
LN SEC
Hes 3E 104
TE 4%
REREE 3&E54F
MoaE -

RBE-_TE=-—F+=-_A=+—8H1
FE - ZEBEGMEREDEEE
K& A R #80,979,000 Tt ATHE
ERERE WD AM RN TH
U zs R B o

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H0"
EREH BRI = THE  N&EH
ERERAHBEHEMEERER
FREEEARENEZ  BEEED
B A A R #792,930,0007T & A K
#1,638,334,000T (=T =—F F :
AR #1,018,607,0007T & A R #&
1,971,529,0007T) * 7 ¥ A] Y [0 &
FHEITREN G - AR EEBE BT
HEERWE & (BIER A&
EE - BEERBHSEARNEE)
WASEEHEMHESE W&ﬁﬁ%ﬁé
BEMBEEMIIESBEETH
it o

2021 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=——# 4% 179



For the year ended 31 December 2021
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16.

180

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTINUED)

The recoverable amount of each restaurant has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the remaining lease term
with a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 11.63% to 12.38% as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: 11.39%) reflecting the specific risks
relating to the relevant restaurants operated in different regions.
The other key assumption for the value in use calculated is revenue
annual growth rate which is determined based on historical
performance and relevant operation plans.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of certain
restaurants are lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
loss has been recognised and allocated to relevant property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the carrying
amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and
zero. Based on the value in use calculation, an impairment of
RMB49,714,000 and RMB54,447,000 (2020: RMB37,117,000 and
RMB45,528,000), respectively, has been recognised against the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.

In addition, an impairment loss of RMB15,267,000 was recognised
on certain property, plant and equipment on an individual
assessment basis due to reduction of production and ceasing
operations of certain restaurants during the year. The recoverable
amounts of such property, plant and equipment were considered
minimal and full impairment has been made.

The impairment loss recognised for the above assets have been
included in profit or loss in the “other gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

16. ¥ BERRE#)

ZEEBEJREOSEREFEAERE
HHEEE RAEFRAERAS
EEEEMMEVFEENERS
RER  RERSEES SRR
o e e R R
11.63%%12.38% (ZE T £ :
11.39%) ML ARG IR K » REAT
Ei e L& ENABERNEER
R EFEREENS —EHERE
FABRAFEREER - HTRERESL
XENEBRELTEmEE -

ERFTHER A5BEREEER
ETEEMAKE S BEERER
B ERERABREEBBELSEEHE
BYE BE NMKENLLERBE
EE - HMSEEENEREEAT
ERVEEREQXFERHENK
AN -HERERTEZHHESE -
BEBEEAEETSE B E K
EREZzBRERAEEERAER
RBE D B B ARM49,714,0007T
M AR #54,447,000 (ZE = F
£ AR¥37,117,0007T & A R ¥
45,528,0007T) °

AN BREFERE TERERE RS
¥ AEEZRERFHEERET
M BRERREERREEERA
R #15,267,0007T - B AW ¥ - &
EREBEHATKESERRSE
W BMIEH 2 EURE °

Bh_E i B PR RO B AR S A A
FABNREMEERARAE
o 35 5 1R B 1R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FAREE
Leasehold Leased
lands  properties Total
HELH HEWE ot
RMB*000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AN ¢ NSRS NS e

As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE=-—F
T=HEF=E
Carrying amount REE 109,791 1,528,543 1,638,334
As at 31 December 2020 N-EBE-ZF
+=HA=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 112,217 1,859,312 1,971,529
For the year ended BE-—E—-_—&
31 December 2021 +ZHB=+—HILEE
Depreciation charge TEER 2,426 583,939 586,365
Impairment recognised in profit i8R E (M) - 54,447 54,447

or loss (Note i)

2,426 638,386 640,812
For the year ended BE-—T=-2F
31 December 2020 t-A=+t—RLEFE
Depreciation charge WweEsA 2,493 594,567 597,060
Impairment recognised in profit P18 25 W SRR E (B EE) - 45,528 45,528
or loss (Note i)
2,493 640,095 642,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-A=+—BItFE
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EAEEE »©)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—B=--—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
Expense relating to short-term leases  E2%5 HAFH E AR HY 5 2 40,699 38,322
Variable lease payments not included & A EEBETER
in the measurement of lease Al A E R
liabilities 79,588 80,501
Total cash outflow for leases (Note i) FAE 42384 7 H (M i) 789,391 652,322
Additions to right-of-use assets
(Note iii) EAEEENE (i) 517,582 554,000
Notes: B 5
(i)  After the assessment, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use () REHE - EREEEMT K E

182

(if)

(iii)

asset was RMB1,638,334,000 (2020: RMB1,971,529,000) and
an impairment of RMB54,447,000 (2020: RMB45,528,000) was
recognised during the year 2021.

Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities, variable lease payments, short-term leases and payments
of lease payments on or before lease commencement date (including
leasehold land and rental deposits). These amounts could be
presented in operating, investing or financing cash flows.

Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases
entered and adjustments to fair value of rental deposits at initial
recognition, lease modification, reassessment/exercise of extension
options and payments for leasehold land.

For both years, the Group leases restaurants land and rented
premises for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed terms of 1 month to 20 years, but may have extension
and termination options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

% % A R #1,638,334,0007T (=
T-TF: AR¥1,971,529,000
JT) K E A R #54,447,0007C
(ZZE==F : AR¥45,528,000
T)ER-ZE-—FWHR -

(i) HESEEENEERSBHX
ZHHWHEEREAS RAEEHD
MNH - A2HEENAREREE
A ARBEENRKIE (B
HETHREEME) - ZEXK
BAAREZ REIBERSR

E27-

(i) MHESBEBBWEFTLHEL KLY
RERAKHERE A FEIE
MEBR B TEERER
HETHNRMELENEREE
o

EREFEE  AEBALCERAEH
AEBRLtHEHEENE -HBEAH
Th iR [E E F 8118 A =20F 7T 3L ¢
MR BB NPT 2 JE B R AR I E IR
EREHBRENEEREYRE
B R TRIEIER G - REE
MEA R G TR FARER
AEBEEREHNNTEEREEEDN
A58 B ITHYEEHR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EAEEE »#)
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases mainly for AEFETEHHEE #@%&ﬁ%%%ﬁ
rented premises and catering delivery robots. As at 31 December AT VEHEE R = —
2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to E)Szi?f? fEF = ﬂ TF=[E -
the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease CHESHESEURN EXmFEER
expense disclosed above. ﬁﬂ*ﬂ%ﬁﬂi*ﬁ MEAEas -
Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease payments ZEMAEENEETERE NN
or contain variable lease payment that are based on 2% to 20 % @%gﬁéﬁﬁ%%ﬁz%im% (=Z=Z
(2020: 3% to 20%) of sales and minimum annual lease payment TF 3%F20%)FEEE
that are fixed over the lease term. Some variable payment terms &%ﬂ B A Immr{ﬁﬁia"ﬂ 5 <t
include cap clauses. The payment terms are common in restaurants ,%}( & TRl &3 1,%%’&@%);@ i
in Mainland China and Hong Kong where the Group operates. e Eﬁﬁm{%?ﬁ\ﬁézﬁ%,ﬁ& =
e b B P bt 2 5 ) B B ARLA
RRERE -
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid to relevant S FHEBELEASNEE AR
lessors are as follows: ENFBHOT :
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—_E-_—H+=-HA=+—HL
FE
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
BEHE BENSR HAEAIR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®BTR AR¥TR
Restaurants without BHENFNER
variable lease payments 423 202,314 - 202,314
Restaurants with variable Ba@EENFNEE
lease payments 799 378,974 79,588 458,562
1,222 581,288 79,588 660,876
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E-_ZEF+_-_A=+—HIkF
FE
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
EBEHE BETEMNRX AEAR CEy
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTTT
Restaurants without HHEMNINEE
variable lease payments 460 186,479 = 186,479
Restaurants with variable BEa@HEENFNEE
lease payments 841 338,985 80,501 419,486
1,301 525,464 80,501 605,965
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that B ENPIEREE &

higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants with higher sales.
Variable rent expenses are expected to continue to represent a
similar proportion of restaurant sales in future years.

RHEBRBRS Eﬁﬁifm’ﬂéﬂ
Ko FBAABBESHINRREE
B EEREERMELELLA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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184

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of RMB1,599,285,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB1,638,334,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB1,965,041,000 and related
right-of-use assets of RMB1,971,529,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2021, the Group entered into new leases for
several restaurants that have not yet commenced, with average
non-cancellable period ranging from 5 to 10 years (2020: 4 to
8 years), excluding period under extension options. The total
future undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period
amounted to RMB13,131,000 (2020: RMB17,580,000).

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lessors of restaurants
provided rent concessions to the Group through rent reductions
ranging from 12% to 100% over one to twelve months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in IFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not to
assess whether the changes constitute lease modifications. The
effects on changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or
waiver by the lessors for the relevant leases of RMB3,965,000
(2020:RMB60,727,000) were recognised as negative variable lease
payments.

17. ﬁmﬁé‘ﬁécg)

MHEPRHI %%

e e Lt ) | o =1
HE&BFEAREI!,599,285,000
TEREHEAFEREEE AR
1,638,334,000 L (ZE_F & :
HEBFEAREI1,965,041,000
TEHBEREEE AR
1,971,529,0007T) —HHER - HE
2% W0 #E 5 pNER 2 a5 - MEE T A
FIEHEEERRERKRIN - HE
BETABIEEENERD -

ERERE

R_ZE-_—F+=-—F=+—H ' &
SENZEERE M ARG
BE  FHTARBEHN F5E10
F(ZE_ZF 1 458F) ' T8
JREHIRIZRETE T IR Al BH
HERKRAMIRE S RSB A
AR#13,131,00070 (= —ZT 4 ¢
AR #17,580,0007T) °

HEBE

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FE BEELAAZAN—Z1+=
& A AR 2 12%E100% 8 HH % (A
AEBREHSESR -

ZEHELBEERCovid- 198 B EE
Sl BFEBEBRMEREERE
16.46BI&FT B R - WANE HE R
ATHREEE T HEBETHEK
MEE:T - AHREHELHEAESR
s E ¢ AR #3,965,000T (=& —
T F . AR#60,727,00070) 8 FH
ENREHNTERRABAEHE
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 18. EXEBEEE BfE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of BREEMBEMRAKRENR  BTE
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have EHRBEERGEEEERE - st
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BERBMZELETRIBLESRZ D
balances for financial reporting purposes: HHmMT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Deferred tax assets EIETIRE E 43,020 95,282
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIREE (3.958) (9,079)

39,062 86,203
The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the ERNELEMBBEE (ARG &%
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances (WE R ER RIS ERANLE
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: R (N

Impairment ~ Accrued
Fair value  of property royalty  Right-of-use Impairment of
Taw  Defered  Contract  changeof  plantand  expense assets/lease Right-of-use
losses income liability FVIPL  equipment  notpaid liabilities assets Others Total
il 5 VEY
RAVEHE RER  Afm: EREER/ kAR
HARE  EEMA  ANAE HATERD  RRRE GRERY  RERE  EENE £ it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT  ARETR ARETR  ARETn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2020 4639 298 3657 306 385 329 17445 235 m 7919
(Charged) credit to profit or loss (4,639) 4109 179 (9,385) 3951 (28737) 12,286 5,588 23,659 1011
At 31 December 2020 REBRFTZA=1-H - 70 3% 9079) 7806 14,553 1731 7942 138 8,03
(Charged) credit o profit or loss HER (R )3TA - (2616) (253) 5,121 (6471) (B0d9)  (11,887) (684) (18868 (47.141)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--£42f=1-R - 4416 1313 (3958) 1329 11,504 17,844 1,098 5516 39,062
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18.

19.

186

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB480,417,000 (2020:
RMB112,005,000) with no deferred tax asset recognised as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The unrecognised tax losses will be expired as follows:

18. EiERIBEE &fFE @)

RBERR ANEEETHRE R
=58 AR #480,417,000C (=&
—Z & AR#112,005,0007T) ¢
R B 7 K AT BE BE AE A H0R0ET B 1 2=
A AERIMAERT G -
MIERELERIBEEE -

RIERTIRE B R LA T B E W

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
2022 —E—-= = 1,287
2023 —E-= 12,709 13,382
2024 —EF 60,913 60,913
2026 —ECREF 202,169 -
2028 —EZ)N\F 86,291 86,291
Indefinite 42 'R Hf 17,205 17,711
379,287 179,584

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB379,287,000 (2020: RMB179,584,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams in respective subsidiaries.

RENTAL DEPOSITS

REREBR  NEBE RSB HIEES
B AR%379,287,000T (ZE ==
F . ANR#179,584,0007T) 7] K
SH AR R FE o B R ERTE RS B
RNAIR AR RFER - L E kB B
REPARIBEEIEBERELCHBEE -

19. HE&#HE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Rental deposits Hele 183,021 169,741
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBIERE (13,439) -
Net of rental deposits Hede FE 169,582 169,741
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20. INVENTORIES

21.

20. &

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Food and beverage B i Mgk 532,595 605,106
Other materials H b Ykt 45,553 58,592
Consumables FEM 20,814 27,223
598,962 690,921

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

. BSRWERA KR E A ER

PREPAYMENTS MEUR BN RIE
As at 31 December
R+=-—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET ARET T
Trade receivables H 5 MW R R 41,748 52,380
Prepaid operating expenses TEfT4E & & A 32,181 30,624
Prepayments to suppliers T8 15 it 8 g RRIE 2,565 5,209
Amounts prepaid to the RSU trustee  gtEE B & 3@ A% (7 R & AR D
for purchase of ordinary shares BURTEABMNNSE 15,497 13,991
Input value-added tax recoverable A] Uk [o] 3% {5 i i TR 282,587 249,869
Other receivables H {th jE 3R IB 54,755 56,523
429,333 408,596
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (W)
(Note) (34,543) (16,881)
Total trade and other receivables B 5 e YRR 3 K E qth fE I 3R IR
and prepayments AR TER IR 394,790 391,715
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21

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

21.

EEEU&EE?A& L fth & UK
RIEBUR BN 2)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other H A W R IE B R (B 1R B e
receivables are as follows: N

2021

—E-——F
RMB’000

ARBT

At 1 January w—H—H 16,881
Impairment losses recognised B ERREEE 17,662
At 31 December RT+-—RA=+—H 34,543

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, a credit loss allowance
for other receivables of RMB17,662,000 (2020: RMB16,881,000) has
been provided after considering the probability of defaults of the
counterparty based on an individual assessment.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice
date:

Mizd: #E-_FT-—F+=-RB=+—
BiE&FE £ B3 @R TP
RGBFHMEHNBEER Bt

EHM W EEEEBERE
AR¥17,662,000T (=S =%
£ AR¥16,881,0007T) °

UTARBREBEEZEHZ2INE R
Wik sk (FOBR RAR B B) M BRie
#r

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H
2021 2020
:g:—qi —_F= E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Within 30 days 308 A 33,083 44,740
31 to 90 days 31290H 7,817 7,126
91 to 180 days 912 180H 848 514
41,748 52,380

At the end of the reporting period, there is no trade receivable
that has past due but not impaired.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in
Note 39.

REEHR - TR BHERRE
o E 5 e WRR K

HE_Z-_—FrR-_ZT-_FTF+=
A=+—BLEFENESEKERER
Ko EL Ath 8 W2 5% T8 B R (B AT RF 1B R
M FE39 -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

FEFEN

Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BEEBERIEATLEAEN SR
BE
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+-—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Derivative financial instruments (Note) 7447 T & (Fffzh) 15,832 36,315
15,832 36,315

Note: In 2019, Xiabu Beijing acquired certain property, machines and

fixtures at a consideration of RMB96,116,000 from two non-related
individual third parties (the “Sellers”) through obtaining ownership
of Xilin Gol League Yishun Halal Meat Co., Ltd. (“Yishun") of which
Yishun has become a subsidiary of the Group. One of the sellers
of Yishun, Xiabu Beijing and a third-party trust company entered
into several trust agreements under which, the seller entrust the
third-party trust company to set up a trust plan (“the Trust”) and
transferred RMB60,000,000 to the Trust on 10 September 2019.
According to the Trust agreements, the Trust should complete the
purchase of the Company’s shares of RMB60,000,000 from the
market within the portfolio construction period which has been
eventually completed on 11 November 2019 (the “end of portfolio
construction period”). The Trust would be terminated within three
years since the end of portfolio construction period. According to
the Trust agreements, the investment principal of RMB60,000,000
and a fixed return of RMB2,400,000 per annum was guaranteed by
Xiabu Beijing and the seller is entitled to additional returns under
specific condition based on the price of the stock shares, while Xiabu
Beijing will take the residual return/loss from the Trust accordingly,
on the net settlement in cash, if any.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s right and obligation
in the Trust constitute a derivative which is based on the stock
price of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value
of the derivative was RMB15,832,000 (As at 31 December 2020:
RMB36,315,000), which was recorded as a financial asset measured
at FVTPL. Further details of the fair value measurements are disclosed
in Note 40. The fair value change is recognised in the line items of
other gains and losses.

i

AZE—NF - B4 RBE B
SHMBHBFERIBEENEAR
EEAR ((FIED FTERE (FIE
RAEXREBENRBAR) BMAGE
BEE=FENAL((ES))
WEETYE HBEREE K
85 AR%96,116,0007T ° 78
Hp—FEFH HHEEREE=
FEFEARYE TELEHE
Bl BEARARE=AELRA
ﬁjEEJJUEﬁD’EF
—E-NFAATHEEEER
}\Em%oooo 0007t ° R IK(E 7T
Wik ERARKREMALERER
m%ﬁam%ﬁﬂﬁ@AEM
60,000,0007T By AN A & f% {5 * 48
BEEZRRN-_Z—NLF+—
At+—HBER ((RELAEGER
HMEFR]) A8 KREAS
REBERER=ZFRAKL -
BEELTHZE BEASEARE
60,000,0007T & [ 7 Bl R & F A
R #2,400,0007T M " 1 b = 4
R BAREBEBERUGEHBEE
BERBEHEEIN IR - i
IERASAEE B EE WER £ &5
BB TEREIE(nE) o

BERAE KRR EHERN
REBEKX —BERARQRRE
MITETRE R-ZBE-_—F+=
A=+—H $fT4£TEQAFME
B AR ®15,832,000t (R=F
—EF+_A=+—H: ARK
36,315,000T) r EARAEE R
BREATEAENEREE -
AEEFENE - THFBRMHFE
40 TR - AFEESHREM S
LEEEE NER °
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23. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 23. ZRFIRITE R
As at 31 December
R+=H=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Bank balances restricted for: REIEL T AEMIRITA S
Prepaid cards B+ 66,268 37,609
Balances classified under current assets % %8 /& /i 8) & 2= 1Y) 4 64 66,268 37,609
The restricted bank balances carried interest at prevailing market R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H %
rates which range from 0.3% to 1.725% (2020: 0.3% to 0.35%) R H 4R 1T 4 ﬁ%}giﬁﬁﬁiiﬁﬂ_ﬁ N
per annum as at 31 December 2021. BF0.3%E1.725% (Z T T F :
0.3%%0.35%) 5t & °
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24. RITEBRRERS
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2021 2020
:g:—qi — 7 —%3 E'E
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARET T
Cash and bank balances LTPE®FENR R
denominated in: IRITH B
— RMB — AR 809,231 836,257
— USD — T 98,526 213,667
— HKD — AT 11,211 42,474
— SGD — Nt 1,565 4,926
920,533 1,097,324
Bank balances carried interest at prevailing market rates which R—ETE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
range from 0.001% to 1.667% (2020: 0.01% to 1.00%) per RITAEERIE T F0.001%E1.667%
annum as at 31 December 2021. —E-FF :0.01%21.00%) HY
WITMIZFERMEGTE o
The bank balances denominated in RMB were deposited with UARBAENIETERAETEHRRN
banks in the PRC and the conversion of such balances into foreign FEAIRITOER BZ2FE6 T
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign BAINE BESTPRBTERNES
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. 78 5N E & Sl B 48 Bl K2 8 5 o
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25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. EZEAERX
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally granted ZES5RMERAETFE  B—%
on 60-days credit term. An aged analysis of the Group’s trade BTEOEBMEEH REFER A
payables, as at the end of each year, based on the goods received REMZEWRBHENAEEE FEN
date, is as follows: BRAMBRER DT ¢
As at 31 December
BR+=—HA=+-—H
2021 2020
=%=—F —F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Within 60 days 60H A 246,217 332,597
61 to 180 days 612180H 2,619 2,023
181 days to 1 year 181HE14F 1,038 595
Over 1 year 156 A 820 6,010
250,694 341,225
26. ACCRUAL AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. BT EARAEMEMNRE
As at 31 December
BR+=A=+-—H
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ZE_FF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREBT T ARETT
Construction fee payables FEfT e T & A 192,272 261,756
Staff cost payable JEAT B TR A 147,172 161,425
Deposits from suppliers HEFHS 67,674 75,311
Accrued variable and short-term rental EstZE M EHHS RWES
and property fee 48,621 38,945
Accrued operating expenses JEET & 77,540 91,519
Other PRC tax payables H b fE S AR B B IR 34,810 24,410
Others Ht 35,779 50,163
603,868 703,529
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LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&AE
As at 31 December
RTrEEETF=E
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T ARBTT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEE
Within one year —F R 509,492 564,756
Within a period of more than one BB —FETBBRE
year but not exceeding two years HE A 430,060 497,093
Within a period of more than two BEAMTENBBERFZ
years but not exceeding five years S 581,426 787,466
Within a period of more than HRE R F 2 HIE R
five years 78,307 115,726
1,599,285 1,965,041
Less: Amount due for settlement B mEBNBEET AR
with 12 months shown REARNELEHN TR
under current liabilities (509,492) (564,756)
Amount due for settlement after ERBEBRETAT
12 months shown under 1218 A& BEE BN S8
non-current liabilities 1,089,793 1,400,285

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.60% to 5.64% (2020: from 3.60% to
5.64%).

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

HEaEREBMMNEFSIEEER
AENF360%%E5.64% (ZFT =
TE N F3.60%%5.64%) °

NHAEBEERINEERUINGE
SHENEESEEHIINT

SG Dollars HK Dollars US Dollars

3% T BT EY

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREFTT ARETTT

As at 31 December 2021 R-—ZB=--f+=-A=+—-8H 2,699 82,321 65
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H = 55,068 65
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28. EHEE

As at 31 December

= i e =

2021 2020

—E—-_—fF —E_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETF T

Customer loyalty programme (Note i) 8% & 3= 5t &1 (Fff 7%i) 18,048 16,688

Prepaid cards and advance from AR R %P B (FEEi)

customers (Note ii) 298,592 285,013

316,640 301,701

Current mE 316,640 301,701
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to R-E-—FTF—HF—H 44aE

RMB146,017,000.

Notes:

(i)

Customer loyalty programme

The contract liability of customer loyalty programme was recognised
along with the restaurant services provided during each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of RMB18,048,000(as
at 31 December 2020: RMB16,688,000) represents the unredeemed
performance obligation relating to the customer loyalty programme.

Prepaid cards and advance from customers

The prepaid cards and advance from customers of the Group are
refundable. However, no material refund were raised historically and
the management of the Group expects the amounts to be refunded
in the future reporting periods is insignificant.

No revenue recognised in year 2021 and 2020 are related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

ﬁ/\EﬁgM&OW,OOOE o
Pt i
() EXBRBETS

BEREABEFENEGEHNAEE

ThEEREHMATIRENE
ERE—RBER - RNR_F=—
F+-A=+—B EH AR
#18,048,000t (R=ZZE=F

F+_A=+—H: AR¥
16,688,0007T) 15 2 B = A o /&
AEBEEMRBITRANEME -

(i) FENRRFEPBR

AEBHENRRESBRKET
R AT BEMESEEA
BHc AAREEREEHER
AkHEMRENSBY T E
K o

R-B_—FR_T_TFHEE

REE - FEBITHNENRTA
BEHA -
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

28. S EE®)

TRETRAFERABNOBALLS
BAMABENHEREE -

Prepaid
Customer cards and
loyalty advance from
programmes customers
BE BAFR
BHEGE BEFER
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
For the year ended 31 December BE-E-——%§
2021 +=—A=+t—BLEE
Revenue recognised that was included 5t AFHE 4B E L%
in the contract liability balance at the &YBE#ERI A
beginning of the year 15,246 285,013
For the year ended 31 December BE-ZS=-ZfF
2020 +-ZHA=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was included FFAFVIE KB BELEHH
in the contract liability balance at the B &R A
beginning of the year 10,068 129,743
29. DEFERRED INCOME 29. JEFEW A
As at 31 December
R+=—RBR=+—H
2021 2020
—ZE-—fF —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBTT
Government grant (Note) B S #7 B (B &%) 26,310 28,128
Current Ui 1,277 1,966
Non-current FEMED 25,033 26,162
26,310 28,128

Note:

The deferred income represents subsidies granted by the government in
relation to acquisition or construction of non-current assets. The deferred
income is released over the useful lives of the relevant assets, the release
of deferred income was RMB1,818,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB1,873,000).

G

EEWAERFRE TN A R E R
RERBEENMY - BELKARME
BEENTRFTRAER HE-F
T+ -_A=t+—HIFEEDED
R AN RE1,818,0007T (2=
£ AR¥1,873,0007T) °
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30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. RITHERK

As at 31 December

NTEEHZEF=E
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZFTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARET T
Unsecured AR = 20,000
Secured (Note) B (M) 75,804 =

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings are secured by a subsidiary

of the Group.

The carrying amounts of the above bank borrowing are repayable:

P g

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H " R7T
BERAAEE N —EH B A REH T -

FHSRITE R REEAR A T8
MEE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBET T
Within one year —E R 75,804 20,000

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings carry fixed interest
rate at 3.85% (2020: 3.15%) per annum.

NR-ZBE-_—FE+=-A=+—H8 " &
ITIEFEETEFFEA3.85% (=
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31.
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s e e e ] =
PROVISIONS 31. #&1E
As at 31 December
NTr=RAZETr=E
2021 2020
—E-_—F —ZEZFF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AR TIT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 53,329 34,536

The balance represents provisions for an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
cost.

The movement of the provisions for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 is as follows:

BREASERKEBRABE
= - B R E E TSk AR
BEEREZHEGRRIIRMTR
TE IR RE R T BE A Y BT AR AN 0 B
B RERBREERRAKATAD
PRE MR HRETE -

BHE_S-_—FR_ZT_FTF+=
A=+—HLLFERENEEHH
R

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
At 1 January n—AH—H 34,536 -
Recognition during the year FAER 33,371 35,606
Unwinding of discounts 85 I8 (B # 0] 1,622 3,001
Utilization &) (16,200) (1,320)
Derecognition BERERR - (2,751)
53,329 34,536
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32. SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and fully paid-up:

32.

g A<
EBTRERE -

As at 31 December

IRTE=AETF=E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZEF
uUsD’000 usD'000
TEx SFEEoe
Share capital of US$0.000025 each F M E0.000025% JT Y JE A 27 27
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARET T
Presented as: 15
Ordinary shares TR 176 175
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZFF
‘000 ‘000
& T
Number of shares: e B -
Fully paid ordinary shares EHREBER 1,085,898 1,083,790
Ordinary shares X 38 AR
Authorised shares Issued capital
EERE BRITRE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BB E KX BB EE KX
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
Tk AREFT Tk ARET T
Balance at 31 December 2019 “E-NF+-A=t—HEH 2,000,000 336 1,080,688 174
Exercise of issued share option {742 B{THRE - - 3,102 1
Balance at 31 December 2020 —EEF+-_A=1t—B&H 2,000,000 336 1,083,790 175
Exercise of issued share option 771 B 17 BE I 4 = = 2,108 1
Balance at 31 December 2021 —E-_-FE+-B=1+-H&H 2,000,000 336 1,085,898 176
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

(1) Share option schemes

33. UBREEF IR A ER
RN

(1) BR

L
o7
ok

_I_

L

u

The Company adopted a share option scheme for the grant ANABNRN=Z= £ /N H
of options to eligible participants on 28 August 2009 (the “t+NBHmEERLEE
“Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan”). In accordance with R AN — B R AR A
the terms of the scheme, executives and senior employees HE((HEAABEREA KRG
may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares of the BB E]) - BEZTEIE
Company when there is a qualified IPO. The share options H o THAENEREEN E
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan were granted TEBEEEBR A AREERA
in four different tranches on 31 August 2009, 17 May 2011, EEEBREUNEE AR AR T
24 December 2012 and 21 March 2014, respectively. BIE - BB XA AHBER K
fp B & &I H 0 B AE D
AMR—ZZEZAFNA=+—
A-—ZE——&%HAHA++tH "
—E-——F+=-A=+WEH
ERZZT—NHE=H=+—H
pol LK RN IR /e { i
Share Number of Fair value at
option tranche options granted Grant date  Expiry date Exercise price  grant date Vesting period
fri REBH
BRESR BREZR RLAd A (gl WATE BEEE
Share option tranche A 4,233,000 31/08/2009  31/08/2019 0.84 0.33 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
BRES -1 from the date of qualified PO
RERERAFEEEERN12EAK
4EEF25%
Share option tranche B 11,795,228 17/052011  17/05/2021 1.79 0.90° 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
RRES M from the date of qualified PO
AERBEAAREERERRIEAL
4EGFL%
Share option tranche C 9,670,361 24/1212012 241212022 1.84 1.10° 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
BREE=H from the date of qualified IPO
BERERAREEERRRIEAL
4EGFL%
Share option tranche D
EREZDH
Schedule | 3,207,461 21/0312014  21/03/2024 2.78 1.19° 25% for each of 4 years after 24 months
B from the date of qualified IPO
AERBERAREERERRUEAR
4EGFL%
Schedule I 5717,140 21/03/2014  21/03/2024 278 1.2 25% for each of 4 years after 36 months
iTE from the date of qualified IPO
RERERAFEER BRN6EAK
4EFF%
Schedule Il 6,604,542 21/03/2014  21/03/2024 278 1.24 5% for each of 4 years after 48 months
e from the date of qualified PO
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1) Share option schemes (continued)

Each share option can subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company when exercise. No amounts are paid
or payable upon the acceptance of the option. The
options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting
rights. Options may be exercised at any time from the
vesting date to the expiry date as mentioned above.

The exercise price of the share option is the agreed
price at the date of the grant. The expiry date is no
more than ten years from the date of the grant and
the options would be forfeited when the staff resigned
before the vesting day.

3. UIRELELURDAER
FREORSZ @)

(1) BRESS @)

BB EITER A
RBARA —BEAE
B - B3Rk R R B
8 A fR] 5RE 5
R IR - % FEK
TR B BT
MamkEE - ZEBKR
BARNEBRHEEL
SRt & Jem B H
BERFITIE

BRETEEARLA
HI ) 1% € B A% - fE R A
Hig & A R T
B+F REIMESR
BREAEE %R
o B BECHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3. UREGZELURMDAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SEN BTN
(1) Share option schemes (continued) (1) BREFE (2

The year ended 31 December
BETZR=T-HLEE

2021 2020
Z8--f 2
Share option tranches Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C TrancheD Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C  Tranche D
BRESR g% #£oh =M EmE E-H Eod E=h 0 EDM
Share options granted to RIUTALOERE
Director g2 - - - - - - - 1,627,890
Other key management personnel ~— EfFEEEAE - - - - - - - -
Other staff HfiE5 - - 14,400 701,570 - 7200 33020 1,392,954
Outstanding as at the end of the year  £REAT(E - - 14800 701570 - T00 3020 302084
The year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2021 2020
—EZ-F —T_TF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
options price options price
Share options BB AE hnREFS ERxiE R
BRE %A TEE 2B 7B
RMB RMB
AR®T AR®TT
Balance at beginning of ¥4 %
the year 3,061,064 2.29 6,162,943 2.44
Forfeited during the year K8 Uk (237,504) 2.76 - -
Exercised during the year FR1T{E (2,107,590) 2.75 (3,101,879) 2.60
Balance at end of the year F & & #4 715,970 2.75 3,061,064 2.28
Exercisable at end of the FRA[17{#
year 607,933 2,278,953
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1) Share option schemes (continued)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumption. The inputs

into the model were as follows:

3. UIRELELURDAER
FREORSZ @)

(1) BRESS @)

MAOR—&F B HEE
EBRACERREE
BRENAFE FEB
BREAFERANEE
EERDERESFNR
Efhet - BREEERE
ETIEBEBRRKRNTREE
Bk -z EANE

ABIROT -

Share option schemes Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C Tranche D

BRETE -t Bt E=H# Emit
Schedule |  Schedule Il Schedule IIl
iHE HE M g
Fair value per share FRATE 0.82 1.86 181 2.60 2.60 2.60
Exercise price gid 0.84 1.79 1.84 278 278 278
Dividend yield REMam % 1.65% 137% = 2% 2% 2%
Risk-free interest rate mE e Fl & 4.16% 3.58% 1.52% 1.92% 1.99% 2.08%
Year to expiration HHEH 7.59 6.70 7.38 7.14 7.64 8.14
Expected volatility EHRRE 39.9% 49.9% 60.7% 56.0% 56.0% 56.0%

At the end of each year, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest
ultimately. The impact of the revision of the estimate, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based payments
reserve.

The Group recognised the total credit of RMB182,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: expense
of RMB382,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

WEFR - AEEBITR S 25
BAHA - MEHSATHE M
BIE- BT 2 B8 (M A) R
18136 PO REVR - 3 7O LA BB 65 DA
15 B H 5K 8 8 o 1 4B P
AL -

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H1t
FE - AEEARR) TR HBER
REFERBERTE A R%182,0007T
—E-TF X ARK382,000
JL) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

202

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) Restricted share unit scheme

On 28 November 2014, a RSU Scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
ten years, commencing from the date, on which the shares
of the Company are first listed on the main board of HKEX
("Listing Date"”), being 17 December 2014 (unless it is
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms) (the “RSU
Scheme Period”).

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under
the RSU Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have
lapsed or been cancelled in accordance with the rules of the
RSU Scheme) must not exceed 42,174,566 Shares, being 4%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(the "RSU Scheme Limit”). The RSU Scheme Limit may be
refreshed from time to time subject to prior approval from
the Shareholders in general meeting, provided that the total
number of shares underlying the RSUs granted following the
date of approval of the refreshed limit (the “New Approval
Date”) under the limit as refreshed from time to time must
not exceed 4% of the number of shares in issue as of the
relevant New Approval Date. The purpose of the RSU Scheme
is to incentivize directors, senior management and employees
for their contribution to the Group and to attract and retain
suitable personnel to enhance the development of the
Group.

The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong
Trustees Limited as the RSU Trustee for the administration of
the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme.

3. UIRELZELURNDAER
NEN:BERE )

(2)

3 PR &I IR 40 BE fu 5t &

R=FE—HmFE+—A=+NA
= N/ ) = s - 2 3
AR E 2RI BALETE ©
BRIEMRIE AR B R IR AT AL UL -
& A PR 6 B% 0 B AL AT 8l
BARRARGN ERRE B
RETERETBH(TLEHA
MHB=ZF—WF+=A
+ER) B +EHEAX
([ZRERMDEMTEEX
) -

R 1% = BR # A% D B8 iz 51 8 7]
B E R 6 AR () 380 48 2
(T BIERE X R &% (B AL
FFEIRBIE KK FHAZ
MR &I D ER) ERTBEB
42,174,5668% & 15 (B = B
IR BT BEM4%) ([
RREIBMEBENMTEIRE] -
SRR G RN BT EIREE A
EREEREAG EHhH
RN E R MHLEE
REAH((EHAERH])
BIBBETHEENHRER
Y X PR &l IR 10 BB BT S AR
BEBIEBaEEETL
HEBHEBEBRITROHHEE
B14% o X BR $I IR 19 B AL 5 2l
ETRBESE SREREE
FEERASEEL TR -
Wks| RBEBEE B AB N
REAEBEAERE -

ARFEEREBTERRES
ERERAB /IR KMD
BUXFEA REXRHK
MEBEMAFEZRAEEREXR
il B An BAL A& -
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3. UREEZELRGOAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SEN Y RED

(2) ZRHIBRMDEMLETS (&)

(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued)

AR

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the RSU mMBE_T_-_—F+
Trustee acquired 1,300,000 (2020: Nil) shares with B =aT=[FEI4EE

><}~|\

consideration of HK$13,023,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB10,788,000 from the market. The
shares will be held on trust for the benefit of the RSU
participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme and the trust
deed. The shares so purchased will be used as awards
for relevant participants in the RSU Scheme (the “RSU
Participants”).

REIKMDEMZTEALD
Bmi% EE E 1,300,000
—ECRFE)RK
B R {& 413,023,000
BT (HEROARE
10,788,0007T) ° iR #&
SRR BB D BB &

ERERE  BXRHIK
B2 EENFN R K
RERTAFEZER
BT ABENK
{ 175 A 1 S 2 IR I B £

BfztEEE2EE
(IZRHKMDEMSE

&) K 5EE -
As at 31 December 2021, amounts about Eé:g:—i—t— A
RMB 15,497,000 (31 December 2020: RMB13,991,000) =+—H ZRHK
were held by the RSU Trustee to purchase ordinary mEBEMNT .&/\hﬁ ca
shares from the market in the forthcoming period 24 A KR #15,497,000

according to the instruction of the Company. T(—E T &+ —
ﬁ =t—B: AR¥
13,991,0007T) * JAAR
IR R AR R AR R
ARTEEEEBRK -
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

204

(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued)

33. UBREEF IR A ER

NS EEE))

(2) ZRHIRMDELETS (&)

Number of Fair value at
RSUs tranche awarded shares Grant date  Expiry date grant date Vesting period
Z IR BB 7 i3] R AH
B #tR RAHE RitAH =p =R MATE BEHME
RSUs tranche A 2,910,920 17/11/2016  17/11/2026 4.83 25% for each of 4 years after
E-HEREIRDEA 01/04/2018
“E-N\FNA—RELTF
BES%
RSUs tranche B 3,993,190 08/05/2017  08/05/2027 6.99 25% for each of 4 years after
ERZRBIRG Ef 01/04/2019
“E-NEFMA—-RKAF
FE25%
RSUs tranche D 33,378 31/01/2018  31/01/2028 14.98 25% for each of 4 years after
E R R IR (D B AL 01/04/2019
ZE-NEMA—-REAE
BF25%
RSUs tranche E 1,000,981 14/12/2018  14/12/2028 11.20 25% for each of 4 years after
ERRTREIRMDEA 01/04/2020
—TTENA-RELF
FF25%
RSUs tranche F 44,326 22/01/2019  22/01/2029 11.28 25% for each of 4 years after
FERRE R IR D EAL 01/04/2019
“E-NEFMA—HELE
BE25%
RSUs tranche G 1,346,707 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 9.49 25% for each of 4 years after
ELHZRHIRG EfL 01/04/2021
—E-—FNA-RR%LF
FF25%
RSUs tranche H 4,407,078 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 9.49 25% for each of 4 years after
EN\BX R IR D B AL 01/04/2022
T FMA-RE4E
BF25%

The grantees of the RSUs are not required to pay for
the grant of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme or for
the exercise of the RSUs. The expiry date is no more
than ten years from the date of the grant and the RSU
would be forfeited when the staff resigned before the
vesting day.

55 R IR 1 B4 89 A B S4B
13 15 1 B £ 8.0 Bt B 248 4 ] 2
PR 51 1819 B fir o 3 77 52 52 PR AR 19
B0 77 1 3% - % B EA 4 4 B
BHTBBTF REINGESHE
BER BT BHT - @ B2 I IR 314D
B -

TR N RS 18 (R AR B R A R] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2021
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’s RSU granted to the selected participants for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and outstanding at
31 December 2021:

3. UIRELELURDAER
FREORSZ @)

(2) ZRHIBRMDEMLETS (&)

T?\ﬂﬁ&%$ AEZE

T —FT=-f= ‘f’*
Eiirm%ﬁﬁﬁ%
B X R $ A B
UMEESHBFEAERR_F

——f+-A=+—8H
B ARITRIER
Number of Awarded Shares
RBROME
Outstanding at Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at

1 January during during 31 December
2021 the period the period 2021
R-—B=- R-B=-F
—-B—-H +=ZA=+-H
i K17 BRTRE BRRK i R AT
RSU tranches ERHRGELY R
RSUs granted to BIATALHOZRE
Rip B
Directors EX 5,548,406 (1,056,409) (1,899,955) 2,592,042
Other key management  H{FEEEAE
personnel 141,276 (19,929) (121,347) -
Other staff EhET 3,051,862 (941,014) (959,861) 1,150,987
Total st 8,741,544 (2,017,352) (2,981,163) 3,743,029

At the end of each year, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of RSUs that are expected to vest
ultimately. The impact of the revision of the estimate, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based payments
reserve.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB8,960,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB12,502,000) in relation to RSUs granted by
the Company this year.

REFER REEEET
Eﬁﬁ.ﬁerﬁE%UHﬂ\“
88 - BT HA R &R 7]
FEEBIXBREIKRGE
i » & HT1E D+Z - (ﬁu
B)R#ER Wﬁﬁm‘\wf
B DA R 4 45 B LA IR 9
ERONE TﬁﬁﬁPf’Eﬂj
HER TR -

HE-_ZT-—F+_A
=t+—HLEEFEE K&
EmARRZFEMRH
PR HII D B R AR
F sz AR #8,960,0007T
(ZZ=_ZTF: AR
12,502,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE

34.

206

e i i

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as follows:

N2

34. REELERMN
AEERAEOEOREFENT -

As at

31 December
2021
—EBE-—F
+=HA=+-—H
RMB’000
AR¥ T

Ra

D>
un&

0 ¥ 1 2

E\

Interest in a joint venture

49,000

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting
period are as follow:

Country of
incorporation/

Proportion of
ownership interest

REERBEEROL LD LS
mF :

Proportion of
voting rights held

Name of entity registration held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
EREZR AMRY ERER AEEMSREERELA FEBREREELH TEEK
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--§ —T-TF ZBZ-§ —T-THF
Tianjin Richen Food Tianjin, China 50% N/A 50% N/A  Food production and Sales
Co., Ltd. B R # NEA TER RmFERHEE
(“Tianjin Richen”)
KEARRmKH
BRAR(TRRBR])

Pursuant to the joint venture shareholders’ agreement (the “JV
Shareholders’ Agreement”) on 8 May 2021, Xiabuxiabu (China)
Food Co., Ltd (“Food China”) and Qingdao Richen Food Co., Ltd.
(E5HRRmMmKRMAERAF)("Qingdao Richen”) would hold
50% of the equity interest of Tianjin Richen each. The decisions
about the relevant activities of Tianjin Richen require unanimous
consent of Food China and Qingdao Richen pursuant to the JV
Shareholders’ Agreement. In the opinion of the Directors, Food
China can exercise joint control over Tianjin Richen and the Group
accounts the investment in Tianjin Richen as interests in joint
venture.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the newly formed joint
venture Tianjin Richen has no substantive operations.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfyf—iﬁﬂﬂﬁm
EhERRG=E ([EELER
iﬁ%ﬁ'@%@%@l)ﬁ%
ERAR(IBERFE]) BEESH
REREMERAR ((EBHR])
D RIFARERRS0%RE - 1R
BeeatERRERE  XNEAKRME
WE@M&MLﬁEm¢Iﬁ =
AR—BRAE -EERAE RMH
B AT 3 RO B R 1750 2k (A 22 il 4 -
WAEEBRRXERARNIEE AR
RIERREELEER -

BE-T-—#1-A=t+-AL
T HRIARCERRARY
WEEET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

36.

35.

BARERE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but BLUEM % - BiE K&

not provided in the consolidated FEEETAERR
financial statements in respect of RE M WmER A
acquisition of property, plant and BENEARRAX
equipment

15,516 2,285

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying employees of
its Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributed 5% of the
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme but limited to the cap of
HK$1,500.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
plan to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the
specified contributions. The retirement benefit cost charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB126,641,000 (2020: RMB 59,607,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available at 31
December 2021 and 2020 under the schemes which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

36.

3R 1R 48 R &1 8 4K

REE/ER BT BT K B
NRANEBAEREERARES
7858 B ME AR & At &R RR AV 58
HEREEE ([BEEEE]) -
BRELIEMNEERARENEE
DHEE  YHXFEAMEHNES
A AEREHRBESEEHD
HRSBBEFERAN5% - B
838 ER1,5008 7T °

AEEFTRHEEY AT BRBUTE R
FEXRERERKBREEIKE - &N
RNRIM R BB AR EZEENE
BT & B D mZENRENGEH
o AN EERAFTERFKIE -
AEEHRKEMNFTENE—F
FRNABELHRENHER BEZZT
——F+-A=+—BHULEE" B
EanRTHERENKASAR
#126,641,000c (ZZE ZFF : A
K #59,607,0007T) °

REBEEZZT-_—FER_FT_FF
+ZA=+—HLEFE AEER
ZEFTE T I EE L A F AT 7
AEBERERDBEEHRIOKE - R
—E - FRZFTFF+ A
=+—B8 ' R&IFFETIHEDR
LT SR AT AR 2 [ R VB R A R 2R 2
FREMMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BER R Z
(a) Related party transactions (a) BERRZ
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated BRZESEETBERRIANE
financial statements, the Group has following transactions HEDEEEIN AEE
and balances with related parties: BB IR 5 RGBT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

Relationship Nature of balances/transactions 2021 2020
B & B/ xaME —B-—F —E_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBTT

Related companies controlled by  Purchase of food ingredients (Note) 306 77,054
the Controlling Shareholder BERM (M)
122 R % 3R PR | B A ] Sales of food ingredients = 371
HERM
Royalty expense 23,890 20,390
RETHER X
Short-term lease expense 1,200 1,200
RHAERX
Trade and other receivables and 49 39
prepayments
B 5 FEUR TR B A e KT [
TR RIA
Accrual and other payables 1,957 2,534
FEEHE A R H th fE {58

Note: As disclosed in announcement regarding continued connected Wik B AE-—_ZT=-—&— A
transaction dated 11 January 2021, the Group has decided +—BABEEERRTSH D
to procure the ingredients directly from the suppliers instead LR AEEDRTHE
of procuring through the related company. Accordingly, the B EERERN  MIESE
amount of purchasing of food ingredients during the current BENTHE A NEE
year decreased significantly, which only represent sporadic HEAMMELEANERLD =
procurement from the related company occurring in the year. B R 4E S A E D T T

TEKRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of

BERRS #)

(b) AEBFTEEBEAEN

the Group i B
As at 31 December
RTELHETF=E
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits EHEER 1,062 696
Retirement benefits scheme RKET T
contribution 26 24
Equity-settled share-based payments LA % # 45 & LA RR 1D & FL i
B 5 3K (131) 182
957 902

No Director’s emoluments are included above, further details
of the Directors’ emoluments are include in Note 14.

EXYEBFEZFMH A
MEFHFMAE—FTFRBH
RHIFE14 -
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
interests in the following subsidiaries:

38. KRB ETEMEBERAAHE

rpEs ER s —sep e Bl = ar—— (o lle
== NN B =N L == /NCTE:

N
=S
* fo1 1 £

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

ARARAT BHES
Place of Incorporation Issued and paid FERES/RERLH
and registration and ordinary share capital/ 31 December 31 December
business registered capital 2021 2020
Name of subsidiaries ERALUR BETRAR g>-F “E-ZF Principal activities
i} PR HRREELE EERA/HMER  f2ASt-R TZA=T-B 1E%R
% %
Xiabu Hong Kong (Note i) Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
R (K 3 HK$ 1 REZR
ERRA
%7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co., Ltd * The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(Note i) hE RMB55,000,000 e
REREERERERAR () HfER
AR E55,000,0007C
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(Note ) e US$1,000,000 EgE
REREERER (L8 FRAR (M) AfER
1,000,000% 7T
Coucou (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
(Note ii) RERREE US§1 REHBR
EE (D) AR B R A A (ki) EREA
17
Coucou (HK) Holdings Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
EE(FR)ERERAA 5 HK$ 1 REBK
17
Coucou Catering Management Co., Ltd. * (Note i) The PRC Paid Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
EERRERARAD (HH) HE RMBS1,919,000 HegE
BARMER
ARH51,919,0007
XiabuXiabu (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd.* (Note i) The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
R (L) B2 ARAR (M) e RMB100,000 REER
EARMER
AR 100,007
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
("Xiabu (China) Food") (Note i) F2Hs US$1,000,000 RELR
RERE (ME) R pERERAT EERA
(T () Rl (i) 1,000,000% 7
Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
RERE (F8) R nERERAT ¥ HK$100 REAR
100%70
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 3. ZABEEMBAGFE
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#)

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

ARARAT BHES
Place and date Issued and paid fiagEs/ REELH
of incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ 31 December 31 December
establishment registered capital 2021 2020
Name of subsidiaries #aL/ BETRAR g--f “E-ZF Principal activities
[if PEEL: RULEREH EERA/HMER  f2ASt-B T-A=T-B XEER
% %
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Ltd.* ("Food China") (Note i)  The PRC Registered capital 60 60 Food Sales
REEE (08 RRFRAR ([ 2ERR]) (HiH) e U5$10,000,000 Rm#E
10,000,000%7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.* (Note i) The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
RERBENEER (R2)BRAD (M) hE USD20,000,000 HeEE
AMER
20,000,000% 7
Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Ltd. * (Note i) ~ The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
EE(RE)RREEARAA (i) oE USD30,000,000 ugE
AMER
30,000,000% 7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(Note ) e UsD1,000,000 EgE
RERBRRER (R ERAA (i) AMER
1,000,000%7
Coucou (HK) Catering Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
EE(FR)RUERERAT (3 HK$1 Ae5E
%7
Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd.* (Note ) The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Slaughtering, processing,
BB RIESENEARELAR (M) i RMB190,000,000 cold storage and sales of
ifEx raw material
AR%190,000,0007 R NI RERHERH
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
REREERER (F8) FRAA (3 HK$1 B2RE
1T
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Singapore Ordinary share capital 95 95 Operating restaurant
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. il $GD1,000,000 esE
RERBERER (IMR)ERAA EERA
1,000,003 1% 7T
Xiabu (Shanghai) Design Engineering Co,, Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 100 - Construction
(Note iv) hE RMB10,000,000 BE
W (E8) Rt TRER A (B) HMER
A& %10,000,0007
* The English name is for identification only. The official names of the

companies are in Chinese.
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

39.

212

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The entities are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debts securities at the end

of the year.

(iii)  Except for Xiabu Hong Kong, Coucou (China) and Xiabu (China)
Food, which are directly held by the Company, other subsidiaries are

indirectly held by the Company.

(iv)  Xiabu (Shanghai) Design Engineering Co., Ltd. was newly established

during the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL

RISK MANAGEMENT

38.

39.

ARBEEWBARFE

(%)
GEE
() BEEBANEBALE-

() REE - BEKE AR ER
ERSES -

(i) BREEESE =& (PE) KFH
(FE)RBPHEAAGDEERA
Hh o H M B AR B ARA R EE
EE =l

(iv) M (LB RFITERERAATD
RERFKL -

TRITARSREARER

Categories of the financial instruments R T 2% R
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—BR=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBEKATTENEREE 1,218,343 1,396,696
Financial assets at FVTPL ERBEREAFTEFTEN
EEREE 15,832 36,315
Financial liabilities: ERMEE:
Amortised cost = )N 622,223 748,455
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 3. s MIARSREAKRERE

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank balances, bank
balances and cash, financial assets at FVTPL, bank borrowings,
trade payables and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, which details are described as follows:

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain financing and operating transactions
in foreign currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management manages its
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and considering hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should such need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets as at the end of the year are as follows:

(&)
TREREEBZEREEK

AEENTEERIABREES
JE U BR 3R I B At R MR IR - T
T XRBIRITHES  RITERK
Be BBBRaRRAFEAEZSR
BMEE  RVRITER  BHEMAEKRK
REMBEMNRE ZFEERTAEHF
BREBEMEFRRE - EZFT R
TAMBENREREeERMEER 5
ERBRERBESRAR o MEDRE
ZERBRABRENTX - EEE
BREEREEZFRAR - UER
REBMIMRIVEE EHEHE

ARBENEDEEHTHAREE
BOMEERRFEER - B HHE
WamT

SR R B
REBUIIEETETRERESE
RS WAEEHEBEINERR - K
SEYEEREFITESOEHE
PrE R ERER - B2 E BB
BERINEEXNBEHAEELE
KRR YRR OERERHTE
RN Rz o

REE  AEBAIIEHENEE
BEREENT :

Assets
As at 31 December
BE
R+=-—A=+—8H
2021 2020
=®F=—F —EF_%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
usD ETT 98,573 213,733
HKD BT 27,468 57,126
SGD Frng oo 1,856 4,926
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the USD,
HKD and SGD against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2020:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB against relevant foreign
currency. 5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation to RMB
at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
weakens 5% (2020: 5%) against relevant currency. For a 5%
(2020: 5%) strengthening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the

CERMIAERESHEARER

(&)
TREREEEEREE#)

Sh B B B EE (4
HREDN

AEBTXEEBRET m%&%ﬁim
WL ARBRERKE AR

TRALAEEHARE LHEA
SNETHEREZES% (ZE_TF

5%) HBRE - 5% (ZE_TF ¢

5%) NEMEEERASEHNER
RAMBRERRANFREL X
RERE IR JE S HMEE RS IE Al B
MG - HRESMEERE R
RBENIINETFENERHE

I B R F RIS % E = B 8 3 A
REBRBETURAE - TROEER
AR R BBINERZES% (=
TFTF : 5%) ROBRBENEE
jJDMh)\Eﬁ@)?ﬁBEWI\ﬁ%ﬂTES%

year, and the amounts below would be negative. (ZEZ2F :5%)  HFEAFE
%)ﬁ*ﬁﬂ&*ﬁ&wa TREEE
AR
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Profit for the year FAFE
usD =TT 4,522 9,808
HKD B JT 1,340 2,824
SGD ¥ n%T 77 204

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

EEERL  ARRBEHARNE
BRlf T EERBRF AR - SEBRE
DT TEERKREBINERR
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
restricted bank balances (see Note 23 for details), fixed-rate bank
borrowing (see Note 30 for details), lease liabilities (see Note 27
for details) and rental deposits (see Note 19 for details). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see Note 24 for details), which carry prevailing
market interest. The Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost is as follows:

30. eMIEREREAKRERE

(%)
TREREEEEREE &)

F & 7 B

AEBHBIRARTESR (FR
MieE23) - ERRITER(FEW
i30) - MERE FFEME27) &
HeRE (FRWME19) HE AT
B RE KR - AN B IR R ERE R
RITHER (FRIE24 - RFEHA
BRTMEMNEGFE) AENRS
MEMNERE - NEEEBREF
IR R B R RS TR A R B E AT
ELBEFYEEEENERAR -

HEERATEZEREENF R
WABBEHSIT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-BA=+t—HLHE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET AREFIT
Other income Hb g A
Financial assets at amortised cost HEHEKN A ECEREE 10,860 11,150

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on interest rate risk is
insignificant.

HREEE RSN X ERGZEN
FER/) - F &2 5N H X
RS EERN D -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position (including trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank balances and bank
balances).

The management of the Group considers bank balances and
restricted bank balances that are deposited with state-owned
banks or financial institutions with high credit rating to be
low credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables in
connection with bills settled through payment platforms such as
Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also with high credit rating
and no past due history. The management of the Group considers
these assets are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers as at 31
December 2021 and 2020, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

In determining the ECL for rental deposits and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. Except for the rental deposits and receivable
that were identified as credit impaired as described in Note 19
and Note 21, the management believes that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk of the rest of rental deposits and
other receivables since initial recognition and the credit impairment
was assessed based on 12m ECL. The management concluded that
the ECL for those receivables and deposits are insignificant for the
year end 31 December 2021 and 2020.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made throughout the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

30. eMIEREREKRERE

(&)
cRRREEERREE &)

AEERAZXZHEFHARERITEME
MEAEERIMBERORSE
BRRIRB RS P EIRRR A%
HERREMEENKREE (217
B RWER - Rt RE M
THE - ZRGIBITERRAKIRTT
mmER) e

AEEEEERATENRSEER
FARMB A RTINS BB A RTT
EHRMZRIBRTEHRRBEEER
e REEEE o B - BLE IR B
SHEIMEINEINTEeEE
NEBBEBENESREKERTAES
EEFF B EmTE A%
EEEERARSTEAERCHE
2 BHEREZ_ZTE-_—FK=T=
TFE+ A=+ —HETABEER
SEEFE  MELONAEENZ
BEAEr AW ERN T - —F K
TECEFE+ A=+ —HERE
B -

RETHSHFS REMEKIER
BHHEEEERK  AEEEEED
ZERIBABHEHRRATEMEER (0
W) o KR M RE19 8 Bt #E21F7 3%
R A= ERENHEE S & IEKRR
BN ERERAB TBERIAKR
BT REMERFEEE
BRI EBEERL - MEERE
ERN2ERBHEEEETG - &
BERE  ZSREFEERHESN
BHEEBERBE T -_—FK
—ECEF+_A=+—BLFE
RIEFEK -

REE-_T-_—EFER T T4
TZA=T—RLEEEFE  HE
FESBEBARZWEEIRES -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The Group monitors and maintains a reasonable level of cash and
cash equivalents which deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the impacts
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management relies on the
cash generated from operating activities as the main source
of liquidity. For the year end 31 December 2021, the Group
had cash generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB1,048,536,000 (2020: RMB1,270,205,000). The Group
expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows.

The following tables details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

591

EMIARSHRERER
(#)

TRIEREEEEREBER (&)

REBEEREBEREERAR
MR e RESEESEKE
AREENEERNES  RIER
CRENINFTE - TEERRB
KETHELENRSEAERDE
EMEERR - BHE_T-_—F
+—A=+—HLEFE A£EH
KETHEENRSOABARK
1,048,536,0007c (ZE =—FF : A
R #1,270,205,0007T) ° N B 78
HegERe RSB EMER -

T%§$ﬁ$%ﬂ’\]#?ﬁ$$@i§%
NEEBBENHRT OB
EZ%%E*ETFﬁEI/A%EZHH’in
HHemEBBERHAEABENRER
REeERERE -

Over 1 Over

Weighted  On demand months 3 months Total
average  orwithin  butwithin  but within Undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate ~~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  1-5years  >Syears cash flows amount

As at 31 December 2021 nE  RExS RE-ER RBZER RERRS
W-BZ-F+Zf=1-8 THHE  -@AR BORZER EOR-F  -FRE  HBEE  RESE REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Trade payables BARREH 219,876 26,458 4,360 - - 250694 250,694
Other payables HiEfE 116,895 2,604 151,206 - - 295725 295,725
Bank borrowings BTER 3.85% 10,714 413 68,816 - - 79,943 75,804
Lease liabilties HEak 5.19% 22,999 121,418 477,797 1,252,319 109,425 1,983,958 1,599,285
Total &5 370,484 175,893 702,199 1,252,319 109425 2610320 2,221,508
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

89

ETRIEREAERER

(&)

TREREEEEREBER (&)

Over 1 Over

Weighted ~ On demand months 3 months Total
average orwithin - butwithin-~ but within Undiscounted Carmying
Interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 15 years SSyears  cash flows amount

s at 31 December 2020 gEXY  #8-HR  @A=RA FERRS
RZF-SE12A=1-R mETHE @AM EOR=ER  EIR-F  -FRf  BEDE  REEE Faf
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR AR ARETR  ARBTR
Trade payables 2REAER 85003 24757 8,646 - - M U
Other payables EfEfiTE 62,180 144,006 181,044 - - 387,30 387,30
Bank borrowings BkR 3.15% 53 105 20367 - - 20525 20,000
Lease liabiities L 5.19% 24,840 124,435 281945 1,544,038 102,075 2337333 196504
Total @i 172,076 516,122 692,000 1,544,038 162075 3086313 27134%

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. e T E A FESTE

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial asset are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial asset and
liability are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

AEENETEREERSREH
KRR FEFE - TREHNABEM
MEETZEEREENBENRF

B(FRRAEANGBET AR

ABE)  URBEAFENES
ABEZ A BREZEmBAFERT
ENHINBATESE (F—H&
EEZRNER -

E—RAFEFETLEMERA
BESRENERMST M
HAFEERSH

£ MATFE BB A
- BOBEN  OQEES
& W 5 (BB ) S i
G TGESET PN
BB &

F=MAFEFETIEFA
VFBRBEABEDGHEE
EMEEXAEBEHABE(E
FBRBABE) WHETA
B e

TR N RS 18 (R AR B R A R] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2021
B e e o e S [ T

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. R T AR FETTE @)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 A=—F=—F+=H
BHHAFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

E—& EoR E=R

=+-

Total
ot

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR

L

Financial assets at FVTPL FEBREAFETEZ

TREE - 15,832 - 15,832

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 RZEBEZEBEF+ZA=1+—
BRAFESH

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

—#% 4 =& st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETRT

Financial assets at FVTPL FEBREAFETEZ

TREE = 36,315 = 36,315
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Financial Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
assets/liability Fair value as at (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) value
EXTUHE FUBEBAEE
SREE/8R RATEENATE(ARETT) ATEER HEFIRIEGAYE AAHE RATECHE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
“B--% g 25
tZA=t-H fTZA=t-H
Financial assets at 15,382 36,315 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are  N/A N/A
FVTPL estimated based on the quoted bid prices

of relevant listed shares held by the Trust in
an active market and the total cash out that
arising from the Trust.

BREREATE FZ8 BRRASRER KARALREDRE TEA oyl
SENSREE ERNERMSMERELTRO AT
BRREAMEER SRR MEHEL
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year. RER F—RNE_F2EWE
Eﬁﬁéﬁ}%’?
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

FERTE (&)

TRHEEF=RLFETE

of financial assets Y %1 BR
The following table represents the reconciliation of Level 3 BREnEATEIAENERMEE
measurements of the financial assets at FVTPL, which are (EATEBKREHRAONESRE D
short-term investment in financial products without ending WEHEE) F=RATEHFEN
balance for the period: HERWT :
RMB’000

AR F T
At 1 January 2020 N_E_ETF—H—H 71,296
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEARBREATEFENEREE 3,034,060
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEEBEREATEITENERHEE (3,130,830)
Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL BREBEZEATEFENSREERZEFHE 25,474
At 31 December 2020 R_FB_FFET_H=1T—H -
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEARBREATENENSREE 1,879,170
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BB BEREATETENEREE (1,906,117)
Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL HREBEREATETENEREERSF/E 26,947

At 31 December 2021 NR-—BE-_—F+-H=+—H -

Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities

220

that are not measured at fair value on a recurring

WIHLEEMEERQNFE
AENEREERAGNA

basis FE

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BEEZRA RAMBHRENIRENHE
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the W$)\E§E’J$vgﬂﬁ§&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. REESEAEAFEES
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

e =t g 1 0

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details major changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

41. %ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁt%

TRALASERETHMELRA

BENETRES -

BREAE MRS

2E o mELPMELABINER

Hame

L BRERBESRERNAEAE

@%ﬁéfﬁimbiﬁw/\*ﬁﬁﬁﬂé/é
@J}Eﬁéiiﬁimmﬁ 1E °

Non-cash changes

FREED
Covid-19-
At Lease Lease related At
1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities rent 31 December
2021 cash flows accruals — recognised  derecognised  concessions 2021
RZB=-%# HE BB CRLER Covid-19 M=B=-%
-B-H Reng ZitHE HERR HESE RBESET t-A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETn  ARBTR  ARETR
Bank borrowings (Note 30)  #7f 31 (H530) 20,000 55,804 - - - - 75,804
Interest accruals ZitHE - (1.732) 1,732 - - - -
Lease liabilities (Note 27) ~ EEAE (HzF27) 1,965,041 (663,958) 89,208 473,381 (260,422) (3965 1,599,285
Other payables HipEMFE 17,502 (17,402) - - - - 100
2,002,543 (627,288) 90,940 473,381 (260,422) (3,965) 1,675,189
Non-cash changes
FREED
Covig-19-
At Lease Lease related At
1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities rent 31 December
2020 cash flows accruals recognised  derecognised  concessions 2020
RoF-%F BE EBR  CRLED Covid19  R-E_%F
-R-H Rehe ZitHE HERE HERE EEHSEE T-A=1-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTRr  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
Bank borrowings (Note 30) #7731 (££30) - 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Interest accruals 2 EH\JE - (4,027) 4,027 = = - -
Lease liabilties (Note 27) ERE(HE27) 1,978,462 (528,378) 91,282 507,822 (23,420) (60,727) 1,965,041
Other payables EWEHUA - 17,502 - - - - 17,502
1,978,462 (494,903) 95,309 507,822 (23,420) (60,727) 2,002,543
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern, while to maximise
the return to the owners of the Company through optimisation
of debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Note
30 and Note 27 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendation of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
of redemption of existing debt.

42. EXEBER

AEENHEAEEEERRAEE
HTERBESEEE A58
LA RIEAM T - AR
AEAAFREEEE - AEE
BRI R T -

AEBNERNEBERFAGE (R
¥E M TE30 K M 527 Il 2 BR O 8R
TEALEERRE)  MBRAES R
ReEEARKARER ARMERE
# (BREHTERA  RERMKE
HipfkEf)

BEHEERFERMEARE R
ETZENE BEEEEEZREEAR
AR EZRESHBOERR - 1R
BEEEMNEZ  AREKEBX
R B~ 37T 3R A ) [ BB DA %
REOREESFBETHES  F
MEEREARRE -
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43, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

43. X F A BARR KRR

As at 31 December

IRTZ2EETF=E
2021 2020
—EBE_—F —ZEZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBARIHKRE 171,702 158,831
Amounts due from subsidiaries i N NETE ] 121,946 124,800
293,648 283,631
Current assets REBEE
Amounts prepaid to the RSU Trustee L8 B I3 A% [7) 5 BR # BX (5
for purchase of ordinary shares BAXFEABRBNNSE
(Note 33) (Fft5E33) 15,497 13,991
Bank balances and cash IRITHERNIRS 3,890 33,115
19,387 47,106
Current liabilities REBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B A B FRIE 84,069 34,519
Other payables H b &N FE 1,678 1,818
85,747 36,337
Net current (liabilities) assets KB (BB EETE (66,360) 10,769
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERAHAR 227,288 294,400
Net assets EEZFHE 227,288 294,400
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital fig A 176 175
Reserves (i 227,112 294,225
Total equity A 227,288 294,400
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
A =T s s i e IS

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43. XA B M BRRRKHE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (48)
Movement in the Company’s reserves NN R = R =]
Attribute to owners of the Company
ARAHAAEL
Equity-settled
share-based
Share payments Treasury  Accumulated
premium reserve  share reserve losses Total
NRESE
NRBAER EFRG
R EE IS Rt ZitER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2020 RZZZZE-F-ANEHR 539,824 26,781 (78,493) (116,937) 371,175
Total comprehensive expense ERZERXAE

for the year = = - (18,547) (18,547)
Exercise of issued share option TFE BN ERE 11,974 (3,637) - = 8,337
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme GEGECG T 97 (10,467) 10,370 = =
Recognition of equity-settled BANRELEARD B

share-based payments ARHFR = 12,884 - = 12,884
Payment of dividends ERRE (79,624) - - - (79,624)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZFZFE+-A=1-H

ifeds 472,271 25,561 (68,123) (135,484) 294,225

Total comprehensive expense ERR2ERTAS

for the year - - - (11,032) (11,032)
Exercise of issued share option 7B B1TIBMRE 8,513 (2,584) = = 5,929
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme T B BITRRHRG Ef ) (2,170) (13,021) 15,191 = =
Purchase of treasury share under BREXRHRA B EEE

restricted share unit scheme BRERG = - (10,788) = (10,788)
Recognition of equity-settled BB EE BN R (D R ER

share-based payments ol REeS - 8,778 - - 8,778
Payment of dividends AR S (60,000) - - - (60,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-ZE--£+-B=+-H

fEs 418,614 18,734 (63,720) (146,516) 227,112
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